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CORPORATE PROFILE

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited (“ICBC (Macau)”
or “the Bank”) is a group member of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Limited (“ICBC”), which holds its 89.33% interest as at the end of 2022.

ICBC (Macau) is the result of a merger between the former Seng Heng Bank
Limited (“SHB”) and ICBC Macau Branch (“Macau Branch”), and was renamed as
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited (“ICBC (Macau)”) in
2009.

History

SHB was incorporated in Macao in 1972, and had a history of 37 years of service
to the local customers and facilitating growth in Macao. On 28 January 2008,
ICBC completed to acquire 79.93% shareholdings in the former SHB, and which
became a member of the ICBC Group.

Macau Branch was established in May 2003 as one of ICBC’s overseas branches.
Since its entrance to the Macao market, the branch had been growing at a rapid
pace.

On 11 July 2009, ICBC first transferred to SHB all assets, rights and obligations
of Macau Branch with additional cash capital. After which SHB was officially
renamed as Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
(“ICBC Macau”), and ICBC succeeded in brand unification and complementary
advantages in Macao.

On 23 August 2010 and 22 September 2015, after ICBC (Macau) received
capital increase from shareholders twice, its operating strength was significantly
enhanced and its financial situation was more stable. With the continuous
deepening of comprehensive risk management, network construction, business
innovation, process optimization, and internal management have reached a new
level, the workforce and corporate culture have made great progress. The market
position and influence of the Bank have rapidly increased, its business scale and
operating performance are both in a leading industry position in Macao.

At the end of 2022, ICBC (Macau) had 3 subsidiaries, 18 branches, 2 Service
Centers, 4 Wealth Management Centers, 1 Peony Credit Card VIP Service Center,
30 self-help banks and a network of 388 ATMs located across Macao.
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Products and Services

ICBC (Macau) leverages its parent company’s signature strength, massive services
network, cutting-edge technology, and excellent products of its foreign institutions
to offer plenty of financial services to its clients:

Corporate loan, revolving loan, banking syndicated loan, project loan,
construction loan, trade financing and letter of credit or letter of guarantee,
operating loan, mortgage loan, car loan, education loan, entrusted loan and M&A
financing;

Current deposit, savings deposit, time deposit, RMB deposit, redeemable time
deposit, equity-linked notes, diversified services of Elite Club Account;

Securities trading, funds agency, insurance agency, bond investment, foreign
exchange investment, precious metal trading, wages distribution agency, receiving
and paying agency, international settlement, remittance, currencies conversion,
e-banking and card business service;

Debt restructuring, financial consultancy, private banking service, assets
management, investment portfolio management, pension fund management and
its advisory services.

Subsidiaries

ICBC (Macau) has 3 wholly-owned subsidiaries: ICBC (Macau) Capital Limited,
ICBC (Macau) Pension Fund Management Company Limited and Seng Heng
Development Company Limited.

ICBC (Macau) Capital Limited announced name change on 27 May 2009, which
was formerly known as Seng Heng Capital Asia Limited established in May
1998 with a shared capital of MOP50 million. This subsidiary is committed to
providing fund management services and tailored long-term investment strategy
consultancy services to institutions and individual clients in Macao.

ICBC (Macau) Pension Fund Management Company Limited was renamed on
4 February 2009, which was formerly known as Seng Heng Pension Fund
Management Company Limited established in 16 June 2003 with a shared
capital of MOP60 million. This subsidiary is the first professional pension fund
management company approved under the corresponding legislations. In line
with the regulations on private pension fund enacted by the Macao government,
the subsidiary provides a wide range of services.

Seng Heng Development Company Limited incorporated in Hong Kong on 10
January 1997, owns property and engages in financial and investment market
research.

ICBC (Macau) takes up economic and social responsibilities in a way of organic
unity. It has established an image of a responsible leading bank in Macau through
its support of economic and social developments, environmental and resources
protection, and participation in social welfare activities.
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2022 AWARDS

(#R17 %) The Banker

20224 1 1 1 1% e A $R 47
The Bank of the Year 2022 Macau

C(BRER 42 ) Global Finance

20224 "] Hb ik S 4 4R AT
The Best Bank in Macau 2022

(it 4 ) World Finance
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The Best Bank in Macau 2022
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China Central Depository& Clearing Co., Ltd.
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CIBM Offshore Institutional Investor Excellence Award 2022
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
The directors of the Bank during the year were:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Yi Sheng

Mr. Niu Jian Jun (appointed on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Xu Ke En (resigned on 4 March 2022)

Mr. Huen Wing Ming, Patrick

Mr. Tong Chi Kin

Ms. Ho Teng Iat

Mr. Zhang Wei Feng

Mr. Zheng Jian Feng

Mr. Hong Gui Lu

SINGLE SUPERVISOR
CSC & Associados — Sociedade de Auditores
(represented by Mr. Chui Sai Cheong)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Chen Cui Ping

AUDITORS
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu - Sociedade de Auditores
Macau

LEGAL ADVISER

Jorge Neto Valente Lawyers & Notaries

C&C Macau Lawyers

Henrique Saldanha, Advogados & Notarios

STA Lawyers

Leong Hon Man - Advogados & Notario Privado

REGISTERED OFFICE

18/F, ICBC Tower

Macau Landmark

555, Avenida da Amizade, Macau

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Chairman, Managing Director & Executive Director
Mr. Jiang Yi Sheng

Vice-Chairman, CEO & Executive Director
Mr. Niu Jian Jun

Vice-Chairman & Executive Director
Mr. Huen Wing Ming, Patrick

Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Chan Kam Lun, Felix

Mr. Deng Wan Hong, Dennis
Mr. Huang Xian Jun

Mr. Zheng Bin
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We continue to be prudent with our business. All staffs in ICBC (Macau) work

hard together, with professional expertise, advanced technology and highly

efficient service, and pursue for the steady growth of both the values of our

customers and of our shareholders. We undertake more social responsibilities

consciously, strengthen ourselves as the supreme bank in local market and strive

to be one of the best banks in Hong Kong, Macao and Guangdong province.

e EAESEN, (D)

2021 2022 Increase/(Decrease)
Ji AR HE B Shareholder’s equity 29,893 30,672 3%
MR E Total assets 438,397 460,750 5%
sEIRA Operating income 5,375 4,883 (9)%
HwELH Operating expenses (1,228) (1,199) (2)%
R YA 1R i SR Operating profit before impairment losses 4,147 3,684 (11)%
G il T EL (A Charge for impairment losses on financial instruments (1,614) (1,157) (28)%
Tl T ) 3P Profit before tax 2,571 2,616 2%
Fr 3B Income tax expense (301) (322) 7%
3 1 Profit for the Year 2,270 2,294 1%
TR AR KEY FIGURES FOR 2022

A ERAE TGS AR > HSTE T AT B I B - A7 B A A
BRAR S WL ARG A T AR R T IR IRF M - 20224F
SRR B A R TR 1% > AR EE 52,204 F1 EE IR G o
JBC RO £ 3 0 793% > AR R 530,672 H SR M T -
B S BGRERE F8% > B4 EE £5213,123 H ALY T o
HT A AR Fr4a% > A4 FE 248,296 F BRI o

AL IR £55% > AR A FE F5460,750 F IR Y T o

The global economic growth moderated and downside risks remain elevated.

In face of complicated external and internal environment, Macao’s economic
recovery still takes time. ICBC (Macau)’s profit for the year increased by 1% to

MOP2,294 million.

Shareholders’ equity increased by 3% to MOP30,672 million.

Loans and advances to customers decreased by 8% to MOP213,123 million.

Deposits from customers decreased by 4% to MOP248,296 million.

Total assets increased by 5% to MOP460,750 million.
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

¥iAr : | E WM 5T MOP million
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 CAGR*
i 4% F1 1 Profit after Tax 2,545 3,008 2,387 2,270 2,294 -2%
P BKEAGK Loans and advances to Customers 213,914 224,253 231,475 230,673 213,123 -0.1%
HEFE Deposits from Customers 206,075 226,029 258,233 259,496 248,296 4%
g Total Assets 310,969 351,827 405,500 438,397 460,750 8%
* CaGrAh2018%20224F 2 A A i R R *  CaGr = Compounded annual Growth rate from 2018 to 2022
KRR %P
Profit after Tax Deposits from Customers
1100 3008 260000 258233 259,496 ris06
2790 | o5 234000 226,029
g 2480 2,387 2270 2,294 £ 208000 206075
E a0 E 182000
=% =%
% 1860 % 156000
R 1550 'R 130000
% 1240 * CAGR=-2% R % 104000
930 78000
620 52000
310 26000
S S S IS B S S S B
" s 2019 2020 2021 2022 " s 2019 2020 2021 2022
LYK &9 & T A
Loans and Advances to Customers Total Assets
231,475 230,673 460,750
232000 10y 224,253 213,123 470000 438,397
405,500
208800 411250
2185600 s 351,827
S 2 352500
F 162400 E 310,969
§139200 g 293750
1R 116000 1R 235000
ﬁ 92800 * CAGR=-0.1% . % easo
= 69600 [
117500
46400
23200 58750
L S I—— — S — SR I— I I R P mmEs 2B
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
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Discussion and Analysis
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ECONOMIC, FINANCIAL AND REGULATORY ENVIRONMENTS

The international political and economic landscape has seen complexity and frictions. Divergent monetary policies of major economies add to
uncertainties in the global economy and finance. The crisis in the east of Ukraine has built up, dealing a blow to the industrial chain and supply chain.
Each country is in a dilemma of controlling inflation, stabilizing growth and preventing risks when making macroeconomic policies. The banking
industry is facing highly complex and ever-changing international environment. Meanwhile, as global financial regulations are further tightened, more
attention has been drawn to bank compliance, anti-money laundering (AML), and sensitive business management. Higher requirements have been
raised for banks’ compliance management and robust operation. The Chinese economy demonstrates great resilience and potential, showing a good
trend of sustained and healthy development. However, structural problems deep-rooted in economic and financial fields remain. The Chinese economy
is still under the huge triple pressures of shrinking demand, disrupted supply and weakening expectations. In addition, exports are facing pressure of
global economic slowdown. Consequently, some market entities have unstable expectations and insufficient confidence, adding to the uncertainties
in business development. The tough situation has not significantly improved. Locally, Macao, as a small and micro economy with a single economic
structure, has been greatly affected by the pandemic. Economic recovery, transformation and development remain an uphill task, and it is expected that
a full recovery of economy still has a long way to go. As the scarcity of local market resources has become increasingly prominent, the banking industry
is facing more pressures and challenges in terms of business development and risk control.

OUTLOOK

Peace and development remain the common aspirations of people of all countries. Economic globalization is moving forward amidst twists and turns,
and a new round of technological revolution and industrial transformation is quickening up. The global industrial chain and supply chain are facing
restructuring, which will trigger more global demand for financial services and create more cross-border investment and financing opportunities.
Looking ahead to 2023, uncertainties in the global economy remain huge as a result of the slowdown in global economic growth, geopolitical factors,
inflation, and climate changes in the post-pandemic era. However, every crisis brings with it an opportunity. On the one hand, while facing multiple
complex challenges, the international governance system is being reshaped at a faster pace, and different countries take on divergences in economic
and financial trends as well as monetary policies, bringing structural business opportunities worldwide. The fundamentals of the Chinese economy
remain unchanged. The new government will make economic revitalization its top priority. More supporting policies are expected to launch to stabilize
economic growth and enhance risk control. On the other hand, with the normalization of customs clearance policies during the post-pandemic period,
Macao’s tourism is on track to recover at a faster pace, demonstrating a robust momentum of development. The Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area, especially the Guangdong-Macao In-depth Cooperation Zone in Hengqin, serves as a core market with multiple overlapped regions and
the positive interplay between domestic circulation and international circulation. The comprehensive resumption of exchanges between the Chinese
mainland and Hong Kong and Macao is expected to accelerate connectivity and continuously release policy dividends. Hengqin will work with Macao
to promote the diversified development of “1+4” industries, and constantly deepen the layout of modern finance. Against this backdrop, the banking
industry holds tremendous promise.

As a key institution in the core overseas market of ICBC and also an important force in the economic and social development of Macao, the Bank
will remain steadfast in legal, compliant, and prudent operation centering on the positioning of Macao as “One Centre, One Platform and One Base’.
Relying on the Group’s inter connection advantages, it will unlock opportunities related to moderate economic diversification in Macao and the
development of the Greater Bay Area. It will support the construction of China-Portugal platform, and assist Macao in better integrating into the overall
development of the country. Keenly aware of the local market, it will accelerate localization, regional layout and digital transformation to achieve high-
quality development, better assist with the international layout of the Group and serve the practice of One Country, Two Systems.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Corporate Finance Business

ICBC (Macau) deeply tapped the collaborative value of licenses of subsidiaries and branches, and continuously sharpened its competitive edge in
the wholesale market. In the global market, the Bank conducted in-depth cooperation with many central state-owned enterprises (SOEs), SOEs
and industry-leading firms in global settlement, cross-border fund pooling, cross-border investment & financing, and other aspects. In the process,
it became the overseas fund center for some strategic customers, and built competitive advantages. In the local market, the Bank took the lead to
complete a number of milestone projects such as local government replacement housing consortia and integrated enterprise consortia, effectively
supporting the economic and social development of Macao. Through the Cross-border E-commerce Association of Macao, the Bank also supported
the transformation and development of SMEs, deepened business cooperation in refinancing with integrated enterprises during this special time. The
Bank inputted resources to expand domestic demand and boost the economy along with the local government. In terms of cross-border business, the
Bank actively followed up on the opening-up policies of the Greater Bay Area and Henggin, closely linked with financial innovation and services of
institutions within ICBC Group, and helped increase market connectivity. It took the lead to wrap up the first cross-border transfer of green financial
assets in the Guangdong-Macao In-depth Cooperation Zone in Hengqin, and got ready for innovative development. Cross-border investment and
financing maintained the momentum of steady growth. The Bank, therefore, became a major credit supply bank and an innovative leader in cross-
border financial services across Macao.

10
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Retail Banking Business

Spearheaded by the retail-first strategy and pursuing a customer-centric approach, ICBC (Macau) formed a service lineup that covered all customers,
products, and processes. As a result, its mega retail business kept contributing more to the revenue, and fully played its role as a stabilizer. In the local
market, the Bank continuously deepened GBC interconnection, improved service efficiency of outlets, and consolidated the foundation for business
development. There is a steady increase in the quality of individual customers, the proportion of stock customers and the proportion of private banking
customers. In the meantime, the Bank focused on building fully functional outlets targeted at individual customers and SMEs and built an online/offline
ecosystem to deliver a new experience of smart banking. In terms of cross-border markets, the Bank spared no effort to support the construction of the
Greater Bay Area and the Guangdong-Macao In-depth Cooperation Zone in Henggin. It innovated services and products focusing on livelihood areas
such as account opening, investment and financing, and was the first to launch Greater Bay Area Property Connect, One-stop Cross-border Mortgage
Registration Service Center, Greater Bay Area Social Security Service Connect, Greater Bay Area Payroll Service Connect, etc. The Bank also exclusively
rolled out Video Notarization in Macau, Greater Bay Area Account Connect, etc., and won wide recognition and acclaim. It had the most diversified
cross-border business lines in the industry, and was the only institution with a business network that covers the Greater Bay Area and nine cities on
Chinese Mainland. The Bank has opened over 20,000 accounts through Greater Bay Area Account Connect service, and held the largest market share of
cross-border loans.

Financial Market Business

ICBC (Macau) takes financial market business as an important engine that drives its business development. Acutely aware of the complex global
economic and financial landscape, the Bank prudently participated in monetary market, bond market, derivatives market, precious metals market,
and other financial market businesses. It hedged and managed risks in a volatile economic environment, and promoted its businesses like agency
treasury service towards diversified, robust development. Seizing the opportunities presented by the Belt and Road Initiative (BRI) and the RMB
internationalization, the Bank accelerated the formation of a minor currency trading network to support the exchange and trading of minor currencies.
Over time, it established the brand image of minor currency exchange. Serving as the chair of the Securities and Funds Industry Association of Macao,
the Bank wrapped up multiple signature bond deals, thus ranking the first place among local peers by the scale of bonds issued and underwritten. It
was awarded the “Outstanding Overseas Investment Institution” and the “Excellent Contributors to International Business” by China Central Depository
& Clearing Co., Ltd. (CCDC). It became a clearing bank of the Macao Central Securities Depository System (MCSD) and was rated as an “Outstanding
Issuer”.

Financial Institution Business

ICBC (Macau) was active in expanding the network of correspondent banks, consolidating the basis for cooperation, and marching into more areas
of collaboration. Therefore, the Bank managed to establish correspondent banking relations with over 200 banks, capable of furnishing customers
with convenient, smooth, and sound global clearing services. In 2022, it deepened its local operation and attained business growth with resources
available internally and externally. It provided comprehensive services to over 20 government departments and public institutions in Macao, and
entered cooperative relationships with major universities and colleges, both of which steadily raised the proportion of civil servants among payroll
service customers. GBC inter connection achieved great headway. Additionally, the Bank established the Cross-border Interbank Payment System
(CIPS) relationship with more than ten local counterparties, a move that contributed to remarkable growth in trade financing and cross-border RMB
settlement and won itself the award of “A Model Participant in RMB Cross-border Payment and Clearing Market Expansion”. Efforts were also made
to deepen partnerships with financial institution customers in Hong Kong and Macao. Actively expanding the customer base in the non-banking
institution market would be another major growth driver for the Bank.

Internet Finance Business

Keenly aware of the financial technology (FinTech) development trend, ICBC (Macau) sped up digital transformation and development relying on the
Group’s support and the local cutting-edge FinTech. It gave play to the advantages of technical innovation and provided integrated enterprises with
a package of financial services such as OPI, bulk remittance, and payroll settlement. Mobile banking customers increased rapidly compared to the
previous year, and the proportion of transactions of the Bank maintained the first place among all overseas institutions of ICBC Group. Committed
to building itself into a green and smart bank, ICBC (Macau) promoted digital bank construction, which drove up the penetration of mobile banking
among individual customers and the share of remittance, securities and other major transactions online. Relying on the Cross-border E-commerce
Association to integrate local e-commerce resources, the Bank collaborated with Chinese mainland to hold digital skills and cross-border e-commerce
skills competitions to enhance cross-border e-commerce capabilities, and support the transformation and upgrading of local SMEs.
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Bank Card Business

Seizing the online development opportunities of Macaos mainstream consumer market, the Bank strove to improve its competitiveness in the bank
card sector and maintain its leadership in various fields of business. In the payment market, it promoted e-payment while the local government was
distributing consumer coupons. As a result, the number of its e-payment customers and volume of transactions soared significantly year-on-year. It
continued to top peer banks by the share in the acquiring market. In terms of scenario building, the Bank inputted supporting resources to stimulate
economic recovery in alignment with the government’s economic revitalization plan. It provided acquiring services targeted at major supermarkets and
stores across Macao, realizing the full coverage of high-frequency payment scenarios in Macao. With respect to card issuance, exclusive issuance of
galaxy co-branded cards set multiple local card issuance records. With these efforts, the Bank led ICBC system in terms of card issuance, transaction
amount, and acquiring volume, and continued to be the largest card issuer in Macao.

Asset Management and Asset Custody Business

Relying on the Group’s business platforms, ICBC (Macau) worked hard to build lineups of financial asset services and products, and achieved positive
results in product and project operation. In 2022, the Bank served as the global coordinator, lead manager, and lead bookrunner for overseas bonds
and local bonds of numerous strategic customers, and rolled out a full package of professional investment banking advisory services such as valuation
and financial due diligence. Fully leveraging the advantages of full licenses, the Bank was the first institution in Macao to obtain the private equity fund
management permit in Macao, and completed the registration of the first private equity investment fund, the first private equity investment fund with
the theme of green investment in Macao. It effectively cultivates the industry’s ecosystem and leads the industry’s development.

Pension Fund Business

Among the first group of financial management institutions to offer central provident fund service upon the approval of the Macao SAR Government’s
Social Security Fund, the Bank actively cooperated with the Macao SAR Government in implementing the “Non-Mandatory Central Provident
Fund System”, by publicizing the importance of retirement protection, raising the awareness of investing in and managing pension funds among
local residents, and expanding the pension business lineup. All of these moves achieved fruitful results. By launching a series of new products and
preferential schemes, it seized market opportunities to increase the number of pension fund customers steadily. Aligned with the national strategy
to develop the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, the Bank works to meet the needs of Macao citizens and corporate customers for
pension fund investment services, a move that diversified the mix of pension fund products in Macao.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Macau) Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Principal place of business

The Bank is incorporated and domiciled in Macau and has its registered office and principal place of business at 18th Floor, ICBC Tower, Macau
Landmark, 555 Avenida da Amizade, Macau.

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Group are the provision of banking, financial and other related services in Macau.
Results and dividends

The results of the Group and the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the state of affairs of the Group and the Bank at that date are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 18 to 142.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of MOP337,274,849 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: MOP333,526,273).
Directors

The directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Mr. Jiang Yi Sheng

Mr. Niu Jian Jun (appointed on 4 March 2022)

Mr. Xu Ke En (resigned on 4 March 2022)

Mr. Huen Wing Ming, Patrick

Mr. Zheng Jian Feng

Mr. Hong Gui Lu

Mr. Zhang Wei Feng

Mr. Tong Chi Kin
Ms. Ho Teng Iat

Share capital

Details of the BanK’s share capital are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements. There was no movement in the Bank’s authorised share
capital during the year. There was no issue of new shares during the year (2021: Nil).

Property, plant and equipment
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
Legal reserves

Details of movements in the legal reserve of the Bank during the year are set out in the statement of changes in equity and note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu — Sociedade de Auditores retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu - Sociedade de Auditores as auditor of the Bank is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board

Vice Chairman
Niu Jian Jun

Macau
31 March 2023
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To the shareholders of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau)
Limited
(Incorporated in Macau with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 18 to 142, which
comprise the consolidated and the BanK’s statements of financial position as at 31
December 2022, the consolidated and the BanK’s statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and the statements
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standards of Macau Special Administrative Region, the People’s Republic of China
(“Macau SAR”) approved by Order of the Secretary for Economy and Finance No.
44/2020, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing approved by the Professional Committee of Accountants
under the Notice No. 2/2021/CPC. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view,
in all material respects, of the financial position of the Group and the Bank as at
31 December 2022, and of the Group’s and the Bank’s financial results and their
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standards of Macau SAR approved by Order of the Secretary for Economy and
Finance No. 44/2020.

Kuan Ho Weng

Certified Public Accountant

Partner

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu - Sociedade de Auditores
Macau

31 March 2023
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BE_F _FF_H=E+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
ik T#M e THWMT
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
BB A Interest income 10,481,992 7,639,606
RS S H Interest expense (6,517,588) (3,371,696)
FEFBA Net interest income 7 3,964,404 4,267,910
FHE ARSI A Fee and commission income 1,006,491 1,171,386
FHEE A Fee and commission expense (317,144) (254,830)
FHEERMEFRA Net fee and commission income 8 689,347 916,556
HAb B S YA Other operating income 9 229,447 190,372
BERA Operating income 4,883,198 5,374,838
wEEH Operating expenses 10 (1,199,293) (1,228,202)
VoA R N iR Operating profit before impairment losses 3,683,905 4,146,636
S (R Net charge for impairment losses on financial 11
instruments (1,156,749) (1,613,825)
HoAh 48 %5 Other income 9 88,472 38,035
8 1ir A3 Profit before tax 2,615,628 2,570,846
EEYA Income tax expense 12 (321,731) (301,099)
& 1 Profit for the year 2,293,897 2,269,747
HAbsi & (BE), Wi Other comprehensive (loss)/income (net of tax)
(B Be 4% 1 40)
HHEEATESHEBREN Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will not be
HAth %54 (GBI it reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
6 E LA B ERH R B4 8  Change in investment revaluation reserve of equity
A H A 45 i i ) RE 4 251 investments designated at fair value through other
G s S comprehensive income (1,883) -
15 RIS T 43 0 2 4 A 1 AL Other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be
HA GRR) g reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
BemeEEP THENTA Change in fair value of hedging instruments under cash
I8 FUAE (E 5 Bl flow hedges (4,289) 1,524
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BE_F_FF A= HIRFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
i T8 o T WM T
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
VA SR (E T HOH ) Change in investment revaluation reserve of debt
rt A At A5 Wi i 7 i 57 securities measured at fair value through other
PG LB 2 8 comprehensive income
- A RAEER ) - Change in fair value (1,133,145) -
- EERFESMH RS — Release to profit or loss upon disposal (61,125) =
— wH AR A B U (B AR A - Change in impairment allowances charged to profit
or loss 5,768 -
A AR B R A (B Change in investment revaluation reserve of available-
Tt A 52 ) for-sale debt investment
- N AEE R B E) - Change in fair value - (155,413)
- EERE S SR - Release to profit or loss upon disposal - (177,769)
- wH A TH 2 B 8 A 5 ) - Change in impairment allowances charged to profit
or loss = 7,186
[ 53,25 A Exchange differences 2,902 3,914
A BE A 45 5 R 2% 5 BRBL1Z 3 i Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (1,191,772) (320,558)
AF I &3 A W 25 B4 %R > BR B 1% 13 %1 Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,102,125 1,949,189

H133% 142 2 A5 $RR A9 B GE AR 2

The notes on pages 33 to 142 form part of these financial statements.

19



o T SRAT UL R R A SRR
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED Annual Report 2022

BT A B4 3B (4 452 P9 81 3R 5 2% Bl) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with MFRSs)
Bt % 3 % Financial Statements

% R E 44 W & &Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

BE_F _FF_H=E+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
ik T#M e THWMT
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
M EWBA Interest income 10,476,618 7,634,367
RS S H Interest expense (6,520,558) (3,373,669)
FEFBRA Net interest income 7 3,956,060 4,260,698
FHE ARSI A Fee and commission income 940,858 1,102,709
FHEE A Fee and commission expense (317,298) (255,229)
FHEEBEEHETFRA Net fee and commission income 8 623,560 847,480
HAb B S YA Other operating income 9 229,944 189,726
BERA Operating income 4,809,564 5,297,904
wEEH Operating expenses 10 (1,177,218) (1,202,009)
VoA R N iR Operating profit before impairment losses 3,632,346 4,095,895
S (R Net charge for impairment losses on financial 11
instruments (1,156,641) (1,613,762)
HoAh 48 %5 Other income 9 88,473 35,993
8 1ir A3 Profit before tax 2,564,178 2,518,126
EEYA Income tax expense 12 (315,678) (294,618)
& 1 Profit for the year 2,248,500 2,223,508
HAbsi & (BE), Wi Other comprehensive (loss)/income (net of tax)
(B Be 4% 1 40)
HHEEATESHEBREN Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will not be
HAth %54 (GBI it reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
6 E LA B ERH R B4 8  Change in investment revaluation reserve of equity
A H A 45 i i ) RE 4 251 investments designated at fair value through other
G s S comprehensive income (1,883) -
15 RIS T 43 0 2 4 A 1 AL Other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be
HA GRR) g reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
BemeEEP THENTA Change in fair value of hedging instruments under cash
I8 FUAE (E 5 Bl flow hedges (4,289) 1,524

20



TRITEER
Annual Report 2022

o ] SRAT (B e A R A )

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

BE_F_FF A= HIRFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
i T8 o T WM T
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
VA SR (E T HOH ) Change in investment revaluation reserve of debt
rt A At A5 Wi i 7 i 57 securities measured at fair value through other
PG LB 2 8 comprehensive income
- A RAEER ) - Change in fair value (1,125,292) -
- EERFESMH RS — Release to profit or loss upon disposal (61,125) =
— wH AR A B U (B AR A - Change in impairment allowances charged to profit
or loss 5,742 -
A AR B R A (B Change in investment revaluation reserve of available-
Tt A 52 ) for-sale debt investment
- N AEE R B E) - Change in fair value - (157,143)
- EERE S SR - Release to profit or loss upon disposal - (177,836)
- wH A TH 2 B 8 A 5 ) - Change in impairment allowances charged to profit
or loss = 7,124
[ 53,25 A Exchange differences 2,902 3,914
A BE A 45 5 R 2% 5 BRBL1Z 3 i Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (1,183,945) (322,417)
AF I &3 A W 25 B4 %R > BR B 1% 13 %1 Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,064,555 1,901,091

H133% 142 2 A5 $RR A9 B GE AR 2

The notes on pages 33 to 142 form part of these financial statements.
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R+ ZH=1+—H
31 December 2022

2022 2021
Kt 7t T WM 7o T IT
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
& R Assets
4 K @E 73K Cash and balances with banks 13 25,318,960 31,351,050
A7 R W SR A Deposits with monetary authority 9,355,240 5,373,369
tiy 4Gl % Placements with other banks 14 102,014,992 75,467,442
ﬁjﬁ—:% Tl Derivative financial assets 28 1,106,108 352,035
=804 %:i“ B¢ ) ) Loans and advances 15 213,122,669 230,672,782
A i w2 B HE B FH A Financial assets at fair value through
HoAh %5 ﬁ' I 15 1) 4 Bl & other comprehensive income 17 31,804,620 -
]t IR . Available-for-sale investments 17 = 36,819,318
Phis AR {E G 8 Bt A Financial assets at fair value through
18451 4 E A - profit or loss 325,394 682,622
DL R 1 AN T o E‘J SRl Financial assets at amortised cost 16 70,136,576 =
SREED VNEE VS Held-to-maturity investments 16 - 51,943,733
JRE AT R IE Je HAh Receivables and other assets 7,183,079 5,375,981
JRE Wiz iir 55 Income tax receivables 52,410 40,871
] % > Tk BB Property, plant and equipment 19 280,513 267,518
PG Investment property 20 49,539 50,256
R Total assets 460,750,100 438,396,977
£l Liabilities
[F] SE A7 Deposits from banks 21 95,913,287 71,509,818
K 7[?%’( Deposits from customers 22 248,296,315 259,496,121
i1 AE 4 Al B 1R Derivative financial liabilities 28 837,580 560,280
DA B it H H A2 B FH A Financial liabilities at fair value through
15 4 19 <5 1 4 £ profit or loss 325,250 682,396
AT T B 5 Debt issued 29 14,520,898 12,212,414
BATAE T Certificates of deposit issued 30 63,410,958 57,877,497
JE ST A5 BE Income tax payable 354,190 329,272
PRI I 158 & A5 Deferred tax liabilities 23 1,850 157,332
HoAh 2 5 Other liabilities 6,418,242 5,679,190
AR Total liabilities 430,078,570 408,504,320
R £ Equity
JgeA Issued share capital 24 588,920 588,920
fiti At Reserves 30,082,610 29,303,737
Horp: — ik %% il Includes : General regulatory reserve 336,178 1,146,737
e B A A Specific regulatory reserve 821,920 -
U PitiEms Gt Totalequity .. 30,671,530 29,892,657
AR R # MR A Total equity and liabilities 460,750,100 438,396,977
Hy HE S it o S M

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2023

H1 335 142 2 FA 5 2k 19 B 50 40

The notes on pages 33 to 142 form part of these financial statements.

22



TRITEER
Annual Report 2022

o TR SRAT R IR A A W
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

B B8 B (1R 52 P9 B 3R % % Bl Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with MFRSs)
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Bt % AR % % Statement of Financial Position
e e

31 December 2022

2022 2021
et TF# M THF e
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
& R Assets
4 &@Eﬁﬁ%’( Cash and balances with banks 13 25,171,618 31,321,630
A7 R W SR A Deposits with monetary authority 9,355,240 5,373,369
tiy 4Gl % Placements with other banks 14 102,014,992 75,467,442
ﬁjﬁ—:% Tl Derivative financial assets 28 1,106,108 352,035
=804 %:i“ B¢ ) ) Loans and advances 15 213,122,669 230,672,782
A i w2 B HE B FH A Financial assets at fair value through
HoAh %5 ﬁ' I 15 1) 4 Bl & other comprehensive income 17 31,714,284 -
Tt ER e Available-for-sale investments 17 - 36,707,723
Phis AR {E G 8 Bt A Financial assets at fair value through
18451 4 E A - profit or loss 325,394 682,622
DL R 1 AN T o E‘J SRl Financial assets at amortised cost 16 70,112,246 =
FAEEIIMAE & ﬁ Held-to-maturity investments 16 = 51,919,227
JRE AT R IE Je HAh Receivables and other assets 7,221,019 5,413,221
JRE Wiz i 5 5 Income tax receivables 52,411 40,871
A AR ) Interests in subsidiaries 18 79,980 79,980
LERN Y& T Property, plant and equipment 19 280,449 267,412
R Total assets 460,556,410 438,298,314
£l Liabilities
[F] SE A7 Deposits from banks 21 95,913,287 71,509,818
K 7[?%’( Deposits from customers 22 248,488,483 259,758,216
i1 AE 4 Al B 1R Derivative financial liabilities 28 837,580 560,280
DA B it H H A2 B FH A Financial liabilities at fair value through
15 4 19 <5 1 4 £ profit or loss 325,250 682,396
PEAT B a8 25 Debt issued 29 14,520,898 12,212,414
BATAE T Certificates of deposit issued 30 63,410,958 57,877,497
JRE A5 T A5 B Income tax payable 346,743 321,934
PRI I 158 & A5 Deferred tax liabilities 23 695 155,085
HoAh 2 5 Other liabilities 6,357,111 5,606,572
481 Total liabilities 430,201,005 408,684,212
R £ Equity
JgeA Issued share capital 24 588,920 588,920
fiti At Reserves 29,766,485 29,025,182
Horp: — ik %% il Includes : General regulatory reserve 336,178 1,146,737
e B A A Specific regulatory reserve 821,920 -
U PitiEms Gt Totalequity .. 30,355405 29614102
UV ER Total equity and liabilities 460,556,410 438,298,314
Hy HE S it o S M

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2023

H1 335 142 2 FA 5 2k 19 B 50 40

The notes on pages 33 to 142 form part of these financial statements.
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% 1) Financial Information Disclosure (in Accordance with MFRSs)

Bt % & %Financial Statements
& 4 # 25 2 B R Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_Z - +-A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
i
Reserves
DR |
A HE BAHE bl AN Gt
Issued Jhe A 51 e Investment Cash flow Foreign Al ok Bt
share Share Legall  revaluation hedge exchange Other Retained At
capital Premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total
Wit THME THM TR THM THM5 THM5 THM5 THM THM5
Notes MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP000
20241H1H At 1 January 2022 588,920 5,885,733 631,773 57,958 635 2,444 1,193,714 21,531,480 29,892,657
R Eﬁ%ﬂi% Impact of adopting New MFRSs
LV Z 22 = - - 10,274 - - - - 10,274
202411 H At 1 January 2022, as adjusted 588,920 5,885,733 631,773 68,232 635 2,444 1,193,714 21,531,480 29,902,931
A HE Profit for the year = = = - = - = 2,293,897 2,293,897
EJ‘; Hib&Aald/  Other comprehensive income/
(R BLEER (loss) for the year, net of tax:
DA B S Charge for impairment loss of
BEE AR ME A UE  debt securities at fair value
2R through other comprehensive
income - - - 5,768 - - - - 5,768
DA A RS Change in fair value of debt
R AME B securities measured at
ZEAEAAEEES  fair value through other
comprehensive income - - - (1,133,145) - - - - (1,133,145)
BEMER AR Transfer from investment
revaluation reserve to profits
or loss = = = (61,125) = = = = (61,125)
KEUAREMEEE Change in investment revaluation
HEM AR AbE S reserve of equity investments
Mi WREGBB N designated at fair value through
fﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬂ other comprehensive income - - - (1,883) = = = = (1,883)
BERBENTAZA  Change in fair value of cash flow
AEESEE hedging instrument - - - - (4,289) - - - (4,289)
AR Exchange difference - - - - - 2902 = - 2902
L3 k? & (R%) /Ud Total comprehensive (loss)/
G income for the year, net of tax 5 = 5 (1,190,385) (4,289) 2902 5 2,293,897 1,102,125
ﬁ- %ﬁﬂﬁf-’i HEENER Transfer from retained profits to
legal reserve 25 - - 9,130 - - - - (9,130 -
R L ﬁ%ﬁ whER Transfer from other reserves to
(##2) retained profits (nofe 2) = = = S o > (30,000) 30,000 -
SR TR A Dividend paid to shareholders 24(b) = = = - = - = (333,526) (333,526)
FZAMCME K#EHH)  Change in provision under
B R (711 AMCM Rales (note 1) = = = = = = 11,361 (11,361) =
2022412311 At 31 December 2022 588,920 5,885,733 640,903 (1,122,153) (3,654) 5,346 1,175,075 23,501,360 30,671,530
20211 H1H At 1 January 2021 588,920 5,885,733 624,403 383,954 (889) (1,470) 920,042 19,894,936 28,295,629
20214 B4 2 - Changes in equity for 2021:
A HH Profit for the year = - = - = - = 2,269,747 2,269,747
FEAfEEERRE  Charge for impairment loss of
dﬁ (BB IEE available-for-sale investment
FZ during the year net of the
income tax effect = = = 7,186 = = = = 7,186
R E R BN Change in fair value of available-
ARBEEBMRT  for-sale investment during
B the year net of the income tax
effect . - . (155,413) . . . . (155,413)
fLEM AR AEE  Transfer from investment
revaluation reserve to profit or
loss - - - (177,769) - - - - (177,769)
FEBRRREEMMA  Changes in fair value of cash flow
ﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬂ?ﬂ[‘%@f % hedge during the year net of
(b4 income tax effect - = = = 1,524 = o = 1,54
B qﬂlﬁ@ﬁ: i Transfer from retained profits to
s legal reserve 25 = = 7,370 = = = = (7,370) =
et va ) Transfer from retained profits to
Wl 4 (712) other reserve (ote 2) = = = = = = 30,000 (30,000) =
e 51 Exchange difference - - - - - 3914 - - 3914
ST B A A Dividend paid to shareholders 24(b) = = = = = = = (352,161) (352,161)
TRIEAMCME R Change in provision under
BRI (L) AMCM Rules (note 1) - - - - - - U372 (243672) -
20214 12H31H At 31 December 2021 588,920 5,885,733 631,773 57,958 635 2,444 1,193,714 21,531,480 29,892,657
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FEl:

A S ) 3 B P A A IR P R AE o B A SR R A T R
4 Dok {1 4 A5 120 A 25 B S R B DA R B S A% R A 40 1k e AR
A BRAEINE > A% 48 [ B A7 i 4 A BC A R A o 1R 20224F 12 H 31
H o HoAth frt i H BT 603 19 B3R 208 AiE i A5 2 B 48 (Al £91,158,097,600
M e (F 48 %61,316,020,00088 M Je 0 B 48 4E Bl 3K157,922,40018
M o0 1% 4 %) (20214F12H31H : 1,146,736,8001 [ o » % 48 %8
1,303,110,00018 ['] 7T 41 B 4 FE B 3K156,373,20018 "] JT. 4% 4 % 5 2020
F12H31H 1 903,064,80018 M IC » £y 48 %1,026,210,0008 [ 5T 1 B
A S B 5123,145,20008 [ JC A% 4 4H) > AR PR IR P 4 R BRI E
ToANT] 53 B o B8 A7 Wi 2 4 2 At o A T DR 5% 5 4 5 ot A B 4 BT
BRI & AR -

F2 ¢

J AR 202145 1 E 5 30T 24 ) AR (IR P ) A R B 4 A B R 4
i BR F G A LI R QR PTG (5527/97/M3RTE4) B IE %R
HE 1 #77460,000,00018 1 70 B A 1 S AR 223K > 20214F > A< 48 [ %
30,000,000{% ] JCAE B4 77 i 25 B8 LA i 445 5 20224F1H > B4 58
JAE > SO % A SRR HLAt Rl i A R A AR o

HH 335 142 U2 A B R 19 B 5535640 -

o T SRAT (R IR A B W
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

BE_F_FF A= HIRFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Note 1 :

The Group complies with AMCM requirement to maintain regulatory reserve in excess
of the Group’s impairment allowance for loans and advances to customers and financial
guarantee contracts estimated through the transfer of retained profits to other reserves. As at
31 December 2022, an amount of MOP1,158,097,600 (being gross amount of MOP1,316,020,000
net of deferred tax MOP157,922,400) (31 December 2021: MOP1,146,736,800, being
gross amount of MOP1,303,110,000 net of deferred tax MOP156,373,200; 31 December
2020: MOP903,064,800, being gross amount of MOP1,026,210,000 net of deferred tax
MOP123,145,200) was included in other reserves which is not distributable under AMCM’s
requirement. The transfers from retained profits to other reserves were due to the increase in

required regulatory reserves during the years.

Note 2:

Pursuant to the shareholder’s approval in 2021 for capital increase for the subsidiary, ICBC
(Macau) Pension Fund Management Company, to fulfil the minimum capital requirement
of MOP60,000,000 due to the amendment to the Macau Insurance Ordinance (Decree-Law
No. 27/97/M), the Group transferred MOP30,000,000 from retained earnings to other
reserves in 2021; in January 2022, the capital increase was completed, such amount was thus

transferred from other reserves to retained earnings.

The notes on pages 33 to 142 form part of these financial statements.
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FE 12 % B & Statement of Changes in Equity

WEF -+ A=t+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

it
Reserves
TERHE
A BB bl AN Gt
Issued BAwE el Investment Cash flow Foreign Al ok Bt
share Share Legal  revaluation hedge exchange Other Retained At
capital Premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total
Mt TR THM TR THM THM5E THM THM THME THM
Notes MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP000 MOP’000 MOP000
2024 11H At 1 January 2022 588,920 5,885,733 588,920 59,120 635 2,444 1,163,714 21,324,616 29,614,102
RABQRMAERE  Impact of adopting New MFRSs
AR 22 - - - 10274 - - - - 10274
202241 1R At 1 January 2022, as adjusted 588,920 5,885,733 588,920 69,394 635 2,444 L163,714 21324616 29,624,376
KA Profit for the year - - - - - - - 2,248,500 2,248,500
Efgﬁéfﬂ‘%ﬁqﬁfl/ Other comprehensive income/
GBI BLEIHE . (loss) for the year, net of tax:
DA AR H A Charge for impairment loss of
Bt AR & At debt securities at fair value
I BERE through other comprehensive
income - - - 5,742 - - - - 5,742

DA AR F S Change in fair value of debt
Bt A& B securities measured at
ZEAAAEEES  fair value through other
comprehensive income - - - (1,125,292) - - - - (1,125,292)
S MG ERHAER  Transfer from investment
revaluation reserve to profits
or loss - - - (61,125) - - - - (61,125)
fRELVA U EEF R E Change in investment revaluation
SR AIMER  reserve of equity investments
ﬂiﬁmﬁ;ﬁft%ﬁﬁg 1l designated at fair value through

(R %S other comprehensive income - - - (1,883) - - - - (1,883)
BERBEMTAM  Change in fair value of cash flow

AEERS hedging instrument - - - - (4,289) - - - (4,289)
ERES Exchange difference - - - - - 2902 = = 2902
FRELA BK) /lth Total comprehensive (loss)/

Bk income for the year, net of tax = = = (1,182,558) (4,289) 2,902 = 2,248,500 1,064,555
TR R R A Dividend paid to shareholders 24(b) = = = = = = = (333,526) (333,526)
FZAMCME KR Change in provision under

B (1) AMCM Rules (note 1) = - = - = = 11,361 (11,361) =
20224121310 At 31 December 2022 588,920 5,885,733 588,920 (1,113,164) (3,654) 5,346 1,175,075 23,228,229 30,355,405
2201 ATH At 1 January 2021 588,920 5,885,733 588,920 386,975 (889) (1,470) 920,042 19,696,941 28,065,172
20204 W4 2 ) < Changes in equity for 2021:

ARAEFH Profit for the year = = = = = = = 2,003,508 2,223,508
Rk RS Change for impairment loss of
BEBRMRIEH  available-for-sale investment
¥ during the year net of the
income tax effect = = = 7,124 = = = = 7,124
GERER il ﬁ& % Change in fair value of available-
MAREEZHME  for-sale investment during
FriaBl e the year net of the income tax
effect - - - (157,143) - - - - (157,143)

REMERFEEARE  Transfer from investment
revaluation reserve to profit or
loss = = = (177,836) = = = = (177,836)
FEBRMEEME  Changes in fair value of cash flow
AEREHMG hedge during the year net of

i ye income tax effect = = = = 1,524 = - = 1,524
e 522 Exchange difference - - - - - 3914 - - 3914
SR R R A Dividend paid to shareholders 24(b) - - - - - - - (352,161) (352,161)
FAZAMCME KFEHE)  Change in provision under

SR (1) AMCM Rules (note 1) = - = - = - U367 (243672) -
202141211310 At 31 December 2021 588,920 5,885,733 588,920 59,120 635 2444 1,163,714 21,324,616 29,614,102
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4 Bt £ 77 & KConsolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE_F_FF A= HIRFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Kt aF T WM Tt
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
8T B i A W BL A R Cash flow from operating activities
il A1 Profit before tax 2,615,628 2,570,846
ik Adjustment for:
Preg Depreciation 10 58,342 54,914
FEdA Interest income 7 (10,481,992) (7,639,606)
LS Interest expense 7 6,517,588 3,371,696
P fefE(EsE = H A # 5 A Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
A 5 5 MR A 1 45 D through other comprehensive income
i B A 9 (6,285) -
A Ak R R A I IR Dividend income from available-for-sale investments
A 9 - (3,276)
BEEWE - BB ARk Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 9 286 343
B E LA A EEHE HI A2 H)  Net gains from disposal of financial asset at fair value
A H A 556 Wi B ) <6 through other comprehensive income
JE TR R 9 (61,125) -
Ji A R A R B Net gains from disposal of available-for-sale debt
5 4 investments 9 - (177,769)
& b T L (B R TR Net impairment losses on financial instruments 11 1,156,749 1,613,825
i 58,76 #H Foreign exchange difference 1,539,591 (823,149)
1,338,782 (1,032,176)
W) b A B 8 = {18 H 4R Increase in placements with other banks with original
EE3:)] maturity longer than three months (37,501,591) (28,731,021)
WG R 8 =8 A M BUR  Increase in treasury bills with original maturity longer
15 5 38 than three months (7,342,819) (3,599,635)
B S B Y () Decrease/(increase) in loans and advances 16,962,227 (974,719)
JRE WA R T B At 1Y 386 Increase in receivables and other assets (831,907) (3,494,857)
DA SR fE (B sEE HH A3 85 A Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value
B 45 1 4 Rl E Y D through profit or loss
(3gm) 357,228 (214,293)
[F] SE A7 B 1 Increase in deposits from banks 24,403,469 32,616,940
AR (HY) /s (Decrease)/increase in deposits from customers (11,199,806) 1,262,694
HAl AR (L) R (Decrease)/increase in other liabilities (387,811) 2,602,579
PAS SefE (st B H A8 E 5 A (Decrease)/increase in financial liabilities at fair value
B SR AN ),/ through profit or loss
4 m (357,146) 214,201
A 4 il 3 ) AT A Ml i Change in fair value of derivative financial assets and
AP X7 liabilities (481,648) 41,231
LA S Interest received 8,432,954 7,572,433
FE S Interest paid (4,907,968) (3,444,086)
WEEH (M), EAMB  Cash (used in)/generated from operations
£ (11,516,036) 2,819,291
KA AR Profits tax paid (301,525) (375,125)
BB (B R) A RBL  Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities
4 ¥ A (11,817,561) 2,444,166
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2022 2021
Kt aF T WM Tt
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
& B A A W BLA Cash flow from investing activities
DA e fE (B s H 85 A Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
oAt £ A i A 1 <6 Pl through other comprehensive income
A 1 1B Bl A 6,285 -
AL R A S Dividend received from available-for-sale investments
A - 3,276
WEE LA B E R B3 8)  Purchases of financial assets at fair value through other
A H A 5545 i i ) <6 comprehensive income
B (10,725,447) _
A= IR TR == e g Purchases of available-for-sale investments - (7,301,875)
DL B BN HH S B 5 A Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at fair
A 5 5 M5 A 19 4 Rl T value through other comprehensive income
[] 1] 15 13,279,841 -
AL S TR R el A Proceeds from redemption of available-for-sale
investments - 18,023,096
Wi S AR Bk B A T Y 4 Purchases of financial assets at amortised cost
G (68,555,997) -
BEEAFEAYE#E Purchases of held-to-maturity investments - (47,503,865)
DA B AR T Y <5 ol Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at
Wiz ] 1) 15 amortised cost 51,869,376 -
R 2 B H 5% Ui R 15 Proceeds from redemption of held-to-maturity
investments - 37,454,424
BEE W - R S A Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 3 -
W W - BB Rk At Purchases of property, plant and equipment 19 (70,909) (46,871)
WEEH (M), EAMTE  Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities
Bl (14,196,848) 628,185
FEEWHELENB SR Cash flows from financing activities
BT A7 2 I 4 Proceeds from issuance of certificates of deposit 141,165,021 112,234,882
Hg In] A Redemption of certificates of deposit issued (135,404,735) (118,037,378)
AT B g Proceeds from issuance of debts 2,349,426 4,016,050
VI [m] (5 75 ol 75 Redemption of debts issued - (4,016,250)
J B AT Dividends paid 24(b) (333,526) (352,161)
EEWHEAN, (M) Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities
B&W 32 7,776,186 (6,154,857)
BeRBESZEYNEIR DR Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (18,238,223) (3,082,506)
Wy kBES%EED Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 69,704,054 72,786,560
WIR B 4 K B4 2 Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 51,465,831 69,704,054
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BE_F_FF A= HIRFE
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2022 2021
M it TWMx TMM T
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
Bl & K B4 S5 W 8RB AT Analysis of balance of cash and cash equivalents
Bl KARAT A7 3K Cash and balances with banks 13 25,318,960 31,351,050
7 6 W SRy AR Deposits with monetary authority 9,355,240 5,373,369
PRkl Placements with other banks 102,014,992 75,467,442
I3 DABESR A FH A Treasury bills classified as financial assets at amortised
B R 2R HRE W cost/held-to-maturity investment
R4S 25 11,043,710 8,938,460
A MBI E P A E% Amounts shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position 147,732,902 121,130,321
Ji Je 1 R A =18 Y Amounts with an original maturity of beyond three
months (96,269,466) (51,427,201)
Bla KB &S EMIB(E¥EM  Impairment allowance provided for components of cash
and cash equivalents 2,395 934
FABHSWERPIB A LB Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement
EHEY of cash flows 51,465,831 69,704,054

FH 3381 142 BUR: BAHS 2 0 B sk 0 40 o

The notes on pages 33 to 142 form part of these financial statements.
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¥ 4 i & ®Statement of Cash Flows

BE_F _FF_H=E+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Kt aF T WM Tt
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
8T B i A W BL A R Cash flow from operating activities
i A 1 Profit before tax 2,564,178 2,518,126
A Adjustment for:
e Depreciation 10 57,583 54,004
FE WA Interest income 7 (10,476,618) (7,634,367)
LS Interest expense 7 6,520,558 3,373,669
DA SefE (B sl H 85 A Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
At A i A 1 < PO E AR through other comprehensive income
IS A 9 (6,285) -
AT R A S Dividend income from available-for-sale investments
A 9 = (3,276)
BEEWE - B iRk Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 9 285 339
Ji% DL S A R Net gains from disposal of financial assets at fair value
A 5515 Wi B ) <6 through other comprehensive income
JEE IR i 9 (61,125) -
B AT A R S Net gains from disposal of available-for-sale debt
i 4 investments 9 - (177,836)
45 il L3 8 2 O M Net impairment losses on financial instruments 11 1,156,641 1,613,762
[V 50, 75 % Foreign exchange difference 1,555,093 (823,044)
1,310,310 (1,078,623)
WG R 8 =8 A M85 Increase in placements with other banks with original
EE 3] maturity longer than three months (37,501,591) (28,731,021)
W16 9 BB 8 =8 I BUR Increase in treasury bills with original maturity longer
& Hm than three months (7,342,819) (3,599,635)
B BRI Y (B Decrease/(increase) in loans and advances 16,962,227 (974,719)
JRE ST R I B HeAh A Y Increase in receivables and other assets (833,945) (3,491,247)
IS SefE(E R B 85 A Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value
45 1 4 L E Y I through profit or loss
(387m) 357,228 (214,293)
] ZE A7 A 14 m Increase in deposits from banks 24,403,469 32,616,940
FPAEEE (WP) (Decrease)/increase in deposits from customers (11,269,733) 1,397,758
HoAl A (L) 1 (Decrease)/increase in other liabilities (375,474) 2,587,815
DA SefE (Rl B35 A (Decrease)/increase in financial liabilities at fair value
B AR B A RN ) through profit or loss
B (357,146) 214,201
A B AlE P AT B fif Change in fair value of derivative financial assets and
WA RAE(EEEE) liabilities (481,648) 41,231
B YRS Interest received 8,428,536 7,566,175
L S Interest paid (4,911,786) (3,445,256)
NGB () / AR Cash (used in)/ generated from operations
B (11,612,372) 2,889,326
A A5 B Profits tax paid (296,994) (370,404)
WEWB (BHM) EAMFE  Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities
Bl (11,909,366) 2,518,922
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BE_F_FF A= HIRFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Bt 7t T#M e Tt
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
& B A A W BLA Cash flow from investing activities
DA SefE (B s H 85 A Dividend received from financial assets at fair value
oAt £ A i A 1 <6 Pl through other comprehensive income
A A 6,285 =
]t R B A Dividend received from available-for-sale investments - 3,276
JEE LA RMEE R = HH S8 Purchases of financial assets at fair value through other
A At A5 i a4 4 comprehensive income
B (10,723,427) -
S A S A Purchases of available-for-sale investments - (7,237,203)
I fofE(ERE & B LB # 5 A Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at fair
A £ o i Y <0 P value through other comprehensive income
i ] A1) 15 13,263,713 =
AR B AR i ] R £ Proceeds from redemption of available-for-sale
investments - 17,987,090
I DB 5 AR R Y 4 Purchases of financial assets at amortised cost
HE (68,551,957) -
MEE A 28 H B Purchases of held-to-maturity investments - (47,503,865)
LR RS T 1 46 il Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at
Wi [8] 1) £5 amortised cost 51,853,247 -
AT 2 B H B R R A Proceeds from redemption of held-to-maturity
investments = 37,433,645
W E Y RE AR A5 Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment S -
WEE W - R E SR Purchases of property, plant and equipment 19 (70,909) (46,856)
WEEH (M), AEAMEFE  Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing
B& W activities (14,223,045) 636,087
B RN &R Cash flows from financing activities
BEATAT 2B IR 3 Proceeds from issuance of certificates of deposit 141,165,021 112,234,881
[ A7 2 Redemption of certificates of deposit issued (135,404,735) (118,037,379)
BEAT A 35 Utk Proceeds from issuance of debts 2,349,426 4,016,050
Hi I 15 8 Redemption of debts issued - (4,016,250)
J B AT Dividends paid 24(b) (333,526) (352,161)
EEWB AR (EHE) Net cash generated from/(used in) financing
FH & activities 32 7,776,186 (6,154,859)
e RBEEZEYNERD Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (18,356,225) (2,999,850)
WRB 4 RESZEY Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 69,674,634 72,674,484
WMARBERHAESEEYD Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 51,318,409 69,674,634
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2022 2021
Wit T8 o T WM T
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
Bl & K B4 S5 W 8RB AT Analysis of balance of cash and cash equivalents
Bl R SRAT A7 K Cash and balances with banks 13 25,171,618 31,321,630
7 6 W SRy AR Deposits with monetary authority 9,355,240 5,373,369
PRkl Placements with other banks 14 102,014,992 75,467,442
I3 AR A FH A Treasury bills classified as financial assets at amortised
R A BB WA B cost/held-to-maturity investment
B A& 7 16 11,043,710 8,938,460
AR5 IR L3R v A 4 Amounts shown in the statement of financial position 147,585,560 121,100,901
5 4 S0 R A0 = 081 ) ) 4 Amounts with an original maturity of beyond three
months (96,269,466) (51,427,201)
Bl KB S W Y [ YEMF  Impairment allowance provided for components of cash
and cash equivalents 2,315 934
Bl&mER PB4 K BI4%  Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash
akz flows 51,318,409 69,674,634

1335 142 B2 A B R 9 B 5535640 -

The notes on pages 33 to 142 form part of these financial statements.
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2.1
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Bt % 8 %Financial Statements

A § Bt 1 8 & M 3ENotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 7 YRt

op ) T SR AT (R B A BR S & (DA A [ AR
A7 1) B HIT B £519724F 76 R P BT 31 2E A 4R 1 ol L
§Eﬁ 20084E1 28 H > B T o 4R AT B A BRZA
A (DA RS TR R A7 1) BRUAS ol B 4R 1779.93% )
%%’&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂoiﬁﬁﬁﬁmw‘mw
120154 3 [H] 4 — 25 38 T 3 AR P 9 FR A L
B o B ZE20224F12 31 H > T SRATF A T 4R IR
89.33% 1 JEEHE (2021412431 H : 89.33%) °

RATE A 18 4T K3 FA T o 84T & F/A 7 (%
Bl 2y [ A SR 1) 1) 36065 0 e VR P B A6 SR AT ~ B I
AR B IR o ASAT (V9 S A 302 2B 2 P O K
FH K G B 5555 H 1 R 35 TR (JR M) 18 o

A 1) 2 B
f ALY

WEE A e ARAT 5 i 4 g IR M 7% 4 56532/93/ M55
DA AR G WP A A A I TR 55 44/2020%% 17 BT AR BT
S At L P S 25 45 e ) ) A o o ok T R B R
WG (#20214F LU EERL) ~ DA ARAE 5 H
Bt A bR SN S REE - fidkem T H
DLE VLA B ER R A EEH G ARG 2 2ME
AN 4 il B (R H A R B E N E A > HALIEE B
JE S A By Rl R LA o

Vb 255 S % 1) A 1) 5 22 TR A B - Al R A
B0 Ja L W OB BN 5 B R O Y
FVA AR R IR A - B AR ST
FUSRE R B R AR AT R AN F AN

B?hfv‘lluiﬁﬁﬁb R AT WA R A R o
(MOP) A=t =&MW » WMITIR G AT 2 hRE &
%ﬁ%ﬁ(ﬁl’aﬂl%ﬂ}\ﬂﬂ:m MOP’000) ©

A ] B

B E 202212 H 31 H 1k 4F B 1 BABS o R B 45 A 4T I
AL SR o RS O R TA
AR BLAAT — B & R R G S BUR o T
AL BB AR UL~ K84 R B A R A 4R B L
PR HRAA G EHRE AEAEH
PRI REA L o TEAR WS OF BT R I > A4
[ N 3B 22 oy S R A LIS R BB N 22 4 HE 4
JB R 3 EL AR -

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited (the “Bank”)
is previously known as Seng Heng Bank Limited (“SHB”) which has
been operating as a licensed bank in Macau since 1972. On 28 January
2008, 79.93% of the share capital of SHB was acquired by Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”) and since then, ICBC has
become the BanK’s ultimate holding company. ICBC further increased its
shareholding of the Bank during the years of 2009, 2010 and 2015. As at
31 December 2022, ICBC maintained 89.33% (31 December 2021: 89.33%)
shareholding of the Bank.

The Bank has 18 branches and 3 subsidiaries. The principal activities of
the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the provision of banking,
financial and related services in Macau. The BanK’s registered office is 18th
Floor, ICBC Tower, Macau Landmark, 555 Avenida da Amizade, Macau.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

The consolidated and the BanK’s financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the requirements as set out in Decree-Law No. 32/93/M
and the Macau Financial Reporting Standards issued under Administrative
Regulation No. 44/2020 of the Macau Special Administrative Region. These
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis, except for the financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments
(2021 comparatives only), derivative financial instruments, financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL’) which
have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses on a year-to-date basis. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements are presented in
Macau Patacas (“MOP”), which is the functional currency of the Bank, and
are rounded to the nearest thousand (MOP’000) except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Bank and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Bank, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
MACAU FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Financial Reporting Standards of Macau SAR was approved by Order
of the Secretary for Economy and Finance No. 44/2020 (the “New MFRS”)
have come into effect on 28 March 2020 and has replaced the Financial
Reporting Standards of Macau SAR as stated in Annex II of Administrative
Regulation No. 25/2005 (the “MFRS”).

The MFRS had adopted a selection of standards from the 2004 edition of
the International Financial Reporting Standards (the “IFRS”) including
framework for Preparation and Presentation of financial statements as well
as 16 standards. The New MFRS, on the other hand, have adopted the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting and all of the standards
and interpretations from the 2015 edition of the IFRS.

The New MFRSs are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022.

The following New MFRSs (Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting and all of the standards and interpretations from the 2015
edition of the IFRS) are the standards that are effective on or after
1 January 2022:

IAS* 1 - Presentation of Financial Statement

IAS 2 - Inventories

IAS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows

IAS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors

IAS 10 - Events after the Reporting Period

IAS 12 - Income Taxes

IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment

IAS 17 — Leases

IAS 19 - Employee Benefits

IAS 20 - Accounting for Government Grants and
Disclosure of Government Assistance

IAS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates

IAS 23 - Borrowing Costs

IAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

IAS 26 - Accounting and Reporting by Retirement
Benefit Plans

1AS 27 - Separate Financial Statements

IAS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

IAS 29 - Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies

IAS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation

IAS 33 - Earnings per Share

IAS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting

IAS 36 - Impairment of Assets

IAS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets

IAS 38 - Intangible Assets

IAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement
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(continued)

CEIBRErwt e RDES 4098 - B HE IAS 40 ~ Investment Property

CERBREr e RDE4198 - R IAS 41 - Agriculture

1B 5% B 5 st A ME 1)) — TR ER R I R A S R IFRS 1 - First-time adoption of International Financial
ESL HE Reporting Standards

CEIBR BB SR HE R - DA R BB 1 S A IFRS 2 — Share-based Payment
2%

CEIBREAES s e R - A E IFRS 3 - Business Combinations
SR3E

CE BRI A MERDY - REE A IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts
L

CE BB AR - AN E e g s IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Hisk Mg Discontinued Operations

<12 (8% B S k15 16 D — W G R RY H R AR A IFRS 6 - Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral
e Resources

I % P 55 ik o ¥4 L) - R TH PR IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures
S7%%

(R B RS ERID - KRB IFRS 8 - Operating Segments
SR8t

CEI B EAFS S e ALY - ST H IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
SO

CE BRI A HERDY - AR IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements
S10%E

< [BR] % B A5 i 4 E HI Y - Bk IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements
S115%

CEIBEEAFS s e By - B AL R P RERR Y IFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
551248 Wiz

CE BB A MERDY - AREEF= IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement
13458

CE BB o HE DY - RAEE HIIR T IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts
51455

CEIB A R - FFARIRA IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
55155

<R 3 o 5 o M e - BB AL - R IFRIC** Interpretation 1 — Changes in Existing Decommissioning,
INEYHEELE A 1Y 5 ) Restoration and Similar Liabilities

<l 5 B 75 A fof R - B AE G E 1 i IFRIC Interpretation 2 — Members’ Shares in Co-operative Entities and
UNCDE YA BrAFL TR Similar Instruments

<1 % B 5 e 5 e e - e HIBREGEY IFRIC Interpretation 4 - Determining whether an Arrangement Contains
OS54 fHE a Lease

R 3 o 5 o M e - B A%~ 1A BRI AR IFRIC Interpretation 5 - Rights to Interests arising from
NEDE S e R AR Decommissioning, Restoration and

Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

R 5 o s 4 £ e - S BLRE R A E TR’ IFRIC Interpretation 6 - Liabilities arising from Participating in a

I 65 5 T B E A Y Specific Market-Waste Electrical and
Bl Electronic Equipment

I % B 5 e s i — M FACE B e I 529 IFRIC Interpretation 7~ Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS

AT E - A BRI 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
FH ) B it ) e G T Economies

I % B 5 e 5 e e — r I B S S R (L IFRIC Interpretation 10 - Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
A )R 1058

<12 8% B S e o Mgt — MRS R I ke IFRIC Interpretation 12 - Service Concession Arrangements
YN EYERAVL
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
MACAU FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

IFRIC Interpretation 14 - IAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction

IFRIC Interpretation 16 - Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation
IFRIC Interpretation 17 - Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

IFRIC Interpretation 19 - Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

TFRIC Interpretation 20 - Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

IFRIC Interpretation 21 - Levies

SIC*** Interpretation 7 - Introduction of the Euro

SIC Interpretation 10 - Government Assistance — No Specific Relation
to Operating Activities

SIC Interpretation 15 - Operating Leases-Incentives

SIC Interpretation 25 - Income Taxes — Changes in the Tax Status of an
Entity or its Shareholders

SIC Interpretation 27 - Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease

SIC Interpretation 29 - Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures

SIC Interpretation 32 - Intangible Assets-Web Site Costs

& International Accounting Standards (“IAS”)
** International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”)
kxiss Standard Interpretations Committee (“SIC”)

The Group’s management considered the application of IFRS 8, IFRS 9 and
IFRS 15 would have material changes as described below.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
MACAU FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions
set out in IFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under expected credit loss (“ECL”)
model) retrospectively (except for designation of equity investments at
FVOCI at 1 January 2022) to instruments that have not been derecognised
as at 1 January 2022 (date of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been derecognised as at
1 January 2022. The difference between carrying amounts as at 31 December
2021 and the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2022 are recognised in the
opening retained profits and other components of equity, without restating
comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under the MFRSs.

Accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 9 are disclosed in
The table below illustrates the classification and measurement and the

impact on opening balance of financial assets and financial liabilities and
other items due to initial application of IFRS 9.

IFRS 938 T i 4 38

New classification under IFRS 9

2.2 FRFHT 0 B ARG T i ORI B 5 e o5 1 1)) 2.2
(%)
(continued)
<12 e Bt 7 s 34 B DS 9 55% IFRS 9
AR A BRI I B 5 s e E B 25055 AR R 157
FHE - $2022F1H1H KR CE R H ) K& 1T
TR 4 T H AR R E AT AR A R R (A TE
fF BB AT M) - B k20225F1H1H B
#1E FERR Y B R T BN HE % E R 0 20214F12H 31
HI 19 B 1 R 1 B20224F 1 H 1 H 1 B i 1 2 [T 19 2=
BT A A B8 A7 i g A0 At RE 25 > FAS R A L R
B -
A A P S i D 5 i A Y U A o A B
BB R LT EEG M -
BRI [ B 75 i 5 Y R ) S 99 4R BH 1 & T BUR 7 2
S EE2.3 note 2.3.
IR TR G 53 KRN 4% BRI R A 5 ik 4 HE B
SO 4 RH A W E - 4 A RN A TH B A
FRAA Y 52 -
J5 43 H
Original classification
SRE B
Financial assets
Bl RARATAT 3K ORI B K
Cash and balances with banks Loans and recelvables
FE B W R e AR E Wi 3K
Deposits with monetary authority Loans and recelvables
ik 7] 2 KRN E TR

Placements with other banks
fir A= 4 Rl & e

Derivative financial assets
Loans and advances

AL AR TR

Available-for-sale investments

DL fofe (e et i HOR S B sk AR 22 19
G AhE

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL)

FrA ZB W HE

Held-to-maturity investments

Hifth &

Other assets

Loans and recelvables
LA B (E & B B A B
FVTPL

R % R i K

Loans and recelvables

AR R R

Available-for-sale

PAA B EEE S H AR
(48 5E)
FVTPL (designated)

Ee g EE EURE
Held to- maturity
AR IR Wi 3K

Loans and recelvables

DLHE AR A T

Amortised cost*

DB R AR T

Amortised cost*

DL 5 A T 1

Amortised cost*

LA A A H S #) 5 A B4

FVTPL

DB R A T

Amortised cost*

LA B R H IS H) 5k A H A 45 Al e

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI)*

u“ﬁ%ﬁl;ﬂﬁ B F AR A
(€=

FVTPL (designated)

E\L

DLHE AR A 5 i
Amortised cost*
DLHEER A T

Amortised cost*
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<l e S 785 e+ 3 B )5 0% (D)

(continued)

IFRS 9 (continued)

Ji oy

Original classification

IFRS 9JH T #i /3 31

New classification under IFRS 9

£ NN

Financial liabilities

IF] A7 ik

Deposits from banks

HE K

Deposits from customers

7 A 4 A R

Derivative financial liabilities

VA Bt B I st A AR 1
5

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

B RSEF

Debts issued

BEATAF

Certificates of deposit issued

HoAth £ 1

Other liabilities

DU B i A T

Amortised cost

DU % n A it

Amortised cost

DA o R H S E)E A E 4R
FVTPL

LA B (EFH & B B 5 A B

FVTPL

DI BR BUA T &
Amortised cost
DU B i A T i
Amortised cost
DU % n A w5t

Amortised cost

DU B i A T i

Amortised cost

DU % n At

Amortised cost

LA o R H LS EEh A E 4
FVTPL

LA B (E R B B 5 AR

FVTPL

DI BR AT &
Amortised cost
DU B i A T i
Amortised cost
DU % n At

Amortised cost

38

& 202241 1H > A 343 51 2 LU R AR 51 *

Y < T R LA O AU BT E H LS B A A
o AR P (R0 450 2 R 8 75 i o Y B 259
e A EOR FHE NS R DA R R
HOFC S ) A FEAt A5 A i 2 1O HE 25 T80 AN B
FHIE R -

The financial assets classificated as amortised cost and debt investments

at FVOCI are subject to ECL as at 1 January 2022 in accordance with the
Group’s updated accounting policies under IFRS 9. Equity investments at
FVOCI are not subject to ECL.
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(continued)

<12 ¢ Bt 7 s 34 I ) SE 9 95% (s80) IFRS 9 (continued)

T ERFUR T20224F1 H 1 H A )51 )5 4 Bl e B 1A
{51 3 5 42 HACIB P8 B 5 i 4 B D SR 9 9% T 1 371

The following table shows the reconciliation of the original measurement
(including impairment) to the new measurement (including impairment)

71 1 B T A E - determined in accordance with IFRS 9 for each class of the Group’s
financial assets as at 1 January 2022.
T#M o
MOP’000
IFRS 9%H T iy
D5 V% i 5 £ HAM ik 9 V% i 6 £
Original New carrying
carrying amount Reclassification Remeasurement  amount under IFRS 9
4 b B
Financial assets
Bl RARAT AR K
Cash and balances with banks 31,351,050 - - 31,351,050
TR W Ry e
Deposits with monetary authority 5,373,369 - - 5,373,369
5 ik 7] 2
Placements with other banks 75,467,442 - - 75,467,442
AT A 4 Al
Derivative financial assets 352,035 - - 352,035
BRI EGK
Loans and advances 230,672,782 - - 230,672,782
CIRCR g
Available-for-sale investments 36,819,318 (36,819,318) - -
DA ot (T BI85 A 4R &
Wi i Y 46 B
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income - 36,819,318 10,274 36,829,592
DA B s BB 5 AR SR
B RE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss 682,622 - - 682,622
FrA £ 3 W H &
Held-to-maturity investments 51,943,733 (51,943,733) - -
DL 6 A 5T 2 1 <6 il O
Financial assets at amortised cost - 51,943,733 - 51,943,733
HoAb & e
Other assets 1,528,317 - - 1,528,317
HE £
Equity
BOEAh E
Investment revaluation reserve 57,958 - 10,274 68,232
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2.2 BRALHT R S 88106 5T B B b 25 3 4 v HI) ) 2.2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
(41) MACAU FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

w4k Available-for-sale investments

L 77 59350 2% ] H R 2 1 1 B A 5 S From AFS equity investments to FVOCI

YA T T A1 12 H KA B i A KA 47 s -

A A [ T A LR KE A T R S A The Group elected to present in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) for
oS BB B A H A AL S doas > P e aT DR the fair value changes of all its equity investments previously classified
7 11 6 B (L AR 50 s 9 R i A R T 4 as available-for-sale, of which MOP10,176,000 related to unquoted
B 7510,176,0001R [ 0 - ZHE R EW LIS 5 H equity investments previously measured at cost less impairment. These
T A - S L TE TS @ A R TE A A e investments are not held for trading and not expected to be sold in
R20224E1 H1H > B Al B E A T A L the foreseeable future. At the date of initial application of IFRS 9,
A AR H R E) R AL S5 5 A i HE 45 MOP10,176,000 were reclassified from available-for-sale investments to
BT HE A A AE A £510,176,0000 1 T > 2 Fo 8 (E equity instruments at FVOCL. The fair value gains of MOP10,274,000
S H A A SR A YRS 19 45 45 10,274,00008 [ T relating to those unquoted equity investments previously carried at cost

less impairment were adjusted to equity instruments at FVOCI and
investment revaluation reserve as at 1 January 2022.

L B 4155 % ] B H B I A5 57 B Y B 7 A 7 UL From AFS debt investments to FVOCI
A T A AR B it A KA A W s o
Ay AL B R A B A AR E B R R B Debt securities with a fair value of MOP36,809,142,000 were reclassified
S T A A Ui g 0 4 O E Y BRI Ao from available-for-sale investments to financial assets at FVOCI, as these
{8 7936,809,142,00008 "] G » PRI 15 A7 5% <6 Fll 5 8 114 2 investments are held within a business model whose objective is achieved
W5 A 2 2 DA A R] B 4 I o R o A <l by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling of these assets and the
Zy BRI B RS A B R S A AR contractual cash flows of these investments are solely payments of principal
AR R A S SR A IR RS - and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
TER BT T U A I B S R UE ) S 05k ik The following table analyses the impact, net of tax, of transition to IFRS 9
R 09 5 2B (B A% 4 R0 o R 2 A9 G At A 0B 70 R 32 on reserves. There is no impact on other components of equity.
b2

ErdcgngiRz (]

Investment

revaluation reserve
Tt
MOP’000

R JHIFRS 91y 3%
Impact of adopting IFRS 9
WK BREA (20214F121318)
Closing balance (31 December 2021) 57,958
T 3t A SR 0T T R A DL S B (R R A L A AR A W R A e Rl
Reclassification and remeasurement of available-for-sale investments to financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 10,274

FEIFRS OffE 7 19 10 R A8 (20224F1H1H)
Opening balance under IFRS 9 (1 January 2022) 68,232
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
MACAU FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

Investments previously classified as held-to-maturity investments are
reclassified and measured at amortised cost upon application of IFRS 9.
The Group intends to hold the assets to maturity to collect contractual
cash flows and these cash flows consist solely of payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. There was no difference
between the previous carrying amount and the revised carrying amount at
1 January 2022.

Financial liabilities

The carrying amounts for all financial liabilities at 1 January 2022 have not
been impacted by the initial application of IFRS 9.

IFRS 15

The Group has applied IFRS 15 for the first time in the current year. IFRS
15 superseded IAS 18 Revenue and the related interpretations. The Group
has applied IFRS 15 retrospectively with the cumulative effect (if any) of
initially applying this standard recognised at the date of initial application,
1 January 2022. Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained profits (or other components of equity,
as appropriate) and comparative information has not been restated.

Furthermore, in accordance with the transition provisions in IFRS 15, the
Group has elected to apply the standard retrospectively only to contracts
that are not completed at 1 January 2022. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under IAS 18 Revenue and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises fee and commission income which arises from
contracts with customers.

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and the accounting
policies resulting from application of IFRS 15 are disclosed in note 2.3(t).

IFRS 15 has no significant impact on the Group’s existing accounting
policies on revenue recognition for the above revenue source. The
application of IFRS 15 has had no material impact on the Group’ retained
profits as at 1 January 2022.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it has power over the investee, is exposed,
or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Bank’s profit or
loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The Bank’s
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses
unless they are held for sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Related parties

(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

®

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(2)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person

in their dealings with the entity.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
a property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of the
lease term and 50 years

1 to 10 years

4 to 10 years

Leasehold land under finance
leases and buildings

Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles and equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement of the asset is determined
as the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

()

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes, or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. The Group adopts the cost method for its investment
properties in which the properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Depreciation
is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
investment property to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:
Land and Buildings 50 years

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the profit or loss in the period of the
retirement or disposal.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value
of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments
under finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases
are charged to the profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic
rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the profit
or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(g)

Investments and other financial assets

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of IFRS 9)

Financial assets are measured initially at fair value. All
regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured at amortised
cost.

After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. For financial instruments
other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired; For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If
the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in interest income in the profit or loss.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(g)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of IFRS 9) (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Financial assets that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling and the contractual terms give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
are measured at FVOCL

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
securities classified as at FVOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, and
foreign exchange gains and losses, are recognised in profit or
loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these debt
securities are recognised in OCI and accumulated under
the heading of investment revaluation reserve. Impairment
allowance are recognised in profit or loss with corresponding
adjustment to OCI without reducing the carrying amounts
of these debt securities. The impairment amounts that are
recognised in profit or loss are the same as the amounts that
would have been recognised in profit or loss if these debt
securities had been measured at amortised cost. When these
debt securities are derecognised, the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.

At the date of initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis)
to designate investments in equity instruments as at FVOCI.

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in OCI and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve; and are
not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain
or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of
the equity investments, and will be transferred to retained
profits.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’ right to receive
the dividends is established in accordance with IFRS 9,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the “other
operating income” line item in profit or loss.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(g)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of IFRS 9) (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include all
financial assets that are neither financial assets at amortised
cost nor financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. The Group may irrevocably
designated a financial asset that are required to be measured
at the amortised cost or FVOCI as measured at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value with changes in fair value presented as other operating
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. These
net fair value changes include interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2.3(t).

Initial recognition and measurement (before application of
IFRS 9)

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments and available-for-sale investments, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition. Financial assets are
measured initially at fair value, which normally will be equal
to the transaction price plus, in case of a financial asset not
held at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed immediately.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(g)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(iii)

Classification of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the balance sheet at fair value with changes in fair
value presented as other operating income in the income
statement. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which
are recognised in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 2.3(t).

The Group evaluates its financial assets classified held for
trading to assess whether the intention to sell in the near
term is still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets and management’s intention to sell in the foreseeable
future significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify
them. The reclassification from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss to loans and receivables, available-
for-sale assets or held-to-maturity investments depends on
the nature of the assets. This evaluation does not apply to
any financial assets designated at fair value through profit
or loss using the fair value option at designation, as these
instruments cannot be reclassified after initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in interest
income in the income statement. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the profit and loss.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(g)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(iii)

Classification of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9)

(continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity investments when the Group has the positive
intention and ability to hold the financial assets to maturity.
Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method
less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in interest income in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in
the profit and loss.

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt
securities. Equity investments classified as available-for-sale
are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities
in this category are those which are intended to be held for a
period of time and which may be sold in response to needs
for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, except for unquoted
equity investments whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, with unrealized gains or losses recognised in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the profit and loss, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve to the income statement.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-
for-sale investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
profit and loss in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 2.3(t).

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment and (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

All the following three conditions are required to meet for “pass-
through” arrangement: (a) the Group has no obligation to pay
amounts to the eventual recipients unless it collects equivalent
amounts from the original asset; (b) the Group is prohibited by the
terms of the transfer contract from selling or pledging the original
asset other than as security to the eventual recipients for the
obligation to pay them cash flows; (c) the Group has an obligation
to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual
recipients without material delay.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an AFS financial asset or an investment in
a debt instrument classified as at FVOCI upon application of
IFRS 9, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVOCI
upon application of IFRS 9, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

Modification of financial assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual cash
flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified, the
Group assesses whether the revised terms result in a substantial
modification from original terms taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances including qualitative factors. If qualitative
assessment is not conclusive, the Group considers the terms are
substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees
received, and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is
beyond a threshold different from the discounted present value of
the remaining cash flows of the original financial asset.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial assets will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial assets’
original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred
are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified financial assets
and are amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial asset is recognised in profit or loss
at the date of modification.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

@)

Impairment of financial assets
Measurement of ECL

The Group recognises impairment allowances for expected credit
loss (“ECL’) model under the BanKs current accounting policy on
the following financial instruments:

- Cash and balances with banks;

- Deposits with monetary authority;

- Placements with other banks;

- Loans and advances;

- Debt securities classified as financial assets at FVOCI (upon
application of IFRS 9) or available-for-sale investments (before
application of IFRS 9);

- Receivables and other assets ;

- Financial assets amortised cost (upon application of IFRS 9)
or held-to-maturity investments (before application of IFRS
9);

- Financial guarantee contracts; and
= Loan commitments.

Equity instruments classified as available-for-sale investments
(before application of IFRS 9) or financial assets at FVOCI (upon
application of IFRS 9), derivative financial instruments and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses under
different economic scenarios. They are measured as:

Exposure at Default x Probability of Default x Loss Given Default
Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and

the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group measures impairment allowances for 12-month or
lifetime ECL using a 3-stage approach as follows:

R BE il ke RIS
Stage Description Impairment Loss
L. <2 T EAE T JRLRR 1B ) R it 4 R B 1240 7 B FEEE THH K

Credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly

since initial recognition

2. A T ELAF T LB A 0 i e 4R B

Credit risk on the financial instrument has increased significantly since

initial recognition

3. B A IR 0 <5 D H (R R B 3

Financial instruments (except for loans and advances) that are considered

as credit-impaired

3. BEAEAF (L 0 B ORI B (B ) I 5% o 5 i o Y B D 359 5% 2 )

Loans and advances that are considered as credit-impaired (before application

BRI

12-month ECL

AW A AU FE G R AR R
Lifetime ECL

AR AR U TE A Rk
Lifetime ECL

MR PR AR 45 [ 55t J) 5 3 4 A K
5 18199348 H 27 H £518/93-AMCM
%A PR T A R

Higher of amount calculated based on the

of IFRS 9) Group’s accounting policies or provision

calculated in accordance with the notice No.

18/93-AMCM of 27 August 1993

3. BRI (L A B0 S (BRI R B 5 o5 e D SR 0 e 2 4R B AT TR 5 TR R

Loans and advances that are considered as credit-impaired (upon

application of IFRS 9)

BRI [ B 5 sk 4 B R ) B8 958 2 A » A 4R
V¥ 422 (1) IR R B 05 i o Y6 LD D2 9 5% 1Y 2 5K
FHE M A E 5 R (2) AR PR Y 4 A PR
19934E8 /127 H 4518/93- AMCM%E 78 BK 51 & il
HE W 2 R TR A B
5 = By BOUE IR 2% -

F20224F 1A 1 H B T [ B 5 4 4 4 D 26
9R 2 AR - Fe IRCIEN ¢ B 5 i £ J D SR o e wt
RO BGRE0 = P BOR E AR

Lifetime ECL

Before application of IFRS 9, stage 3 impairment loss of loans and
advances was measured as higher of the amount calculated based
on IFRS 9 requirement or provision calculated in accordance with
the notice No. 18/93-AMCM of 27 August 1993 issued by AMCM.

Upon application of IFRS 9 since 1 January 2022, stage 3
impairment loss of loans and advances was measured in accordance
with IFRS 9.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

@)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

In both years, the Group complies with AMCM requirement to
maintain regulatory reserve in excess of the Groups impairment
allowance for loans and advances. When the minimum provision
under the relevant AMCM rules is higher than the impairment
allowance made under the Group’s accounting policy which is
in accordance with IFRS 9, the Group transfers the additionally
required amount from retained profits to other reserves.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date. Life-time ECL is the ECL that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of the
financial instrument.

The Group recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

A discount factor considering the residual maturity and effective
interest rate is used to account for the time value of money in the
ECL model.

The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
(including a loan commitment) has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition. The Group considers the
following criteria in assess the significant increase in credit risk.

- Notch difference analysis of internal or external rating
change;

- Days past due (“DPD”) of 30 days (60 DPD for credit card
portfolio*);

- Loan classification of Special Mention loan portfolio; or
- Stage consistency with other group entities for the borrower
loan grading (for non-retail portfolio only).

* For credit card portfolio, 30 days presumption for increase in credit
risk was rebutted based on the Group’s consideration on its historical

hit rate results as compare with the market practice.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

@)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

For loan commitments and financial guarantee, the date of initial
recognition for the purpose of assessing ECL is considered to be the
date that the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment.
In assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition of a loan commitment and financial
guarantee, the Group considers changes in the risk of default
occurring on the loan to which the loan commitment and financial
guarantee relates.

Default

Financial instruments with any of the following characteristics will
be classified as stage 3:

- DPD of 90 days;

- Loan classification of Substandard, Doubtful and Loss
portfolio; or

- Exposures in the non-performing loan list including cross
default situation.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk and credit-
impaired is performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECL is re-measured at each reporting date to reflect changes in
the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as a charge or reversal of
impairment in profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment
loss or reversal for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for available-for-sale investments (before application
of IFRS 9) or financial assets at FVOCI (upon application of IFRS 9),
for which the loss allowance is recognised in profit or loss without
adjustment to their carrying amount at fair value.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

@)

()

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the consolidated and the Bank’s
statements of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL is presented in the statement of financial
position as follows:

- financial assets except for debt securities classified as
available-for-sale investments: as a deduction from the gross
carrying amount;

- loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts:
generally, as a provision;

- debt securities classified as available-for-sale investments
(before application of IFRS 9) and financial assets at FVOCI
(upon application of IFRS 9): no loss allowance is recognised
in the statement of financial position as the carrying amount
of these assets is their fair value. However, the loss allowance
is disclosed separately and is recognised in the profit or loss.

Write-off

Financial assets are written off with related impairment allowances
(either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is the case when the Group determines that the
borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts (upon application of IFRS 9)

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

For financial guarantee contracts, they are initially recognised as
financial liabilities at fair value on the date the guarantee was given
and subsequently measured at the higher of (i) the amount of the
loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, accumulated amortisation recognised over the life of
the guarantee on a straight-line basis.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Financial liabilities

(i)

(ii)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss or at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at
initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
adjusted for transaction costs in case of financial liabilities
not measured at FVTPL.

The Groups financial liabilities include deposits from banks
and customers, other financial liabilities, derivative financial
liabilities, debts and certificates of deposit issued and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
includes financial liabilities held for trading and other
financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the profit or loss includes any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at FVTPL are stated at fair
value, with any gains or losses arising on changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any interest paid.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Financial liabilities (continued)

(ii)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group’s financial liabilities at amortised cost include
deposits from banks and customers, debts and certificates of
deposit issued and other financial liabilities.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities at amortised
cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are
recognised in the profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and include fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in interest
expenses in the profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligations under the
liability are discharged, cancelled, or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or loss.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined with reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations, without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions,
reference to the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same, a discounted cash flow analysis, and other
valuation models.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(0)

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group enters derivative financial instruments, such as currency
swaps, forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps based
on customer demands, or to hedge its foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk, respectively. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the profit or loss, except where the derivatives
are qualified for hedge accounting (note 2.3(n)), in which case
recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of
the item being hedged.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by
reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts with
similar maturity profiles. The fair value of interest rate swap
contracts is determined using a discount cash flow analysis by
taking the present value of the expected cash flows discounted at
appropriate discount rates reflecting fair value.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments
in qualifying hedging relationships. On initial designation of the
hedge, the Group formally documents the relationship between
the hedging instruments and hedged items, including the risk
management objective and strategy in undertaking the hedge.
Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis,
the Group documents whether the hedging instrument is highly
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

For hedge effectiveness assessment, the Group considers whether
the hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged
risk, which is when the hedging relationships meet all of the
following hedge effectiveness requirements:

- there is an economic relationship between the hedged item
and the hedging instrument;

- the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes
that result from that economic relationship; and
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Hedge accounting (continued)

- the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as
that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that
the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging
instrument that the entity actually uses to hedge that
quantity of hedged item.

Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as the hedging instrument
as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset
or liability or highly probable forecast transaction that could affect
profit or loss, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of
the derivative is recognised and presented in the cash flow hedge
reserve within equity. Any ineffective portion of changes in the
fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in profit
or loss. The amount accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve
is reclassified from cash flow hedge reserve to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment in the same period as the hedged cash
flows affect profit or loss.

If the hedging derivative expires or is sold, terminated or exercised,
or the hedge no longer meets the criteria for cash flow hedge
accounting, or the hedge designation is revoked, then hedge
accounting is discontinued prospectively.

Fair value hedges

When a derivative is designated as the hedging instrument in a
hedge of the change in fair value of a recognised asset or liability
or a firm commitment that could affect profit or loss, changes in
the fair value of the derivative are recognised immediately in profit
or loss. The change in fair value of the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk is recognised in profit or loss. If the hedged item
would otherwise be measured at cost or amortised cost, then its
carrying amount is adjusted accordingly. Any adjustment up to the
point of discontinuation to a hedged item for which the effective
interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss as part of the
recalculated effective interest rate of the item over its remaining life.

If the hedging derivative expires or is sold, terminated or exercised,
or the hedge no longer meets the criteria for fair value hedge
accounting, or the hedge designation is revoked, then hedge
accounting is discontinued prospectively.

On hedge discontinuation, any hedging adjustment made previously
to a hedged financial instrument for which the effective interest
method is used is amortised to profit or loss by adjusting the
effective interest rate of the hedged item from the date on which
amortisation begins. If the hedged item is derecognised, then the
adjustment is recognised immediately in profit or loss when the
item is derecognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(@)

(r)

(s)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated and the BanK’s statements of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the Group’s control, or a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised either because an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation but is not probable or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the profit or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts are recognised directly in equity.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

- when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carried forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

(i) Revenue recognition (upon application of IFRS 15)
The Group adopts five step process for recognising revenue
from contracts with customers

Identify the contract with the customer

Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Determine the transaction price

= 8B =

Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

5. Recognise revenue when, or as, the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a service that is distinct
or a series of distinct services that are substantially the same.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(®

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Revenue recognition (upon application of IFRS 15) (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Groups performance as
the Group performs;

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Revenue recognition (before application of IFRS 15)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably.

Interest income and expense
Upon application of IFRS 9

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired.
For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)  Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest income and expense (continued)
Before application of IFRS 9

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost
and interest-bearing financial assets classified as available-
for-sale, interest income or expense is recorded using the
effective interest rate method, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset or financial liability. The calculation takes
into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees
or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
instrument and are an integral part of the effective interest
rate, but not future credit losses.

The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability is adjusted if the Group revises its estimates of
payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is
calculated based on the original effective interest rate and the
change in carrying amount is recorded as “Other operating
income”

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group
of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an
impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognised
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
However, loans overdue over 3 months do not recognise
interest income.

Fee and commission income

Income from service is recognised when the Group fulfils its
performance obligation, either over time or at a point in time
on a basis when a customer obtains control of the service.

Fee and commission income from loans and advances are
either recognised over time at a fixed or variable price on
a systematic basis over the life of the agreement when the
contract requires services to be provided over time, or
recognised at a point in time when the related performance
obligation has been fulfilled; fee and commission income
from security and insurance agency services fees are
recognised as revenue at a point in time when the securities
or insurance brokerage services are rendered and the
performance obligations are satisfied; credit card fees
are recognised at a point in time when card issuance or
consumption services completed and the performance
obligations are satisfied.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(®

(u)

W)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(v)  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to
receive the payment is established.

(vi)  Rental income

Rental income is recognised over time on a time proportion
basis over the lease terms.
(vii)  Net trading income
Results arising from trading activities include all gains and
losses from changes in fair value, including related interest
income or expense and dividend incomes for financial assets

and financial liabilities held for trading, except for those
designated in cash flow hedging relationships.

Employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme for all of its employees, including key management
personnel. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
participating employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
scheme.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Macau Patacas (“MOP”),
which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
All differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are taken to the profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the non-monetary item.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(v)  Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of one overseas subsidiary and one
overseas representative office are currencies other than the MOP. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the Bank at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their profit or loss are translated into MOP at the average exchange
rates for the period.

The resulting exchange differences are accumulated in the foreign
exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the amount
recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas entities are translated into MOP at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas entities which arise throughout the
period are translated into MOP at the average exchange rates for the
period.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of the ECL allowance for financial assets measured
at amortised cost and FVOCI and with exposure arising from loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts is an area that requires the
use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic
conditions and credit behavior (the likelihood of customers defaulting
and the resulting losses). Refer to note 2.3(i) for ECL policy and note 4.3
credit risk for the explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation
techniques used in measuring ECL.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The risks associated with the financial instruments include liquidity risk,
credit risk, market risk (foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk). The management of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and
effective manner.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

41 WMEBESE 4.1  Liquidity tables
R Rl T A 4R A R B R R R A A The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
FHH - maturity for its assets and liabilities.
(%518 B 3 P o0) (Equivalent in MOP million)
L] The Group
2022412H31H
31 December 2022
AEW
&
Wy AMA  13@MA 3-12fA 154 RRs%E > 1A Mgt
Repayable Undated/
on Up to 1-3 3-12 Over overdue
demand one month months months  1-5 years 5years > 1 month Total
% Assets
B RARTTAF 3 A7 Cash and balances with
B W SR 3OE banks and deposits with
monetary authority 15,680 2411 = 7,228 = - 9,355 34,674
Pl 3 Placements with other banks - 22,494 39,721 37,472 2,216 112 - 102,015
BRI AR Loans and advances 1,381 8,408 8,019 24,109 79,779 88,994 2,433 213,123
DI A ERHE L% Financial assets at fair value
Bt A8 45 1 8 R through profit or loss
7 325 - - - - - - 325
DI o fE (st B % Financial assets at FVOCI
Bt A H A 55 Wi ad
1 4 il 5 - - 1,339 3,299 25,814 1,331 22 31,805
DIBESR A GHERY 4 Financial assets at amortised
G cost - 13,443 7,182 28,039 21,473 - - 70,137
FT A 4 TG Derivative financial assets - 156 304 108 538 - - 1,106
BOE M Investment properties = = = = = = 49 49
LUERN & Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 281 281
JRE i R TE e H A Receivables and other assets 5,468 136 332 712 527 8 - 7,183
JRE M BT A5 B Income tax receivable - - - - - - 59 52
BEE Total assets 22,854 47,048 56,897 100,967 130,347 90,445 12,192 460,750
£ Liabilities
EF K Deposits from customers 52,306 84,651 60,694 48,847 1,798 - - 24829
IF] AR AL Deposits from banks 6,203 35,269 44,507 6,211 3,723 - - 95,913
e & A H Derivative financial liabilities - 75 122 106 535 = = 838
AT R Debts issued - - - - 6,291 7,630 600 14,521
BTk Certificates of deposit issued - 11,444 43,687 8,280 - - - 63,411
DI RME(ER 2 HH%  Financial liabilities at fair
BEt ASE A 10 2 value through profit or loss
A - - 325 - - - - 325
HA & 5 Other liabilities 4,092 815 738 440 161 5 167 6,418
305 A T A5 o 4 {2 Deferred tax liabilities - - - - = = 2 2
JEE S0 13 Bt Income tax payable = = = = = - 354 354
AR Total liabilities 62,601 132,254 150,073 63,884 12,508 7,635 1,123 430,078
% Bk Sk O Net liquidity gap (39,747) (85,206) (93,176) 37,083 117,839 82,810 11,069 30,672
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4. S B s L ) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.1 {lzlfﬁ ﬁfi‘fc‘% (%) Liquidity tables (continued)
(15 A E M oT) (Equivalent in MOP million)
S () The Group (continued)
20214E12 31 H CR& )
31 December 2021 (Unaudited)
~Em/
ek
M ARmA 1A 3128 A 15 RS > 1A Hast
Repayable Undated/
on Up to 1-3 3-12 Over overdue
demand one month months months 1-5 years 5years > 1 month Total
& Assets
B4 RARTT K XAZIL Cash and balances with
B M SR AKOH banks and deposits with
monetary authority 22,501 6,440 2,410 = = = 5,373 36,724
S GES Placements with other banks - 32,902 18,282 19,656 3,824 803 - 75,467
e UE T Loans and advances 2,341 5,248 11,017 24,205 88,088 98,304 1,470 230,673
PIA B (AR 2 B % Financial assets at fair value
BEt AR SRS through profit or loss
B 16 77 427 163 = = = 683
Ak E R Available-for-sale investments = = 2,576 9,292 24,084 867 = 36,819
HAZIWARE Held-to-maturity investments = 6,608 6,389 22,895 16,052 - = 51,944
i &g E Derivative financial assets = 17 67 62 206 = = 352
PGS Investment property - - - - - - 50 50
VEN NS Property, plant and equipment - - = - - - 268 268
JRE SR T B HAh e Receivables and other assets 4,637 20 86 126 501 6 = 5,376
JRE W T 58 Income tax receivable = = = = = = 41 41
MG Total assets 29,495 51,312 41,254 76,399 132,755 99,980 7,202 438,397
il Liabilities
EF R Deposits from customers 46,330 60,784 83,885 66,063 2,434 = - 259,496
IF] SE A I Deposits from banks 2,984 41,137 11,370 12,198 3,821 = = 71,510
it &ma Derivative financial liabilities = 221 63 275 1 = = 560
BT S Debts issued = = = = 3,981 7,631 600 12,212
BT Certificates of deposit issued = 14,516 19,286 24,075 = = = 57,877
DI B ERHE HH % Financial liabilities at fair
BEE AR 1 S A value through profit or loss
f& - 77 443 162 - - - 682
HAth & Other liabilities 4,479 284 215 356 219 = 127 5,680
AL TS Bl A 1 Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - - 158 158
JRE B30T 53 B Income tax payable = = = = = = 329 329
B Total liabilities 53,793 117,019 115,262 103,129 10,456 7,631 1,214 408,504
i 8 s 1 ¥ Net liquidity gap (24298)  (65707)  (74,008)  (26,730) 122,299 92,349 5,988 29,893
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4. AR B A B (e 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.1 {ﬁ@jﬁﬁi@(?g) Liquidity tables (continued)
({0 B H# M) (Equivalent in MOP million)
AT The Bank
20224E12H31H
31 December 2022
AEW,/
i
My ARA 1-3WA 312 A 1-546  RWs%E >1A Hat
Repayable Undated/
on Up to 1-3 3-12 Over overdue
demand one month  months months  1-5 years 5years > 1 month Total
& i Assets
B4 RRATAE S A7 Cash and balances with
B SR #OH banks and deposits with
monetary authority 15,533 2,411 - 7,228 - - 9,355 34,527
iy G ES Placements with other banks = 22,494 39,721 37,472 2,216 112 = 102,015
BT K Loans and advances 1,381 8,408 8,019 24,109 79,779 88,994 2433 213,123
DI A fE (AR E HH % Financial assets at fair value
LB DN E AR through profit or loss
P 325 = = = = = = 325
DI A fE (AR E HH % Financial assets at FVOCI
Bk AH A& Al AR
Y 463 il = = 1,339 3,299 25,724 1,331 21 31,714
DI A= A4 M Financial assets at amortised
HE cost = 13,443 7,182 28,039 21,448 = = 70,112
T &g Derivative financial assets - 156 304 108 538 = = 1,106
BER/AGIL: Interests in subsidiaries - - - - - - 80 80
L/ESY & ] Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 281 281
JRE WS 3R TE B HAh e Receivables and other assets 5,506 136 332 712 527 8 = 7,221
JRE WS Ir 15 B Income tax receivable = = = = = = 52 52
mEE Total assets 22,745 47,048 56,897 100,967 130,232 90,445 12,222 460,556
£ 1 Liabilities
EF K Deposits from customers 52,471 84,659 60,706 48,854 1,798 - - 248488
IF] SEAF L Deposits from banks 6,204 35,269 44,506 6,211 3,723 - - 95,913
firHE e A g Derivative financial liabilities - 75 122 106 535 = = 838
PATETS a7 Debts issued = = - = 6,291 7,630 600 14,521
BATAR Certificates of deposit issued - 11,444 43,687 8,280 - - - 63,411
DI BRI E B4 Financial liabilities at fair
Bt AR 2 S value through profit or loss
£ 1% = = 325 = = = = 325
oA 5 Other liabilities 4,031 815 738 440 161 5 168 6,358
TSR 2K Income tax payable - - - - - - 347 347
HAR Total liabilities 62,706 132,262 150,084 63,891 12,508 7,635 1,115 430,201
B P B 1R £ Net liquidity gap (39,961)  (85,214)  (93,187) 37,076 117,724 82,810 11,107 30,355
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4. iR A P o) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.1 {lzlfﬁ ﬁfi‘fc‘% (%) Liquidity tables (continued)
(15 A E M oT) (Equivalent in MOP million)
84T (4) The Bank (continued)
20214F12H31H (R & FEH)
31 December 2021 (Unaudited)
REM,/
piik:C
B @A 1A 312 A 15 Rivs®E > 1A Mgt
Repayable Undated/
on Up to 1-3 3-12 Over overdue
demand  one month months months  1-5 years 5years > 1 month Total
293 Assets
Bl RARTTAF 3 A7 AL Cash and balances with
B SR R OE banks and deposits with
monetary authority 22,473 6,440 2,409 = = = 5,373 36,695
e dEES Placements with other banks S 32,902 18,282 19,656 3,824 803 = 75,467
LR BER Loans and advances 2,341 5,248 11,017 24,205 88,088 98,304 1,470 230,673
PIAREER = H %i’;f Financial assets at fair value
Bt AR S RE through profit or loss
7 = 77 443 163 - = = 683
AL R Available-for-sale investments = = 2,577 9,276 23,988 867 = 36,708
A ZEM AR Held-to-maturity investments - 6,608 6,389 22,895 16,027 - - 51,919
MR EE Derivative financial assets - 17 67 62 206 - - 352
SR/ Interests in subsidiaries - - - - - - 80 80
L/ESY & ] Property, plant and equipment = = = = - - 267 267
JRE W 7 B R At B Receivables and other assets 4,675 19 86 126 501 6 - 5,413
JRE e o A5 B Income tax receivable = = = = = 41 41
MR Total assets 29,489 51,311 41,270 76,383 132,634 99,980 7,231 438,298
£ Liabilities
EFHEHK Deposits from customers 46,403 60,784 83,935 66,166 2,470 = - 259,758
REZi Deposits from banks 2,983 41,137 11,371 12,198 3,821 - - 71,510
i 4 A AR Derivative financial liabilities = 220 64 275 1 = = 560
BT S Debts issued = = = = 3,981 7,631 600 12,212
BATAR G Certificates of deposit issued - 14,516 19,285 24,076 - - - 57,877
PIARfEER = A ,H\ %  Financial liabilities at fair
BEt AN S RA value through profit or loss
& = 77 443 162 = - S 682
Hib A Other liabilities 4,407 284 214 356 219 = 126 5,606
IR FIT 190 £ A Deferred tax liabilities = = S = = - 156 156
JRE B30T 753 B Income tax payable - - - - - = 323 323
=R Total liabilities 53,793 117,018 115,312 103,233 10,492 7,631 1,205 408,684
B Sk O Net liquidity gap (24,304) (65,707) (74,042) (26,850) 122,142 92,349 6,026 29,614
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4. SR R A P o) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.1 {JZIE@'J ﬁ ﬁii% (%) 4.1 Liquidity tables (continued)
AL ] 4 T H R SS9 BRG] B e A The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the Group’s
A H AT o it R I E A R R & financial instruments based on the contractual undiscounted cash
WA SMAL > HILFRP LR E W flows. The balances of some items in the tables below are different
B BRI B B BB IR D3R op A B E from the balances on the statements of financial position as the
tables incorporate all cash flows relating to both principal and
interest.
(S (H B M T o) (Equivalent in MOP million)
£ H The Group
20224F12H31H
31 December 2022
A %346 A 3-12f6 A 1-54¢ RR 54 A E W sk
More than  More than
3 months 1 year
Less than and up to and up to Over
3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Undated Total
B A Deposits from customers 198,571 49,706 1,798 - - 250,075
[ SEAF K Deposits from banks 86,410 6,282 3,930 - - 96,622
AT w8 I MO Debts and certificates of deposit
A7 % issued 55,357 8,611 7,225 8,034 600 79,827
DA SefE(ERE B B Financial liabilities at fair value
BHEIGEAMEAE &M through profit or loss
H 1A 325 - - - = 325
HoA & i Other liabilities 1,770 440 77 5 = 2,292
AR Total liabilities 342,433 65,039 13,030 8,039 600 429,141
A B & Derivatives cash flows
i AE 4 il T B AR AR Derivative financial instruments
w#wH settled on net basis:
- BWA — Total inflow - 1 1 = = 2
- BB - Total outflow - - - - - -
firA: 4 i T2 D) 4a % Derivative financial instruments
i settled on gross basis:
- IR - Total inflow 43,332 3,065 = = = 46,397
- B - Total outflow 45,012 3,131 - - - 48,143

73



o T SRAT UL R R A
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

ZR AR
Annual Report 2022

4. b R A BE (a0 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.1 {JZIE@'J ﬁ ﬁii% (%) 4.1 Liquidity tables (continued)
(47 18 & #MFT0) (Equivalent in MOP million)
#iy The Bank
20224F12H31H
31 December 2022
A3 A 3-12f# H 1-54F RAs4E A E W At
More than  More than
3 months 1 year
Less than and up to and up to Over
3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Undated Total
B Deposits from customers 198,591 49,713 1,798 - - 250,102
[|] ZE 17 ik Deposits from banks 86,410 6,282 3,930 - - 96,622
BEATREHS W 5 S BT Debts and certificates of deposit
AF issued 55,357 8,611 7,225 8,034 600 79,827
DA fefE(Ent 2 B Financial liabilities at fair value
BEFE AN EM  through profit or loss
=L 325 = = = = 325
FoAb & £ Other liabilities 1,770 440 77 5 = 2,292
A Total liabilities 342,453 65,046 13,030 8,039 600 429,168
(TR R Derivatives cash flows
A7 A 4 b T B DA VR AR Derivative financial instruments
w#wH settled on net basis:
- BWRA - Total inflow - 1 1 = = 2
- BB — Total outflow - - - - - -
A 4 b T 5 DL A Derivative financial instruments
E settled on gross basis:
- B - Total inflow 43,332 3,065 = = = 46,397
- K - Total outflow 45,012 3,131 = - = 48,143
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4. b b B (a0 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
41 WHEESEGE) 4.1 Liquidity tables (continued)
(15 A E M oT) (Equivalent in MOP million)
£ The Group
20214F12 H31 H CREEFH )
31 December 2021 (unaudited)
Dk afE H 3-1218 H 1-54F RIS A st
More than More than
3 months 1 year
Less than and up to and up to Over
3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Undated Total
P IEK Deposits from customers 206,202 66,922 2,480 = = 275,604
] ZE7F K Deposits from banks 55,529 12,264 3,866 = = 71,659
BEATAEH i 5 JOEEAT Debts and certificates of deposit
AE e issued 33,886 24,332 4,922 8,035 600 71,775
A Total liabilities 295,617 103,518 11,268 8,035 600 419,038
(TR R Derivatives cash flows
fir A= 4 i TR D AR Derivative financial instruments
e settled on net basis:
- WA - Total inflow - = 2 = = 2
- B - Total outflow = = 1 = = 1
fir A 4 Rt T H DL KA %R Derivative financial instruments
A settled on gross basis:
- BWA - Total inflow 18,448 19,961 - - - 38,409
- K - Total outflow 18,449 20,274 = = = 38,723
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4. iR A P o) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
41 WHEESEGE) 4.1 Liquidity tables (continued)
(15 A E M oT) (Equivalent in MOP million)
#iy The Bank
20214F12 H31 H CREEFH )
31 December 2021 (unaudited)
Dk afE H 3-1218 H 1-54F RIS A st
More than More than
3 months 1 year
Less than and up to and up to Over
3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Undated Total
P IEK Deposits from customers 206,326 67,061 2,480 = = 275,867
] ZE7F K Deposits from banks 55,529 12,264 3,866 = = 71,659
BEATAEH i 5 JOEEAT Debts and certificates of deposit
AE e issued 33,886 24,332 4,922 8,035 600 71,775
A Total liabilities 295,741 103,657 11,268 8,035 600 419,301
(TR R Derivatives cash flows
fir A= 4 i TR D AR Derivative financial instruments
e settled on net basis:
- WA - Total inflow - = 2 = = 2
- B — Total outflow - - 1 - - 1
A 4 b T 5 DL A A Derivative financial instruments
A settled on gross basis:
- B - Total inflow 18,448 19,961 - - - 38,409
- K - Total outflow 18,449 20,274 = = = 38,723
AR - A B2 [ BLASAT B B B (R R A0 < The below shows the contractual amounts of the Group’s and Bank’s
THIEF IR o JHAE - 3288 off-balance sheet financial instruments as at year end. An outflow
B D AT AR A b R v d LY IR R B o of this amount could in principle occur in the earliest time band in
the above tables.
2022 2021
THM e Tt
MOP’000 MOP’000
e Guarantees 14,119,383 12,008,958
4% BT AE T R AR 1Y Commitments under letters of credit on behalf of customers
R 779,398 469,348
P48 O Undrawn loan commitments 60,214,945 71,914,621
At Total 75,113,726 84,392,927
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2

Fair value and fair value hierarchy

(a)

Fair value

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on market prices quoted at the end of the
reporting period.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives
or unlisted equity investments) is determined by using
valuation techniques.

Valuation techniques include net present value, comparison
to similar instruments for which market observable prices
exist and other valuation models. Assumptions and inputs
used in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark
interest rates, credit spreads and other parameters used in
estimating discount rates, bond and equity prices, foreign
currency exchange rates, equity and equity index prices and
expected price volatilities and correlations. The objective of
valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement
that reflects the price of the financial instrument that would
be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
reporting date.

The Group uses widely recognised valuation models
for determining the fair value of the common financial
instruments. The market data inputs are independent and
observable in the market which avoids any manipulation
of the fair values. Observable prices or model inputs are
usually available in the market for listed debt securities and
derivatives. The availability of observable market prices and
model inputs reduces the need for management judgement
and estimation and also reduces the uncertainty associated
with determining fair values. The availability of observable
market prices and inputs varies depending on the products
and markets and is prone to changes based on specific events
and general conditions in the financial markets.
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4. L RbE B A B s
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2

Fair value and fair value hierarchy (continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value (continued)

For more complex instruments, the Group uses valuation
models, which usually are developed from recognised
valuation methodologies. Some or all of the significant inputs
into these models may not be observable in the market, and
are derived from market prices or rates or are estimated
based on assumptions. Valuation models that employ
significant unobservable inputs require a higher degree of
management judgement and estimation in determination
of fair value. Management judgement and estimation are
usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation
model to be used, determination of appropriate discount
rates, and selection of comparable entities, etc.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs. This category
includes all instruments for which the valuation
technique includes inputs that are not observable
and the unobservable inputs have a significant
effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category
includes instruments that are valued based on quoted
prices for similar instruments for which significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required
to reflect differences between the instruments.
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4. SR R A P o) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
42 N FeAEAE B o e A g A R R () 4.2 Fair value and fair value hierarchy (continued)
(b) A AAEAE K (4) (b)  Fair value hierarchy (continued)
£ The Group
20224212 31H
31 December 2022
e B W= At
level 1 level 2 level 3 Total
THM THME TH#ME TH®ME
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
4 il B Financial assets
LA ﬂfﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬂ/ﬁ\?ﬁ@j #F A Financial assets at FVOCIL:
HoAth 45 A e 25 19 & bV RE
- i ~ Debt securities 19,663,671 12,119,658 = 31,783,329
— 4 S 7 — Equity securities - - 21,291 21,291
i A 4 i Derivative financial assets = 1,106,108 = 1,106,108
DA B (5 B A2 85t A Financial assets at fair value through
H i B 4 il profit or loss = 325,394 = 325,394
19,663,671 13,551,160 21,291 33,236,122
Ak A g Financial liabilities
i AE 4 il 4 A Derivative financial liabilities - (837,580) - (837,580)
VIS B {E R B 2 Byt A Financial liabilities at fair value through
H 4 145 & AR profit or loss - (325,250) = (325,250)
- (1,162,830) - (1,162,830)
AT The Bank
20224F12H31H
31 December 2022
B B0 BEIE st
level 1 level 2 level 3 Total
T e T e T e AR dbm
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
SR R Financial assets
DA fof8 fﬁ%’%ﬂy\:?@j #I A Financial assets at FVOCI:
oAb o Al g 1) <6 T E
- % - Debt securities 19,610,779 12,082,214 = 31,692,993
- i T O - Equity securities - - 21,291 21,291
it &g E Derivative financial assets = 1,106,108 = 1,106,108
LAy sufE (el i B H A ) 5H A Financial assets at fair value through
1 1 42 il profit or loss - 325,394 = 325,394
19,610,779 13,513,716 21,291 33,145,786
£l E Financial liabilities
A HE 4 A Derivative financial liabilities - (837,580) - (837,580)
VA2 e fB{E RE B B) 5t A Financial liabilities at fair value through
Ei= BN IS profit or loss = (325,250) = (325,250)
- (1,162,830) - (1,162,830)
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4. iR A P o) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
42 N FeAEAE B o e A g A R R () 4.2 Fair value and fair value hierarchy (continued)
(b) A AAEAE K (4) (b)  Fair value hierarchy (continued)
£ H The Group

20214F12 31 H CR&FESD)
31 December 2021 (unaudited)

B 9 oy i
level 1 level 2 level 3 Total
T T T IT T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
A A B Financial assets
Al kA A R Financial assets at AFS:

- % ~ Debt securities 17,712,456 19,096,686 = 36,809,142
A7 A= 42 Rl 7 Derivative financial assets = 352,035 = 352,035
DA fe s R HH 22851 A Financial assets at fair value through

8 45 119 <6l profit or loss - 682,622 = 682,622

17,712,456 20,131,343 - 37,843,799
Al E Financial liabilities
it Az 4 il £ AR Derivative financial liabilities = (560,280) = (560,280)
PAA B EHE H 2285 A Financial liabilities at fair value through
5 15 1Y 45 il B A profit or loss = (682,396) - (682,396)
= (1,242,676) - (1,242,676)
AT The Bank
20214F12 31 H CGRESH )
31 December 2021 (unaudited)
96— % e 3= Hst
level 1 level 2 level 3 Total
T M T FEM T FEM T T M
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
S A R Financial assets
Al A W E Financial assets at AFS:

- &% - Debt securities 17,687,917 19,009,630 = 36,697,547
fir A= 4 il & e Derivative financial assets - 352,035 - 352,035
DA B (5 H 8285 A Financial assets at fair value through

H 2 B 42 profit or loss = 682,622 = 682,622

17,687,917 20,044,287 - 37,732,204
4 b Financial liabilities
i A= 4 Rl B4 1K Derivative financial liabilities - (560,280) - (560,280)
DI AR HIL 82 )5 A Financial liabilities at fair value through
8 5 11 4 il & A profit or loss = (682,396) = (682,396)
- (1,242,676) - (1,242,676)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 Fair value and fair value hierarchy (continued)
(b)  Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Transfers between level 1, 2 and 3
The following table shows transfers between level 1, level 2

and level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and
liabilities which are recorded at fair value:

# The Group
RE_BEAE—E B — A g RE—BEAE=F
Transfers from level 2 to level 1~ Transfers from level 1 to level 2 Transfers from level 1 to level 3
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
T8 TH|MT F#M FHEMT T TR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
DA o A ST H L% B3t A Financial assets at fair value through
Joft 535 6 W Y other comprehensive income
% Debt securities 3,277,136 s 3,718,930 . = -
W] A Available-for-sale investments
% Debt securities - 5,471,888 - 7,851,090 - =
a7 The Bank
B EEAE B A RE—EHARE=
Transfers from level 2 to level 1~ Transfers from level 1 to level 2 Transfers from level 1 to level 3
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
T TH|ME THM THMT THRM e THMT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP000 MOP’000 MOP’000
DA R E G BI85 A Financial assets at fair value through
Foq 4 4 W 1Y 5 other comprehensive income
%5 Debt securities 3,241,719 = 3,718,930 = - =
B E Available-for-sale investments
% Debt securities - 5,455,483 - 7,851,090 - =

NSRS — - ZEZH
HBURS JE R 20 % 22 5 W) A B 0% R T
U5 B K -

A 5 5 4 G A e g
ECE  (20214F ¢ 4E) o

The transfers between levels 1 and 2 of the fair value
hierarchy was due to the emergence or disappearance of an
active market for the trading of the debt securities.

No financial assets were transferred into or out of level 3
during the year (2021: Nil).
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4. bR BE (a) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
42 N FeAEAE B o e A g A R R () 4.2 Fair value and fair value hierarchy (continued)
(b) A AAEAE K (4) (b)  Fair value hierarchy (continued)
AT EF 2195 = g2/ T R Movements in level 3 financial instruments measured at fair
& value
T RBUR N REE SRS =8 & The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening
il T 22 A B BRLAF A R A SO and closing amounts of level 3 financial assets which are
recorded at fair value:
202/FIHIA BESE R AIIRZ 20224
(#4TFRS 9HEHE) AR TTHM 4k 12/31H
1 January 2022 Unrealised gain
(as restated recorded 31 December
under IFRS 9) in equity 2022
T[T T8 T8
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
DI fo e (E R H 42851 A Financial assets at FVOCI:
HAth £ 45 Wi A Y < il E
- WE 45 476 — Equity securities 10,176 11,115 21,291
A B =T AE N B2 AT BlER 2 8 Information about significant unobservable inputs in level 3
EORBIR AN valuations are as follows:
R 1 16 45 fig B2 5% i A\ 20224F i B
Type of assets Valuation technique Significant unobservable input Range 2022

i 5

JE BT AA A EE R H ) Market-comparable approach
AT AH AR Al AR I ES T A

Unquoted equity instruments at FVOCI B EFE

Net asset value

T3 0.7f%-15.8f%
Price-to-Book multiples 0.7x-15.8x
I FHE AN

Net asset value N/A

JE L TIT AR A 2 AR (B ol T 3 b
BAGFEE o A SR AR R IR
FE R R AR o A o8 (B g
(B DA K TI 3% 135 S0 A I AR B o il A B E
o JEAR 0 A S N, 5%
A% B2 ] 1) A 5 A i 2 1 38 Bk
51,600 "] 0 7 4 1B 58 £ 40 BE RE 42
BB A Y T R A o A 45 A ik
TR A K o
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The fair values of unlisted equity shares are estimated using the
market-comparable approach, or net asset value if appropriate
comparables are not available. The fair value is positively correlated
to the net asset values and the price-to-book multiples. Had the
net asset value of the underlying equity investments increased/
decreased by 5%, the Group’s other comprehensive income would
have increased/decreased by MOP51,600; The Group considers
the impact of changes to the price-to-book multiples of the
underlying equity investments on its other comprehensive income is
immaterial.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Fair value and fair value hierarchy (continued)

(c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are estimated

as follows:

(i)

The carrying amounts of the Groups and the Bank’s
financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 except for
the following financial instruments, for which the fair
value hierarchy are level 2 and their carrying amounts
and fair value are disclosed below:

4% The Group
20224F12H31H
31 December 2022

IR T 4 2 AR

Carrying
amounts Fair value
FWM T 0
MOP’000 MOP’000
DA 6 B AS w15 1Y) 4 Tl Financial assets at amortised cost 70,136,576 68,811,685
AT SR Debts issued (14,520,898) (13,992,727)

AT The Bank
20224212 31H
31 December 2022

R Y 43 %R 2 REAE

Carrying
amounts Fair value
T WM T8t
MOP’000 MOP’000
DA B AN B 0 4 Financial assets at amortised cost 70,112,246 68,788,417
BT Debts issued (14,520,898) (13,992,727)
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4. L RbE B A B s 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

42 o SUAREAE B 2 o AR AE R AR (0

(c) DR A AT 7t 2819 2 LR (4)

4.2 Fair value and fair value hierarchy (continued)

(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

4 The Group
20214F12 431 H
31 December 2021
M 1A < AAEME
Carrying
amounts Fair value
THM 7T THM 7T
MOP’000 MOP’000
R 28 H & E Held-to-maturity investments 51,943,733 51,748,358
AT Debts issued (12,212,414) (12,491,297)
17 The Bank
20214F12H31H
31 December 2021
e A <6 A A RfEE
Carrying
amounts Fair value
THM T T T
MOP’000 MOP’000
R 22 0 E Held-to-maturity investments 51,919,227 51,723,487
AT Debts issued (12,212,414) (12,491,297)
(i) JARFH - PRI R IHE (ii)  Balances and placements with banks and monetary
Wk i Je 17 5k authority
T B ) 2 5 7ok [ 3 R AT 3K The fair values of floating rate placements and
B2 o fiE 8 BRI THT 2 AT 45 o overnight deposits are their carrying amounts. While
IE] 58 ) F A7 AR 2E 0 2 Fo i AE the fair value of fixed interest placements are based on
1R 2 B 4 Ui A A7 ok R 5 400 T the discounted cash flows using the prevailing money-
AT B (37 35 38 £ Y 4 T 105 6 IRy market interest rates and their remaining period up
HZ) o i A B AT 5% 55 A K3 IR to the date of maturity, the estimated fair values are
—FNEH - HMAFZ AR approximately equal to their carrying values since all
(B 49 55 A FCAR T < B o such placements are due in less than one year.
(i) B R#H (iii)  Loans and advances

84

B AR DA T R ek Y AR 4%
Bl 7R o Bk A 2y 5 K 5K
S HkBr A H B R ) A
FAR K o A AR 5 17 5 B R
5 T 17 DL AT A BB RO 2 A
FMEAE - AL 5 HA RE
(B AR SR T AN A A TR

Loans and advances are net of allowances for
impairment. All items, except for a small portion
of loans and advances, bear interest at a floating
rate. The Group has assessed the fair value of loans
and advances, after taking into account the relevant
market interest rates, and has noted that the total
fair value is not materially different from the total
carrying value.
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(iv)

()

(vi)

(vif)

R A 15 5 17 5 R AR g AT (il 7
K i £ B (HR T BT 75 7
2 HERIDFEOUEZ i)

A I BT 5 R AR A AT 0t
SEURE i 1L DA SR s 3 (i e
I -
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INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2

Fair value and fair value hierarchy (continued)

(c)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

Unquoted available-for-sale equity investments (before
application of IFRS 9)

The unquoted available-for-sale equity investments
have been stated at cost less any impairment loss.

Deposits from banks and customers

The estimated fair values of deposits from customers
and banks with no stated maturity and bearing
floating rates are their carrying values. The fair value
of fixed interest-bearing deposits from customers
and banks without quoted market price is based on
discounted cash flows using the interest rates for new
debts with similar remaining maturity and, since
their maturity is normally less than one year from
the end of the reporting period, their fair values are
approximately equal to their carrying values.

Certificates of deposit issued

The estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing
certificates of deposit is based on discounted cash
flows using the interest rates for new debts with
similar credit risk and remaining maturity. The Group
has assessed the fair value of certificates of deposit
issued after taking into account the relevant yield
curve and noted that their fair values is not materially
different to their carrying values.

Receivables and other assets and other liabilities

The other assets and other liabilities are measured
at amortised cost and the estimated fair value are
approximately equal to their carrying value.

85



o T SRAT UL R R A
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

4. L RbE B A B s
43 fg HEBE
(a) 15/ Kz E 2 R A 1E

15 PR B 2 4 R A AR\ B 3C 5 ) T i
T BT A AR S 1Y B o #RAF Rt
ARG B AR ORI B 16 5 1
Bk - BERHEEBE > e EEE
R R B o A% S8 10 T R A5 PR R >
TP AS L T 1 K~ A7 AR K TE AN
S AT o AR [ IR 8 7 H A 7 T T
EHE TR o AT A T HE LR
15 R > A AF ] IR A6 210 S JR) BR A Rl
BRAE A G BB IR DU R P AT 2R e il
BE o BLAh o AR S RGO
K e TT REZE SR L A R F ALK 7
AR IE AR Th s ) A0 K 1) 0 5 i [ o
] At A A1 [ 47 B R A L B
32 D[] b S JL e 42 o 7 o B TR S 2 i
R 7B

(b) BT A

A A B 3 7 4 T T 5L A R RR B 0 BA
TERBAR I 15 B B 8 0 DA I e 15
OB A5 I E - & B HH A
A B B RHRTE S AR o
4 Al T L = B B Y 2 255 2 R EE
2.3(1) 4 Bl A A o

B Ah > 7S 4 H 22 5 AMCMEE 51 5 &
o AR R A B T FOBE

86

4.

ZR AR
Annual Report 2022

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3

Credit risk

(a)

(b)

Definition and scope

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower or
counterparty’s failure to perform its obligations. Operational
failures which result in unauthorised or inappropriate
guarantees, financial commitments or investments by the
Group may also give rise to credit risk. The Group’s credit
risk is mainly attributable to its loans, due from banks and
other financial institutions and financial investments. The
Group is also exposed to credit risk in other areas. The credit
risk arising from derivative financial instruments is limited
to derivative financial assets recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In addition, the Group
provides guarantees for customers and may therefore be
required to make payments on their behalf. These payments
would be recovered from customers in accordance with the
terms of the agreement. Therefore, the Group assumes a
credit risk similar to that arising from loans and applies the
same risk control procedures and policies to reduce risks.

Credit risk assessment method

The Group classifies financial instruments into three stages
and makes provisions for expected credit loss accordingly,
depending on whether credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly and whether the
assets have become credit-impaired since initial recognition.
Refer to note 2.3(i) Impairment of financial assets for the
definition of the three stages.

In addition, the Group adopts loan grading criteria which
divide credit assets into five categories with reference to the
AMCM’s guidelines, as below:
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3

Credit risk (continued)

®)

(©)

Credit risk assessment method (continued)
Loan classification

. Pass: loans where borrowers are current in meeting
commitments and full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt;

. Special Mention: loans where borrowers are
experiencing difficulties which may threaten the
institution’s position;

. Substandard: loans where borrowers are displaying
a definable weakness that is likely to jeopardise
repayment;

. Doubtful: loans where collection in full is improbable

and the institution expects to sustain a loss of
principal and/or interest after taking account of the
net realisable value of security;

. Loss: loans which are considered uncollectible after
exhausting all collection efforts such as realisation of
collateral, institution of legal proceedings, etc.

Significant increase in credit risk

The assessment of significant increase in credit risk and
whether the assets have become credit-impaired since
initial recognition is performed at least on a monthly basis
for financial instruments held by the Group. The Group
takes into consideration all reasonable and supportable
information (including forward-looking information) that
reflects significant change in credit risk for the purposes of
classifying financial instruments. The main considerations
are regulatory and operating environment, internal and
external credit risk rating, debt-servicing capacity, operating
capabilities, contractual terms, and repayment records. The
Group compares the risk of default of a single financial
instrument or a portfolio of financial instruments with
similar credit risk characteristics as at the end of the
reporting period and its risk of default at the date of initial
recognition to determine changes in the risk of default over
the expected lifetime of a financial instrument or a portfolio
of financial instruments. In determining whether credit risk
of a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group considers factors indicating
whether the probability of default has risen sharply, whether
the financial instrument has been past due for more than 30
days, whether the market price has been falling continuously
and other indicators.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3

Credit risk (continued)

(d)

Parameters, assumptions and estimation techniques

ECL for a financial instrument is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL depending on
whether a significant increase in credit risk on that financial
instrument has occurred since initial recognition. The loss
allowance for loans and advances to customers, other than
those corporate loans and advance to customers which
are credit-impaired, is measured using the risk parameters
method. The key parameters include Probability of Default
(“PD”), Loss Given Default (“LGD”), and Exposure at
Default (“EAD”), considering the time value of money.

PD is the possibility that a customer will default on its
obligation within a certain period of time in light of forward-
looking information. The Groups PD is adjusted based on
the results of the Internal Ratings-Based Approach and
taking the forward-looking information into account and
deducting the prudential adjustment to reflect the debtor’s
point-in-time PD under the current macro-economic
environment.

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default.
The Group estimates LGD parameters based on the history
of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties,
taking into account forward-looking economic assumptions
where relevant. The LGD models consider the structure,
collateral, seniority of the claim, counterparty industry and
recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to the financial
asset.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of
a default. The Group derives the EAD from the current
exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the
current amount allowed under the contract and arising
from amortisation. The EAD of a financial asset is its
gross carrying amount at the time of default. For lending
commitments, the EADs are potential future amounts that
may be drawn under the contract, which are estimated based
on historical observations and forward-looking forecasts. For
financial guarantees, the EAD represents the amount of the
guaranteed exposure when the financial guarantee becomes
payable. For some financial assets, EAD is determined by
modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at various
points in time using scenario and statistical techniques.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation, such as
how the PDs and LGDs of different maturity profiles change
are monitored and reviewed on a quarterly basis by the
Group.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3

Credit risk (continued)

(d)

(e)

Parameters, assumptions and estimation techniques (continued)

There have been no significant changes in estimation
techniques or significant assumptions adopted in ECL
calculation during the year.

The impairment loss on corporate loans and advance to
customers is measured/calculated based on discounted cash
flow method. The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s gross carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The impairment
is recognised through an allowance account in the profit or

loss.

In determining allowances on an individual basis, the
following factors are considered:

1. The sustainability of the borrower’s business plan;

2. The borrower’s ability to improve performance when
a financial difficulty arises;

3. The estimated recoverable cash flows from projects
and liquidation;

4. The availability of other financial support and the
realisable value of collateral; and

5. The timing of the expected cash flows.

The Group incorporates management overlay to address
model ineffectiveness prospectively when necessary.

Forward-looking information contained in ECL

The Group incorporates forward-looking information
into both the assessment of whether the credit risk of
an instrument has increased significantly since its initial
recognition and the measurement of ECL.

The Group formulates three economic scenarios: a base case,
which is the median scenario assigned a 60% probability of
occurring, and two less likely scenarios, one upside and one
downside, assigned a 15% and 25% probability of occurring
respectively.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3

Credit risk (continued)

(e)

Forward-looking information contained in ECL (continued)

The Group has identified and documented key drivers of
credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial
instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has
estimated relationships between macro-economic variables
and credit risk and credit losses. Hong Kong unemployment
rate, Macau investment component in Macau GDP, Macau
unemployment rate, and China GDP differences are
considered as the key drivers of credit risk. The impact of
these economic variables on the PD and LGD has been
determined by performing statistical regression analysis to
understand the correlations among the historical changes
of the economic variables, PD and LGD. Forecasts of these
economic variables are carried out at least semi-annually
by the Group that provide the best estimate view of the
economy over the next year.

When calculating the weighted average ECL provision, the
Group determines the optimistic, neutral and pessimistic
scenarios and their weightings through a combination of
macro-statistical analysis and expert judgement.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has taken into account
different macro-economic scenarios, and made forward-
looking forecasts of macro-economic indicators. Of which,
the year-on-year Hong Kong and Macau unemployment
rates used to estimate ECL are 4.11% and 3.55%, respectively,
in the neutral scenario for 2023.

However, for credit card facilities that include both a loan
and an undrawn commitment component, the Group
measures ECL over a period longer than the maximum
contractual period if the Group’s contractual ability to
demand repayment and cancel the undrawn commitment
does not limit the Group’s exposure to credit losses to the
contractual notice period. These facilities do not have a
fixed term or repayment structure and are managed on a
collective basis. The Group can cancel them with immediate
effect but this contractual right is not enforced in the normal
day-to-day management, but only when the Group becomes
aware of an increase in credit risk at the facility level. This
longer period is estimated taking into account the credit risk
management actions that the Group expects to take, and that
serve to mitigate ECL. These include a reduction in limits,
cancellation of the facility and/or turning the outstanding
balance into a loan with fixed repayment terms.
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4. SR R A P o) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 {_LEFH EL l{,ﬁﬁ (%) 4.3 Credit risk (continued)
() KA B (f)  Maximum exposure to credit risk

PMBSRILE B > AR 1R AE
B e E R AR (BT A TR -
K J g W T R R T R 7B IS B A 4R

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit
risk for the components at the end of the reporting period,
including derivatives. The maximum exposure is based on

2 VEE A 5 B 1 B T < the carrying amounts net of offset and losses allowance.
TR R Ja gz i 1 Maximum exposure 4 #AT
The Group The Bank
2022 2021 2022 2021
TH#M FEM T TH#M FEM T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
T2 IR ZE 45 % Balances with other banks 23,708,359 28,404,825 23,561,017 28,375,405
A7 WCEE W SRy KO Deposits with monetary authority 9,355,240 5,373,369 9,355,240 5,373,369
LiyEES Placements with other banks 102,014,992 75,467,442 102,014,992 75,467,442
B I BGR Loans and advances 213,122,669 230,672,782 213,122,669 230,672,782
DA Fe e (E R H S8 51 A Financial assets at fair value through profit
% 11 4 Tl or loss 325,394 682,622 325,394 682,622
PAA B (R B8 B 5 A Financial assets at fair value through other
HoAth &5 A Wi g 19 4 il 2 comprehensive income 31,804,620 - 31,714,284 -
CIRERER-= kg <y Available-for-sale investments - 36,819,318 - 36,707,723
i & E Derivative financial assets 1,106,108 352,035 1,106,108 352,035
VAR BUAS 51 A9 4 L Financial assets at amortised cost 70,136,576 - 70,112,246 -
R 2808 H & & Held-to-maturity investments = 51,943,733 = 51,919,227
JRE WS T S At Receivables and other assets 3,822,326 809,412 3,822,326 809,412
st Total 455,396,284 430,525,538 455,134,276 430,360,017
FRIK Guarantees 14,119,383 12,008,958 14,119,383 12,008,958
5% 5 B S A I R AE 1Y Commitments under letters of credit on
i behalf of customers 779,398 469,348 779,398 469,348
AR R Undrawn loan commitments 60,214,945 71,914,621 60,214,945 71,914,621
Gl Total 75,113,726 84,392,927 75,113,726 84,392,927
15 R L B e 1 A S Total credit risk exposure 530,510,010 514,918,465 530,248,002 514,752,944
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3

Credit risk (continued)

()

Amounts arising from ECL

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
They are measured as follows:

- financial assets: as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, on probability-weighted
outcome, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition;

- undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of
the difference between the contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group if the commitment is drawn
down and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive; and

- financial guarantee contracts: the present value of
the expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the
Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor
or any other party.

The Group’s accounting policies in relation to ECL are set
out in note 2.3(i) to the consolidated financial statements.
The following tables show reconciliations from the opening
to the closing balance of the loss allowance for loans and
advances.
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4. iR KA BE () 4.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
43 {5 BB (30 4.3 Credit risk (continued)
(g) TG 18K A 02 5 (4) (g9  Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
BRI Loans and advances
A ] 5 R4 The Group and Bank

20224E12H31H
31 December 2022

B el 17 4 B el 17 4
WIS WS
2 A M H%k - REAE HE-O#A

5 R 155 F AR 155 F AR &t
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
T#M 7 T#M e T#Mt T#Mt
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
B M 2 S ) Movement in impairment allowances:
20224E1 1 H At 1 January 2022 669,584 317,179 1,785,729 2,772,492
51218 H IR TR Transfer to 12-month ECL 6,630 (5,953) (677) =
L R A7 48U U5 3B 2% Transfer to Lifetime not credit-impaired
(R T WUE) (61,603) 62,418 (815) =
2y R A 7 S5 W TEL (5 FH4H 2K Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-impaired
(B 2415 F W AE) (728) (3,834) 4,562 -
EH TR M4 (35 Net remeasurement of loss allowance
E 5, ] ) (including exchange adjustments) (24,295) 882,120 397,546 1,255,371
U5 A= B A B0 50 <2 il New financial assets originated or
purchased 146,197 20,708 - 166,905
EL#& L fERR 0 & & Financial assets that have been
derecognised (136,670) (42,109) (53,400) (232,179)
1 Write off - = (6,076) (6,076)
20224F12H31H At 31 December 2022 599,115 1,230,529 2,126,869 3,956,513
A Comprising of:
AR Advances to customers 596,045 1,230,529 2,109,910 3,936,484
SRAT[R] S BE3K Advances to banks 822 - - 822
[EEZ% 3 Trade bills 2,248 = 16,959 19,207
599,115 1,230,529 2,126,869 3,956,513

93



o R R SRAT (W) e AR A B2 ] TR TR

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED Annual Report 2022
4. it B B () 4.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
43 {5 BB (30 4.3 Credit risk (continued)
(g) TG 18K A 02 5 (4) (g9 Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
B K () Loans and advances (continued)
A5 [ WL AT (40) The Group and Bank (continued)

20214F12 31 H (REEHEFT)
31 December 2021 (unaudited)

e IR A A5 B 77 A

JAvE A £ JATE A £
RRATEY  HK - RBE BK-C8E

5 HE% 15 HWE 15 HBE Ak
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
E@? impaired impaired Total
T T T T T T T T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
B M 2 S ) Movement in impairment allowances:
20214F1H1H At 1 January 2021 825,626 509,150 213,629 1,548,405
5 1248 A FHAE FR K Transfer to 12-month ECL - - - -
L R A7 48U U5 I HE 2% Transfer to Lifetime not credit-impaired
(R B A5 FBUE) (36,342) 37,287 (945) =
2y R A8 7 45 ) FEU (5 4H 2K Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-impaired
(B3 A A5 M) (56) (488,086) 488,142 -
EH TR 4E (235 Net remeasurement of loss allowance
T 53, 4 ) (including exchange adjustments) (175,778) 273,591 1,490,326 1,588,139
RS YN HE A < Y New financial assets originated or
purchased 228,878 1,376 28,942 259,196
LA L SR & Financial assets that have been
derecognised (172,744) (16,139) (127,813) (316,696)
% 8 Write off = = (306,552) (306,552)
20214F12A31H At 31 December 2021 669,584 317,179 1,785,729 2,772,492
A Comprising of:
FHR Advances to customers 663,848 317,179 1,768,770 2,749,797
RATIR] 2E B Advances to banks 2,821 - - 2,821
[EE% 3 Trade bills 2,915 = 16,959 19,874
669,584 317,179 1,785,729 2,772,492
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4. SR R A P o) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 {_LEFH EL l{,ﬁﬁ (%) 4.3 Credit risk (continued)
(g) TG 18K A 02 5 (4) (g9  Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
B2 BGR AR T AT R R Reconciliation of gross carrying amount of loans and

advances is as follow:

BB Loans and advances
4 ) WL AT The Group and Bank
2022412 31H

31 December 2022

Bl 17 4 Bl 174
Jo) 769 5 J91 P9 5
28 A EH HK - REA B -TRA

IGILEEES £ WA £ WA el
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
TWM TWM THME TH#ME
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
HE T A48 Y S ) Movement in gross carrying amount:
20224F1H1H At 1 January 2022 221,685,039 6,672,056 3,905,735 232,262,830
B 1240 H FEAME AR Transfer to 12-month ECL 128,228 (118,649) (9,579) =
Oy R R A7 A T A5 4B 2K Transfer to Lifetime not credit-impaired
(AR AAF F ) (8,602,971) 8,603,802 (831) -
L 2 A A7 A U5 4B 2% Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-impaired
(B8 A5 sE) (547,576) (350,088) 897,664 =
JE B i 11 5 ) v A Net change on exposure (15,976,208) (475,096) (510,922) (16,962,226)
1% 8 Write off = = (6,076) (6,076)
20224E12H31H At 31 December 2022 196,686,512 14,332,025 4,275,991 215,294,528
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Credit risk (continued)

(g) TG 18K A 02 5 (4) (g9  Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
T SR BHIR AR ORGSR R R K The following tables show reconciliations from the opening
AR HU 400 BRI OR 45 B (0 SR to the closing balance of the loss allowance for undrawn loan
commitments and guarantees.
TR E Rt R AR Undrawn loan commitments and guarantees
4 M BT The Group and Bank
2022412 31H
31 December 2022
A7 0 A7
B BE BB E
12 H Y k- REEA K- B84
B E 15 F AR 15 F AR At
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
not credit- ECL credit-
12-month ECL impaired impaired Total
T WM e T WM 7 T WM T# Mo
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TE A 2 5 ) Movement in impairment allowances:
20224F1 7 1H At 1 January 2022 126,280 - - 126,280
1240 H FE A AR Transfer to 12-month ECL - - - -
7 R (R 7 S T (5 4B 2K Transfer to Lifetime not credit-impaired
(R EAE FWUE) = = = =
L R A7 A8 U5 FHE 2% Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-impaired
(B8 A5 HsE) - - - -
O R IR I 13 4 (B0 45 Net remeasurement of loss allowance
[iFE b, 34 % ) (including exchange adjustments) (17,574) - - (17,574)
D A BRI BT BR New credit commitment originated or
purchased 13,865 1 - 13,866
O rER 5 BR RS Credit commitment that have been
derecognised (44,217) - - (44,217)
1% 8 Write off - - - -
20224F12H31H At 31 December 2022 78,354 1 - 78,355
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Credit risk (continued)

(h)

Credit quality

The following table sets out information about the gross

carrying amount by staging for loans and advances and debt

securities.
B R BS Loans and advances
4 M BT The Group and Bank
2022412 31H 20214F12H31H
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
T#M e TMWM T
MOP’000 MOP000
5 — P B Stage 1 196,686,512 221,685,039
o B Stage 2 14,332,025 6,672,056
o =B Stage 3 4,275,991 3,905,735
215,294,528 232,262,830
%% Debt securities
£ The Group
20224£12H31H 20214F12H31H
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
T#Mt THWMT
MOP’000 MOP000
5 — BB Stage 1 101,941,523 88,773,814
R B Stage 2 - _
5 =B B Stage 3 68,429 68,507
102,009,952 88,842,321
AT The Bank
2022412 31H 20214F12131H
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
T#M e TMWM T
MOP’000 MOP000
o — BB Stage 1 101,826,833 88,637,692
5B Stage 2 - _
o =B Stage 3 68,429 68,507
101,895,262 88,706,199
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4. iR A P o)
4.3 15 R B )

(h) 1FEEHE )
[ (4)

(B FOLHE AR ER A TR S AR -
BAEE3MHRE - UAREHERE
S 5 A A 45 A YAt 1 4 Rl
E DA R AT s R o bR T B K
KDL BB o R 220224 K 20214
12H31H 1- 4B > BT A HAth 4 il
B pE— B -

Hoth ¥ 2 v B 45 4 E Wik JE 2,483
OB T (20214F : 3,036 # IR [
J6) o Ho A B S A R AT K
TH2,483 1 H5 8 M T (20214 © 3,036 F &
WM IT) o 55 4 B IE i3k T % E ATk
T H s B (A EAT VI IR 5T 2= 00 9 A
S AT R AR R o 5 K
A BRAE PR B 2 A o

() M BRI AR

A 4R ) 5 A 9 95 DR < B Y
BN 5 B TR A5 TR AT Al R E o
A SR B DR E A SRAT AR AR TR
2/ EX

I B R T W AR
I AR B2 A B 10wl B2 SRAB M AR AR W) < I
T T Ak (B 48 YR AR 5 A I B 4K
JIHE AT LR Y Th A

AL BB E R ET AP EE > BT
A ARIE A DA R e — B & > A
A5 I A IR0 PR P

A BR VLR H > A% 48 19 40 41K 0 ¥
(20214F : 4E) o

HR B IR UL FE H B8 A E H BE
ZAREE > SRS Y DL R H A
JH 8 8% 45 %8 74993,945,0001# [ 7T (2021
4F 1 1,428,330,00018 4 7T) ©
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3

Credit risk (continued)

(h)

Credit quality (continued)
Debt securities (continued)

Debt securities include financial assets at amortised cost,
held-to-maturity investment, financial assets at FVOCI and
available for-sale investments. Other than loans and advances
and debt securities, all other financial assets were classified
as stage 1 at the year ended 2022 and 2021.

Included within other assets there are precious metal
receivables of MOP2,483 million (2021: MOP3,036 million),
and included within other liabilities there are precious metal
payables of MOP2,483 million (2021: MOP3,036 million).
Both precious metal receivables and payables are recognised
at fair value upon initiation, and measured subsequently at
fair value. The credit risk associated with the precious metal
receivables is considered with appropriate provisions.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an
assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. The main
types of collateral obtained are bank deposits, shares and
properties.

Management monitors the market value of collateral,
requests additional collateral in accordance with the
underlying agreement, and monitors the market value of
collateral obtained during the review of the adequacy of the
allowance for impairment losses.

It is the Group’s policy to dispose repossessed properties
in an orderly fashion. The proceeds are used to reduce or
repay the outstanding claim. In general, the Group does not
occupy repossessed properties for business use.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has no
repossessed assets (2021: Nil).

For financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date, the collateral held as security and other credit
enhancements are amounted to MOP993,945,000 (2021:
MOP1,428,330,000).
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4> vl el B 4 B )

4.3

15 F R B (a0)

)

(k)

15 4 B A

25 THI L2 H iR MR & PR
5 AT A AT A AT H A o PRER
i AR T8 4 7S W48 B R > RID7E
%P AE Mk JE AT HLBES =07 ISR F Y
A AR B HEAT S AT > HAR T L B B
FRAH ] o B 35 7 205 R T A 4 T
REEFF L Hm R RS =
7 TE A RE KR A T 1] A4 B 2 T
FUAE A BEE S > DU B A B 5 4
1> BRI o B D

AR R W AR 2 15 DLE R - PR S
PR 3 3R A A 452 £ R B T A
I o B AR RIRGE 1O 5 T a ke
A 2 [ T R T R D JRL o R A R £ T
TR it MBI AR R o fFBOE7E R A
DT > RS INR AT AEAR A AR R
it R > B K 2 B A R R A
DA% 5 R FFHRE B9 05 IERHE Ry RS -
F 7 = B0 7Rl Al R 5 B
5 PR LB A R > A S B AR AR
Jr R G A B T RR

I B

A% 4 [ 2 b 3 3B 0 10 45 D JE o 5 v RE
FE B IR YA A s A5 A EC B R
15 B 4 Al F550.61% 5% 17.01% (20214F :
47.81%/222.32%) °

MBS IR LR E » AL EELE—EW
S v B LB > IR B A A R AR AT 3
BN | A5 T ECBS w04 B 2521.50%
(2021412431 H : 17.21%) - # B4 &
W5 R 3R M 56 (a) ©

PMBIRILER A - BR T BB A 4R
TR JE B Ab > A AR A A AT S e A
— 3 oy T R B i A AR o A4
LA 8 R R SR A TR (R A ER
A R LA B
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3

Credit risk (continued)

()

(k)

Credit related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that
funds are available to customers to settle their obligations
as required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit which
represent irrevocable assurances that the Group will make
payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its
obligations to third parties carry the same credit risk
as loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit
which are written undertakings by the Group on behalf of
a customer authorising a third party to draw drafts on the
Group up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and
conditions are collateralised by the underlying shipments of
goods to which they relate and therefore carry less risk than
direct lending.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions
of authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans,
guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk
on commitments to extend credit, the Group is potentially
exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused
commitments. However, even in the worst scenario, loss
is likely to be less than the total unused commitments, as
most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon
customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Group
monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments
because longer-term commitments generally have a greater
degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

Concentration of risks

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Macau and Hong Kong, which
accounted for 50.61% and 17.01% (2021: 47.81% and
22.32%) respectively of the credit risk exposures.

As at end of the reporting period, the Group has certain
concentration of credit risk as 21.50% (31 December 2021:
17.21%) of the Group’s credit risk exposure are with its
ultimate holding company as shown in note 6(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Other than the concentration risk with its ultimate holding
company, the Group has no concentration of credit risk of
the Group’s credit risk exposure with material counterparty
as at the end of the reporting period. The Group’s measures
for mitigating its credit risk include solicitation of tangible
collaterals or pledged deposits from the borrower.
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4. iR B B (e 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
44 HEAREH 4.4 Capital management
FEEEAREM Y TEAMER THERAE The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
B [ AT AR T RT 2 AR TSR o [7] I R AR ensure that the Group complies with externally imposed capital
KLAF BO15 BT AR S & B AR 58 2 R DL 3 requirements and that the Group maintains strong credit ratings
R G 2EH G R - 4R FHIBORMEAA - and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to
maximise shareholders’ value.
A B 1 R A A - B Bl % R T ) ) Ja e o The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
T T AN 5 T A L A B R o AR [ T to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
DA ] o) B S AT I RS O 1) I RO characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the
EA DN IEATEARRE I MBS BA B A4S capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend
MEEOEAT G AS 5 MG R o BLDIRTAF BEAR LE » payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
HEE - BORFIRR P 520 - & 0 e 9 A % capital securities. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
BT AR B AN A T R and processes from the previous years. The management monitors
BB AR 7R R AT B o R 202282021 the capital adequacy on a monthly basis, based on the information
F12H31H (R4 BE > A8 A 28 RO P 5 Al A on total capital, total risk-weighted assets and the capital adequacy
R M 2 EAHBLE RIE DL o ratio. During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there
was no non-compliance with the capital requirement imposed by
AMCM.
£ AT
The Group The Bank
20224 20214F 20224F 20214
12H31H 12/]31H 12H31H 12/31H
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021
BA TR LR Capital adequacy ratio 14.91% 14.07% 14.81% 13.97%
4.5  FEWHAE R K B 4.5 Operational risk management
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EBHRIE AR IR RN RT - AR - REH
N R 2 g At B g PR A0 B T 5 | BOR Re
i A e SR B o SETE B A R AT TE T
BRI R SEBE AR R > 24 458 R (5]
T7 > % b 22 A8 S (] A AR AR D BB 2 o 8 40 JL
B 5 & 1R LR A0 i B - EARE R A Y
S AR AR 7 LA ~ RPAG ~ SR R
ST AT B (L8 B BR) © A Sl M IR
38 Y] 2% T B TR, - LA A LB T A
B ST B PR A - R AT U IR R R R R
PR 45 > B ZE SRS SR AR U o AR 4R B AR
PEAH B AE 51 A0 JELR - 35 ) A bR i A A Y
SR AR AF Il B 2 -

Operational risk is the risk of unexpected financial losses resulting
from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems or
from external events. Operational Risk is inherent to every aspect
of daily business operations within an organisation, which covers
a wide spectrum of issues and root causes. The Risk Management
Committee is established to provide adequate oversight to ensure
operational risks (including technology risk) are identified,
assessed, mitigated, and reported with adequate control measures
and procedures. Operational risk is also monitored through the
implementation of various management tools, including key risk
assessment, key risk indicators, operational loss data collection and
incident reporting etc. The Group will keep on pursuing proactively
the effective operational risk management practice in accordance
with the relevant guidelines and principles.
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4. SR B BE () 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.6 TR B 4.6  Market risk
T 355 JE B 2 95 PR ) B4 B R i 35 1 A (T Market risk is the risk of loss arising from movements in observable
AR =) B 58 58l 1T 228 52 4 2 Y JRURRY market variables such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates.
i) FEEEE (i) Foreign currency risk
7 AJE 1) ) S 5 SR R B 4 R 32 B AT The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the
A1 TEE 3B 58) 52 B0 10 JEL B o A 4 [ 4 £ prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial
R E B RAH o A& WO L D g A positions and cash flows. The Group has set limits on
THERY B A8 o7 B 45¢ o positions by currency. Positions are independently monitored

against the approved limits on a daily basis.

AR 2 A T A A B An analysis of the currency concentration positions of the
SN #) 2 B R P DL TN R financial assets, financial liabilities and forward foreign

exchange contracts of the Group is as follows:
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4. b R A BE (a0 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.6 ﬁ? j% EL l{,ﬁﬁ (%) 4.6 Market risk (continued)
(i) FEFE B () (i)  Foreign currency risk (continued)
ESEEN: 2 A (Equivalent in MOP million)
B L] The Group
202242127 31H
31 December 2022
WM T BT Xt AR H Al At
MOP HKD USD RMB Others Total
& Assets
B4 BLERAT A7 3K L A7 Cash and balances with banks
B W SR A and deposits with monetary
authority 9,907 3,181 12,269 5,948 3,369 34,674
5 ik 7] 2 Placements with other banks 4,310 20,927 60,890 15,043 845 102,015
ST OSE T Loans and advances 32,083 127,945 40,457 8,358 4,280 213,123
DA fefE(Ent 2 B Financial assets at fair value
BEFE AN EM  through profit or loss
B - = 325 = = 325
s o fE (E R E B Financial assets at fair value
B AHABEE S U through other comprehensive
T 1) 4 Pl income - 495 19,698 11,521 91 31,805
DABEER BUAS 5L A4 Al Financial assets at amortised cost
B 11,638 4,763 35,277 18,427 32 70,137
725 4 Rl & Derivative financial assets 546 = 560 = = 1,106
JENCERIE S Ho M B E  Receivables and other assets 22 211 1,144 422 2,024 3,823
58,506 157,522 170,620 59,719 10,641 457,008
s Liabilities
B Deposits from customers 59,554 109,102 59,153 12,463 8,024 248,296
[ SEAF K Deposits from banks 2,731 8,931 26,034 56,474 1,743 95,913
A 4 A i Derivative financial liabilities 282 - 556 - - 838
BT SR Debts issued = 600 11,623 2,298 = 14,521
BT A Certificates of deposit issued - 8,635 47,131 7,645 - 63,411
DA fefE (A2 B Financial liabilities at fair value
SIS AMEA M through profit or loss
A1 - - 325 = = 325
HoAt 5 Other liabilities 507 640 892 236 17 2,292
63,074 127,908 145,714 79,116 9,784 425,596
i) Net position (4,568) 29,614 24,906 (19,397) 857 31,412
i AN HE B R A 4 Forward foreign exchange
e contracts net notional position (31) (679) (19,437) 19,210 1,121 184

102



TRTRER o ] SRAT (B e A R A )

Annual Report 2022 INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED
4. SR R A P o) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.6 T )EBE (4 4.6  Market risk (continued)
(i) BEFm S (47) (i) Foreign currency risk (continued)
(S 1(H B # T) (Equivalent in MOP million)
a7 The Bank

20224£12H31H
31 December 2022

b i T PN EPIn N HA Hagt
MOP HKD USD RMB Others Total
& Assets
Bl 4 BLERAT A7 X M A7 L Cash and balances with banks
B W SR A and deposits with monetary
authority 9,791 3,148 12,269 5,948 3,371 34,527
LAEES Placements with other banks 4,310 20,927 60,890 15,043 845 102,015
B I BAGR Loans and advances 32,083 127,945 40,457 8,358 4,280 213,123

PLA B E R = B Financial assets at fair value

BEFE AN EM  through profit or loss

B - - 325 - = 325
s o fE (E R E B Financial assets at fair value

B AHABEE S U through other comprehensive

i (1Y) 4 il income = 495 19,608 11,521 90 31,714
DL RS AN FHE Y4 Bl Financial assets at amortised cost
B 11,638 4,763 35,252 18,427 32 70,112
T A 4 i Derivative financial assets 546 = 560 = = 1,106
MEWCEIE Je A& = Receivables and other assets 22 211 1,144 422 2,024 3,823
58,390 157,489 170,505 59,719 10,642 456,745
A& Liabilities
BN Deposits from customers 59,660 109,116 59,205 12,465 8,042 248,488
[ SEAF K Deposits from banks 2,731 8,931 26,034 56,474 1,743 95,913
higa sk ot S= Derivative financial liabilities 282 - 556 - - 838
BT Debts issued = 600 11,623 2,298 = 14,521
AT A Certificates of deposit issued - 8,635 47,131 7,645 - 63,411

DA SefE(ERF & B Financial liabilities at fair value
SEEEAMEAE M through profit or loss

B 1 - - 325 = = 325

HoAth £ 15 Other liabilities 507 640 892 236 17 2,292

63,180 127,922 145,766 79,118 9,802 425,788

) Net position (4,790) 29,567 24,739 (19,399) 840 30,957
i AN ME B R A 4 Forward foreign exchange

e contracts net notional position (31) (679) (19,437) 19,210 1,121 184
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4. b b B (a0 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.6 T8 EBE (40 4.6  Market risk (continued)
(i) BEFm S (47) (i) Foreign currency risk (continued)
(S 1(H B # T) (Equivalent in MOP million)
B L] The Group

20214F12H31 H (R & HF )
31 December 2021 (unaudited)

Moo ESTH B N HoAthy st
MOP HKD USD RMB Others Total
& Assets
B 4 BLERAT A7 K A7 L Cash and balances with banks
B SR A and deposits with monetary
authority 6,392 5,803 17,041 6,008 1,480 36,724
LAEES Placements with other banks 6,313 31,148 32,977 4,711 318 75,467
B I BAGR Loans and advances 30,547 126,289 58,460 9,167 6,210 230,673
DA SR fE (B R B Financial assets at fair value
B FE AN EM  through profit or loss
i = = 683 = = 683
ISR =—% k' <5 Available-for-sale investments 2 8 23,048 13,761 = 36,819
FAEZEINARE Held-to-maturity investments 9,378 2,080 23,808 16,678 - 51,944
ik &R E Derivative financial assets 143 - 209 - - 352
JRE AT R Ay HoAh Receivables and other assets 4 43 298 464 - 809
52,779 165,371 156,524 50,789 8,008 433,471
15 Liabilities
HF R Deposits from customers 42,883 125,942 73,343 14,811 2,517 259,496
] ZEAF K Deposits from banks 4,819 8,048 41,084 14,275 3,284 71,510
A7 4= 4 B A Derivative financial liabilities 357 = 203 = = 560
BT ES Debts issued = 600 11,612 = = 12,212
BEAT A Certificates of deposit issued = 9,361 39,020 9,496 = 57,877
DA FefE (E wt B Financial liabilities at fair value
B A AR 1S R through profit or loss
A fi = = 682 = - 682
HoAth £ Other liabilities 130 461 400 129 3 1,123
48,189 144,412 166,344 38,711 5,804 403,460
IS ) Net position 4,590 20,959 (9,820) 12,078 2,204 30,011
AN B3R A 4 Forward foreign exchange
E contracts net notional position 4 2,870 9,587 (10,539) (2,236) (314)

104



TRTRER o ] SRAT (B e A R A )

Annual Report 2022 INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED
4. b b B (a0 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.6 T8 EBE (40 4.6 Market risk (continued)
(i) BEFm S (47) (i) Foreign currency risk (continued)
(S 1(H B # T) (Equivalent in MOP million)
a7 The Bank

20214F12H31 H (R & HF )
31 December 2021 (unaudited)

Moo ESTH B NGL HoAthy st
MOP HKD USD RMB Others Total
& Assets
B 4 BLERAT A7 K A7 L Cash and balances with banks
B SR A and deposits with monetary
authority 6,389 5,776 17,041 6,008 1,481 36,695
LAEES Placements with other banks 6,313 31,148 32,977 4,711 318 75,467
B I BAGR Loans and advances 30,547 126,289 58,460 9,167 6,210 230,673
DA SR fE (B R B Financial assets at fair value
B FE AN EM  through profit or loss
i = = 683 = = 683
ISR =—% k' <5 Available-for-sale investments 2 8 22,936 13,762 = 36,708
FAEZEINARE Held-to-maturity investments 9,378 2,080 23,783 16,678 - 51,919
ik &R E Derivative financial assets 143 - 209 - - 352
JRE AT R Ay HoAh Receivables and other assets 4 43 298 464 - 809
52,776 165,344 156,387 50,790 8,009 433,306
£ fi Liabilities
HF R Deposits from customers 43,145 125,941 73,343 14,812 2,517 259,758
] ZEAF K Deposits from banks 4,819 8,048 41,084 14,275 3,284 71,510
fii A 4 Al B 1R Derivative financial liabilities 357 = 203 = = 560
BT ES Debts issued = 600 11,612 = = 12,212
BEAT A Certificates of deposit issued = 9,361 39,020 9,496 = 57,877
DA FefE (E wt B Financial liabilities at fair value
B A AR 1S R through profit or loss
A fi = = 682 = = 682
HoAth £ Other liabilities 130 461 400 129 3 1,123
48,451 144,411 166,344 38,712 5,804 403,722
IS ) Net position 4,325 20,933 (9,957) 12,078 2,205 29,584
AN B3R A 4 Forward foreign exchange
E contracts net notional position 4 2,870 9,587 (10,539) (2,236) (314)
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6 Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The currencies to which the Group had significant exposure
at the reporting dates on its monetary financial assets and
liabilities included Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”), United
States Dollars (“USD”) and Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”).
Since Macau Patacas is linked to the HKD and USD,
management considered the Group’s exposure to HKD and
USD is minimal. As such, no sensitivity analysis is presented.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variable held constant, on
the Group’s and the BanK’s profit after tax and equity.

(Equivalent in MOP million)

Increase/(decrease) in profit after taxation

N B HE 32 5 Bl e 3L sAT
Change in RMB exchange rate The Group The Bank

2022 2021 2022 2021
5% (1,356) 57 (1,356) 57
(5%) 1,356 (57) 1,356 (57)

W 1800, (3 ) Increase/(decrease) in equity

N B T 3R 52 ) # AT
Change in RMB exchange rate The Group The Bank

2022 2021 2022 2021
5% 576 688 576 688
(5%) (576) (688) (576) (688)

106



TRITEER
Annual Report 2022

o T SRAT (R IR A B W
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

4. iR B B (e FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.6 ﬁ? j% EL l{,ﬁﬁ (%) 4.6 Market risk (continued)
(i) FYF B (ii)  Interest rate risk
) 25 g A i 7 A 2 ) 2% 53 ) iy 2L Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in
BORABE B &AL G LHA R interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of
{68 {0 5 A8 T A= )RR o financial instruments.
A £ [ 7R 52 IR T 355 ) 25 e ) 3 R The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in
B DL B Bt e 2 S 2 o EE T A the prevailing levels of market interest rates on its financial
1M 45 5 S TR 4 00 B D o ) R B position and cash flows. Interest margins may increase or
T At 2 R B B B A AT o decrease as a result of such changes. Interest rate risk is
A5 BR 2R T f A B 4 AL R AT BOE managed within risk limits approved by management. Limits
WEAh - I8 B A A T 2 A AR R E R are set for each maturity band, in addition, to an aggregate
FR%H limit, for the aggregate position of the Group.
TREURA B RGBT REEE) - /) The table below shows the sensitivity analysis of interest rate
B HTA R L SH50MHE 5 T A R risk from a reasonably possible movement in interest rates; i.e.
JEBE 2 UL 73 o 5% 5 BB R B a 50 basis points increase/decrease in current interest rates.
A e T 2 B TR IR EUNE The figures represent the effect of the pro forma movements
Ut B 72 42 1) 2 4 A B R R in profit after taxation based on the scenario projected
FI G DR - and the Group’s interest rate financial assets and financial
liabilities.
B B 52 ) TR A% 0 52 )
Changes in basis points Change in projected profit after taxation
E L] AT
The Group The Bank
TW#MT T#®M T
MOP’000 MOP’000
2022
50 128,919 128,580
-50 (128,919) (128,580)
2021
50 388,418 388,472
-50 (388,418) (388,472)

ZiniiE S

AR LA A0 R 20 8 o 2% T SRS A WAL A ] 4
)~ R MR A0 <5 Bl AR A 42 14 < 2 o R R S o
8N SET5 23 B L4 1) (8N 2% 5 42 44 <6 il 2 o A IR
B o s oy i E R R L0 WA G - ShEE
AL W o R o) BL AR SH LA AR AR B JF R
T B 3 H O MR A R E 0 A B E - AR I
AR ST

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group comprises four operating segments. Corporate banking
segment covers the provision of financial products and services to
corporations, government agencies and financial institutions. Personal
banking segment covers the provision of financial products and services
to individual customers. Treasury operations segment covers the provision
of debt capital markets, foreign exchange and money market. Unallocated
amounts cover the Groups assets, liabilities, income and expenses that are
not directly attributable or cannot be reasonably allocated to a specific
segment.
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a)  Operating segments

B FE20224E12H 31 H 1L 4E
Year ended 31 December 2022
AFIEE MAEE BERH 43 BiL O
Corporate Personal Treasury
banking banking  operations Unallocated Total
FWMx  FWMx  F®ERMx  F#®RMxE TR
MOP’000 MOP000 MOP000 MOP’000  MOP’000
FALE YA Net interest income 1,740,733 770,823 1,452,848 - 3,964,404
¢ U AEALON Fee and commission income 531,013 457,027 16,708 1,743 1,006,491
T B S Fee and commission expense (18,799)  (260,946) (23,775) (13,624)  (317,144)
HoAb A Other operating income = = 223,162 6,285 229,447
BmERA Operating income 2,252,947 966,904 1,668,943 (5,596) 4,883,198
p g
wEEM Operating expenses (136,886) (527,783) (35,916) (498,708)  (1,199,293)
A p g exp
A il . ol (B A Charge for impairment losses on financial
instruments (1,031,216) (110,956) (11,734) (2,843)  (1,156,749)
HAb Y A Other income 36,033 32,771 = 19,668 88,472
BiAn A, (GHR) Profit/(loss) before tax 1,120,878 360,936 1,621,293 (487,479) 2,615,628
HoAth 43 AR5 B Other segment information:
P85 Fn Y Depreciation and amortisation 2,614 32,079 1,063 22,586 58,342
20224F12H31H At 31 December 2022
MG Total assets 138,958,020 75,276,796 233,298,731 13,216,553 460,750,100
BmEE Total liabilities 166,740,219 83,719,176 178,126,626 1,492,549 430,078,570
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(a)  Operating segments (continued)

2021412431 H IE4EE CRESHERD
Year ended 31 December 2021 (unaudited)

NEEY WA BEEXH AL S
Corporate Personal Treasury
banking banking  operations Unallocated Total

TWME  FE®ME TWME T®Mx TERMT
MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP000  MOP000  MOP’000

FALE YA Net interest income 2,196,793 962,590 1,108,527 = 4,267,910
S & S AEALON Fee and commission income 586,386 580,263 1,388 3,349 1,171,386
FHE LA H Fee and commission expense (25,744) (210,650) (3,159) (15,277) (254,830)
HoAb A Other operating income = = 187,096 3,276 190,372
BERA Operating income 2,757,435 1,332,203 1,293,852 (8,652) 5,374,838
wEEM Operating expenses (142,715) (534,562) (34,812) (516,113)  (1,228,202)
A Al . ol (B A Charge for impairment losses on financial

instruments (1,568,873) (15,624) (28,873) (455)  (1,613,825)
HAb Y A Other income 4,763 23,917 = 9,355 38,035
BiATAE, (HB2K%) Profit/(loss) before tax 1,050,610 805,934 1,230,167 (515,865) 2,570,846
HoAth 43 AR5 B Other segment information:
P85 Fn Y Depreciation and amortisation 2,602 31,198 430 20,684 54,914
20224F12H31H At 31 December 2022
MG Total assets 155,067,279 76,781,067 197,462,833 9,085,798 438,396,977
=R Total liabilities

182,177,157 78,658,644 146,031,206 1,637,313 408,504,320

109



o R AT (BRE) e A R

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

5. SERHEE @)
(b) HFEfEE

A [ B S A IR Y o e T SES IR

5

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

Geographical information
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The Group operates predominantly in Macau. The geographical

B MG F R S B AT AR analysis, which has been classified by the location of the principal
operations, is as follows:
B E20224E12 31 H 14 B
Year ended 31 December 2022
U] At st
Macau Others Total
TW#M T T#MT T#M T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
A B A Net interest income 3,964,404 - 3,964,404
FHE LA RA Fee and commission income 1,006,491 - 1,006,491
ES -y Fee and commission expense (317,119) (25) (317,144)
HoAb £ A Other operating income 229,447 - 229,447
CELON Operating income 4,883,223 (25) 4,883,198
wEEM Operating expenses (1,191,727) (7,566) (1,199,293)
A T TR (B A Charge for impairment losses on financial
instruments (1,156,749) - (1,156,749)
HAthdie A Other income 88,472 - 88,472
BLAG I, () Profit/(loss) before tax 2,623,219 (7,591) 2,615,628
Hopth 43 AR5 B, Other segment information:
45 0 B Depreciation and amortisation 57,616 726 58,342
20224¢12H31H At 31 December 2022
W~ R KA Property, plant and equipment 280,513 - 280,513
PG M Investment property = 49,539 49,539
43 HB Segment assets 460,698,065 52,035 460,750,100
o R Segment liabilities 429,982,142 96,428 430,078,570
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b)  Geographical information (continued)

B E20214E12H31 B IL4EF CREEFEFT)
Year ended 31 December 2021 (unaudited)

Y HAb i
Macau Others Total
M T T THM T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FA B A Net interest income 4,267,910 = 4,267,910
FHH A AR A Fee and commission income 1,171,386 = 1,171,386
T8 a3 Fee and commission expense (254,804) (26) (254,830)
HoAth s FE A Other operating income 190,372 - 190,372
EUN Operating income 5,374,864 (26) 5,374,838
wELH Operating expenses (1,220,744) (7,458) (1,228,202)
45 il L M A Charge for impairment losses on financial
instruments (1,613,825) - (1,613,825)
HAb g A Other income 35,989 2,046 38,035
BLRT A, (GER) Profit/(loss) before tax 2,576,284 (5,438) 2,570,846
HAt 53 #0458 - Other segment information:
S 85 0 8 6 Depreciation and amortisation 54,188 726 54,914
20214£12H31H At 31 December 2021
ESN Y& Property, plant and equipment 267,518 - 267,518
G Investment property = 50,256 50,256
73l Segment assets 438,344,614 52,363 438,396,977
o3 B AR Segment liabilities 408,412,103 92,217 408,504,320

R Bh 56 (a) F 48 e P BRI A S 24 W 3R AR S B 81

JA20224F 1220214 > 1R

b B — S AR % 5 B

F 25 EEZ WA AL AR A R 10%5 2 L o

Except for the ultimate holding company with which the transactions
were disclosed in note 6(a), no revenue from transactions with other
single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more of the
Group’s total revenue in 2022 or 2021.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Related party transaction
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In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these

consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following

T transactions and balances with related parties during the year:
BRAPEIR S ] Ultimate holding company
£ M AT The Group and the Bank
2022 2021
TMMT T 5T
MOP’000 MOP’000
FLE A Interest income 1,319,175 274,337
FE S Interest expense 1,242,014 380,259
HAt g E A Other operating income 5,000 5,000
oAt 7 S 2 Other operating expenses 3,335 2,308
] A7 T (B BEG Deposits from banks (note (i)) 84,069,415 61,094,849
AT (B REG) Debts issued (note (ii)) 8,229,750 8,230,795
Bl M RAT AR K Cash and balances with banks 10,141,431 13,372,597
Y EE TG Placements with other banks (note (iii)) 86,272,653 53,459,054
R S BOR (B 5EGv)) Loans and advances (note (iv)) 2,195,908 8,053,442
[t 2E - Notes:
(i) BEMBRDR A - A 5 MR AR (i) The Group’s deposits from and inter-bank takings with its ultimate

R [ A A T B ) SR A A B R AR R R
it £50%2%4.85% (20214F12H31H : 0% %
3.21%) °

(i) WEMBRAED > AL HTHER
He e N R FE A I 1% 15 £ TE £48,229,750,000
WM oo (2021412 H31H : 8,230,795,000
WMit)  #HHEEHEAEKAEAR
600,490,0001% [ JC ) 7 B 47 1| 2 Bilefifl A 7
7 SR AT A 2 % 15 A 3 (HIBORF 2 ) +1001H
I 25 4 ) 5 3,613,860,00018 [ T 19 IF B 4F
il % Bl 6 A HIBORF -+ 1201 A B 14 5 >
4,015,400,0001% '] JT. 1) ¥ Bh 4F- 1| 2R BHL 4% £ b
7 il ) 22 (SOFR)+80 1R Jik B ¢4 o Hivr
3,613,860,0008 M JT M i220301F6H 26 H
5 4,015,400,0008 [ ¢ JE 142031412 H 30
H 2 > 7 ££600,490,0000 [ It 1t 48 7fE 5 5|
CUNE|

(i)  WEMBRIE B > A R KR A
) 7 B 4 #8 £4586,272,653,0001 ' 7T (20214F
12H31H : 53,459,054,0001 [ 75 ) » B P 4F
I 2% i [ £50% %55.85% (20214F12H31H @ —
0.49%%3.50%)

(iv) BEMBERWEHR /Fé%[%miﬁt%%‘ 2 %
7 T T B B A B A ) o A
750.70%%2.46% (20214F12H 31 H : 0.29% %
0.61%)
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holding company and the effective interest rates range from 0% to

4.85% per annum as at the end of the reporting year (31 December

2021: 0% to 3.21% per annum).

(i) The Group had issued subordinated debts held by its ultimate
holding company of MOP8,229,750,000 (31 December 2021:
MOP8,230,795,000) as at the end of the reporting year. The
subordinated debts are unsecured, and carried interest at floating rates
linked to 6M HIBOR plus 100bp per annum for MOP600,490,000,
6M HIBOR plus 120bp per annum for MOP3,613,860,000 and SOFR
plus 80bp per annum for MOP4,015,400,000. Of the total amount,
MOP3,613,860,000 is repayable on 26 June 2030, MOP4,015,400,000 is
repayable on 30 December 2031 and the remaining MOP600,490,000

has no stated maturity date.

(iii)  As at the end of the reporting year, the Group’s inter-bank placements
with its ultimate holding company amounted to MOP86,272,653,000
(31 December 2021: MOP53,459,054,000), which earn effective
interest rates of 0% to 5.85% per annum (31 December 2021:-0.49%

to 3.50%per annum).

(iv)  As at the end of the reporting year, the Group’s loans and advances to

its ultimate holding company earn effective interest rates of 0.70% to
2.46% per annum (31 December 2021: 0.29% to 0.61%per annum).



TRITEER
Annual Report 2022

6. BRI AR F )
(@) BB 40
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Related party transaction (continued)

[ F H g 4 A Fellow subsidiaries
£ M AT The Group and the Bank
2022 2021
TWM FEM T
MOP’000 MOP’000
F B A Interest income 129,143 85,305
L2 S Interest expense 2,041 10
HoAth 25 228 Other operating expenses 90,992 75,260
Tt S 4 3 Fee and commission expenses 35,010 34,765
A ZEA7 I (B 5E(v)) Deposits from banks (note (v)) 344,483 256,877
HoAth & f& Other liabilities 106,138 61,656
B4 FERATIE K Cash and balances with banks 751,779 1,648,995
Pk E] 2 (B 6 (vi)) Placements with other banks (note (vi)) = 3,090,000
B GR (B 5E (vid)) Loans and advances (note (vii)) 5,480,711 5,505,033
JHE ST R TE A Receivables and other assets 79,473 86,611
Fff sk - Notes:
) BEMB ARG R > A 1 [E &R HE S ) As at the end of the reporting period, the Group’s deposits from its

) A7 3K 4 BH £5344,483,0008 1 7T (20214712
H31H : 256,877,000 [ 56 ) » ‘B B} 4F Fl| %
# F50%%2.80% (20214F1231H : 0% %

0.01%) °

(vi)  EEMBIRUER A A 5w [ R A
J& /5 @ % 8 (20214F12H 31 H : 3,090,000,000
MG > B R F 2R £50.33%) ©

(vii)  HEBBARDL R B > A4 E 1w H[E & S
A A B R % SRR I B R AR R SR R
742.65%%4.26% (20214F12H31H : 1.37% %

2.00%) °

(vi)

(vii)

fellow subsidiaries amounted to MOP344,483,000 (31 December
2021: MOP256,877,000), and bear effective interest rate range from 0%
to 2.80% per annum (31 December 2021: 0% to 0.01% per annum).

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has no inter-

bank placements with its fellow subsidiaries (31 December 2021:
MOP3,090,000,000 which bear an effective interest rate of 0.33% per

annum).

As at the end of the reporting year, the Group’s loans and advances to

its fellow subsidiaries earn effective interest rates of 2.65% to 4.26%

per annum (31 December 2021: 1.37% to 2.00%per annum).
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) B I3 5 () (a)  Related party transaction (continued)
A Subsidiaries
#iy The Bank
2022 2021
TWM FEM T
MOP’000 MOP’000
2 A LA 4 U A Fee and commission income 12,187 12,221
FE Interest expense 2,969 1,973
2 B 4 S Fee and commission expense 154 2,743
&P A7 R (B (viii)) Deposits from customers (note (viii)) 192,167 262,094
HoAth £ & Other liabilities - 849
JHE AT B R S At Receivables and other assets 48,756 48,239
B 5k - Notes:

(viii)

BEMBIRNER > AT TAFEKRE
#H £5192,167,00018 M G (20214F12H31H -
262,094,000 ' 76) » B 5 AF ) 3 8 8 £50%
F2.10% (20214E12 31 H : 0%F1.90%) °

TR A LR A T I AN A F A A

(viii)  As at the end of the reporting period, the BanKs deposits from its
subsidiaries amounted to MOP192,167,000(31 December 2021:
MOP262,094,000), which bear effective interest rates of 0% to 2.10%
per annum (31 December 2021: 0% to 1.90%per annum).

A subsidiary of an associate of the ultimate holding company

£ MR S4T The Group and the Bank
2022 2021
THM THM T
MOP’000 MOP’000
FLE WA Interest income 1,938 4,414
A FORH K (B (ix)) Loans and advances (note (ix)) - 100,399
[t 2E - Notes:

114

(ix)

20214F » A% 45 [ 7] o 4% P B D W A )
B 2 ) I B R R Y B R A R 3R
£51.28% ©

(ix) The Group’s loans and advances to a subsidiary of an associate of the

ultimate holding company earn effective interest rate of 1.28% per

annum in 2021.
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6. Wi J5 2 5 (m0) 6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@) B I3 5 () (a)  Related party transaction (continued)
FHEEHUNA Key management personnel
4 A it A7 The Group and the Bank
2022 2021
TWM FEM T
MOP’000 MOP’000
FE A Interest income 100 143
FE Interest expense 5,201 962
% B A (M s (x)) Deposits from customers (note (x)) 372,084 434,598
T BN K (B 5 (xd)) Loans and advances to customers (note (xi)) 6,296 6,762
Bt 5T - Notes:
) WEMBIRIEA - AR B HE (x)  As at the end of the reporting period, the Group’s deposits from key
i B 7F K 4 A F5372,084,00018 [ 5T (20214F management personnel amounted to MOP372,084,000 (31 December
1231 H : 434,598,000 "] 75 ) » T B 4F F 2021: MOP434,598,000), which bear effective interest rates of 0% to
R E £50%%4.65% (20214F12H31H : 0% 4.65% per annum (31 December 2021: 0% to 3.25%per annum).

£3.25%) ©

(i) WEMBIRIER B » A 10 B3 E 2 (xi)  The Group’s loans and advances to key management personnel
T B AR B K P BE R AR R £92.13% earn effective interest rate of 2.13% per annum as at the end of the
(20214F12H31H : 1.50%) © reporting period (31 December 2021: 1.50%per annum).
(b) 42 5] B SR AT R B AS PE e Ar B T - (b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

and the Bank:

4 ) fu S AT The Group and the Bank
2022 2021
TP FM T
MOP’000 MOP’000
1 B A8 F) Employee benefits 22,562 24,781
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7. FABEA

NET INTEREST INCOME
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£ L] oAT
The Group The Bank
2022 2021 2022 2021
T o TWMM T T oo T WM T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FBWA Interest Income
5l 7 LR A BR T B R A1) Interest income on financial assets
RILEMER - recognised using the effective interest
method:
- Bl K [R] 2EHR R OE - Cash and placements with banks and
financial institutions 1,815,842 300,156 1,814,397 298,782
- B K - Loans and advances 6,566,483 5,598,996 6,566,484 5,598,996
- BRI - Investments in securities 2,099,667 1,740,454 2,095,737 1,736,589
10,481,992 7,639,606 10,476,618 7,634,367
E L] AT
The Group The Bank
2022 2021 2022 2021
Tt THM 7T Tt THWM T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FB S Interest Expense
S RA R E SO Interest expense on financial liabilities:
- BTG E - Money market deposits and takings (1,117,067) (204,354) (1,117,067) (204,355)
- BFE — Customer deposits (4,036,249) (2,439,613) (4,039,219) (2,441,585)
- BEATAF AR R — Certificates of deposit and debts
issued (1,364,272) (727,729) (1,364,272) (727,729)
(6,517,588) (3,371,696) (6,520,558) (3,373,669)
AL B A Net interest income 3,964,404 4,267,910 3,956,060 4,260,698
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8. FHEARMEWAFWA NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
L] 47
The Group The Bank
2022 2021 2022 2021
TP TP T Tt TP T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
EF - E- YT E L TN Fee and commission income
- B T EGR - Loans and advances 413,585 450,630 413,585 450,630
— IR A IR B ~ Security agency services 134,900 125,912 134,900 125,912
-fEHF — Credit card 177,838 204,282 177,838 204,282
- PRb > FALBRER(E AT - Insurance, other agency services and
ii&7:3 trustee services 192,324 290,108 126,942 221,584
- HiAth - Others 87,844 100,454 87,593 100,301
1,006,491 1,171,386 940,858 1,102,709
L] i T )
The Group The Bank
2022 2021 2022 2021
TH#M FEM T T#M FEM T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
T M R Fee and commission expense
BYEYRS - Credit card 167,938 174,112 167,938 174,112
- HiAth - Others 149,206 80,718 149,360 81,117
317,144 254,830 317,298 255,229
BNt QSRR TN Net fee and commission income 689,347 916,556 623,560 847,480
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9. At 722 25 WA F = A e A 9. OTHER OPERATIONG INCOME AND OTHER INCOME
0] 847
The Group The Bank
2022 2021 2022 2021
THM THMIT T#M e T IT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
LIS R EEFHE B 85 Dividend income from financial assets at
AHABS SIS EE  FVOCI
JE AR W R B A 6,285 - 6,285 -
Al R RGBS Dividend income from available-for-sale
N investments - 3,276 - 3,276
A1 BE 5848 T i 2 Net gains from foreign exchange 161,581 12,010 162,078 11,297
B LAA B R HH S Net gains from disposal of debt securities
Bt A b4 Al a B %  at FVOCK
Bl i 61,125 - 61,125 -
g E I E AR IUEE Net gains from disposal of available-for-sale
Wi % debt investments = 177,769 = 177,836
B LA AR HIH A% Net gains from disposal of financial assets
Bat AHAbS A AR e/ at FEVTPL
B I AR 2 - 2 -
i A 4 b L A B9V IR 45, Net gains/(losses) arising from derivative
(#|%) financial instruments 454 (2,683) 454 (2,683)
HoAth g FE A Rt Total other operating income 229,447 190,372 229,944 189,726
BEEYE - W KEEMEIH Losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (286) (343) (285) (339)
FHAa A Rental income 2,131 2,046 2,131 _
HoAt Others 86,627 36,332 86,627 36,332
H A A S5t Total other income 88,472 38,035 88,473 35,993
10. H¥EEHN 10. OPERATING EXPENSES
£ 847
The Group The Bank
2022 2021 2022 2021
THM 7 THMo T#Mt TFW#M T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
e Depreciation 58,342 54,914 57,583 54,004
M 2 ROE T B Operating lease rentals on buildings 215,104 206,812 214,628 206,640
BT#HA Staff costs 580,833 590,333 566,649 576,611
EEEHE Pension costs 22,168 21,898 21,653 21,399
HERH Professional fees 2,217 3,132 2,217 3,101
FE A Auditor’s remuneration 2,507 2,367 1,905 1,748
HoAth 2 26 2% 1) Other operating expenses 318,122 348,746 312,583 338,506
1,199,293 1,228,202 1,177,218 1,202,009
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11.
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NET CHARGE FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Charge for/(reversal of) impairment losses on financial

instruments
YL The Group

2022 2021
T WM T IT
MOP’000 MOP’000
BRI I K Loans and advances 1,190,097 1,530,639
Al E R E Available-for-sale investments - 7,186

DA B (E REE B S E A Financial assets at FVOCI
Ho At 57 A i i Y 4 L 5,768 =
R 288 H % E Held-to-maturity investments - 15,371
DU 6 A 1 ) 4 O Financial assets at amortised cost 604 -
AR B R SR K Undrawn loan commitments and guarantees (47,925) 53,859
Hoph 4 it T B Other financial instruments 8,205 6,770
1,156,749 1,613,825

AT The Bank

2022 2021
THM 7 THMIT
MOP’000 MOP’000
S OSE T Loans and advances 1,190,097 1,530,639
CIRE N2 kg <y Available-for-sale investments - 7,124

DA B R 2 B L85 A Financial assets at FVOCI
oAb & Wi A Y i 5,742 =
R 22 H#E Held-to-maturity investments - 15,362
D3 5 1 AR o 1) 4 L Financial assets at amortised cost 601 -
IR B R R K Undrawn loan commitments and guarantees (47,925) 53,858
HoAth 4l T H Other financial instruments 8,126 6,779
1,156,641 1,613,762
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12. FifsAi 12.

A A [ AR AT (1 B0 TE S B 355 TR BT A5 4 TR B %
ST 4% BT AR I 5 BT A5 B o IR T A5 4 T B 4R
A 51 E B 28 R DA B 51 BL R 5] > B al #12% (2021
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INCOME TAX

The Group’s tax charge for the year includes provisions for Macau
complementary tax and indirect tax paid/payable to overseas tax
authorities. Macau complementary tax has been provided at 12% (2021:

AE D 12%) o 12%) on the estimated taxable profits.
L] AT
The Group The Bank
2022 2021 2022 2021
T TWM T T#M T T WM T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
AMABLIE - WS4 7B Current tax: Macau complementary tax
- B R A R Y 4F B K - Provision for the year through profit
or loss 306,241 283,595 299,914 277,276
- DIER BRI R 2 - Under-provision in prior years (265) 70 = -
A HABLTE - g Hh 4R Current tax — overseas indirect tax 8,928 (7,352) 8,928 (7,352)
IR LB IH Deferred tax 6,827 24,786 6,836 24,694
A B JE S Y Tax charge for the year 321,731 301,099 315,678 294,618

2 B R S e O A A O A B JE S ) B A

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the

iR FBIE MM T statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate of the Group and
the Bank is as follows:
£ H The Group
2022 2021
T#M T TMWM T
MOP’000 MOP’000
T iy AL Profit before tax 2,615,628 2,570,846
20 B S0 T A B Tax at the applicable tax rate 313,600 308,328
AN BT HE A S 1 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 153 36
Bl WA 1) 5 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (1,010) (621)
DATE AR B A 2 Under-provision in prior years (265) 70
AN P TR AN Overseas indirect tax charge/(credit) 8,928 (7,352)
HAtr Others 325 638
AR AR TE ST Tax charge for the year 321,731 301,099
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12. ﬁﬁ 1%" ﬁé (#7) 12. INCOME TAX (continued)
AT The Bank
2022 2021
T WM T IT
MOP’000 MOP’000
4 i A1 Profit before tax 2,564,178 2,518,126
278 B R TS T B Tax at the applicable tax rate 307,628 302,103
AN R] RN ST H Y Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 151 34
A ON:h Tax effect of non-taxable income (1,010) (621)
HEAMEHEBLRTA Overseas indirect tax charge/(credit) 8,928 (7,352)
HAth Others (19) 454
AR AR IE S Tax charge for the year 315,678 294,618
13, Bla KBATHR 13. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS
% The Group
2022 2021
T WMy TMIT
MOP’000 MOP’000
TN Balances with banks 23,709,831 28,404,848
JHAE B 4 Cash in hand 1,610,601 2,946,225
o WA A (55— P BL) Less: impairment allowance (stage 1) (1,472) (23)
Bl B BRAT A7 K Cash and balances with banks 25,318,960 31,351,050
BT The Bank
2022 2021
WM T M0
MOP’000 MOP’000
ATHE K Balances with banks 23,562,409 28,375,428
JE A B 4 Cash in hand 1,610,601 2,946,225
o+ A MR — P BL) Less: impairment allowance (stage 1) (1,392) (23)
B4 B BRAT A7 3K Cash and balances with banks 25,171,618 31,321,630
SRATAE R A R A T & o The balances with banks are at amortised cost.
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A5 W BT The Group and the Bank

2022 2021

T WM T IT

MOP’000 MOP’000

LV AEE S ¥ Gross placements with other banks 102,025,273 75,474,527
i VI AE MR Less: impairment allowance (10,281) (7,085)
- BB - Stage 1 (10,281) (7,085)

- REE - Stage 2 - _

- HEPEE - Stage 3 - =

102,014,992 75,467,442

PRI 3 LS AR B LT R AR R R A A
0.71%%5.85% (20214F 1231 H : -0.49% %3.50%) °

15. B R

15. LOANS AND ADVANCES

The placements with other banks are at amortised cost and bear effective
interest rate of 0.71% to 5.85% per annum (31 December 2021: -0.49% to
3.50% per annum).

4 W BT The Group and the Bank
2022 2021
Kt aF T WM Tt
Note MOP’000 MOP’000
B PR B EGK Loans and advances to customers 211,699,459 220,701,361
[EES-X1 Trade bills 2,791,989 11,380,751
o PRI A B R R AR Loan and advances to financial institutions 803,080 180,718
R S R A Gross loans and advances 215,294,528 232,262,830
JEFHFLE Accrued interest 1,784,654 1,182,444
217,079,182 233,445,274
I P AE A Less: impairment allowances (3,956,513) (2,772,492)
PR - Stage 1 4.3(g) (599,115) (669,584)
- BB - Stage 2 (1,230,529) (317,179)
- HERE - Stage 3 (2,126,869) (1,785,729)
213,122,669 230,672,782
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15. LOANS AND ADVANCES (continued)

An analysis of the gross amount of loans and advances based on the usage
is as follows:

45 ) B8R 47 The Group and the Bank

2022 2021

T o T WM e

MOP’000 MOP’000

T - PHEERMG R % Industrial, commercial and financial purposes 139,233,932 145,944,930
mA Individual 73,268,607 74,937,149
B i Trade finance 2,791,989 11,380,751
B HGR A Gross loans and advances 215,294,528 232,262,830

K B R DL B A T o L R AT R R A
£50.70% %28.80% (2021412 H31H : 0.30% %

28.80%) °

The loans and advances are at amortised cost and bear effective interest
rate of 0.70% to 28.80% per annum (31 December 2021: 0.30% to 28.80%
per annum).
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16.  DAHRER BAS T B 0 45 & B R 2 3

W H "

(a)  DAHEGR AT B B S b A

16.
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST AND
HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

(a)  Financial assets at amortised cost

4 AT
The Group The Bank
2022 2021 2022 2021
TF#M e THM o F#M e THM o
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
DL A G R M 4 B & ©  Financial assets at amortised cost:
i Quoted:
- 5% -~ Debt securities 33,283,920 N/A 33,259,566 N/A
- fF K - Certificates of deposit 25,896,173 N/A 25,896,173 N/A
- AEMEAE — Less: impairment allowances (87,227) N/A (87,203) N/A
- P B — Stage 1 (18,798) N/A (18,774) N/A
- BB — Stage 2 - N/A - N/A
- =P B - Stage 3 (68,429) N/A (68,429) N/A
59,092,866 N/A 59,068,536 N/A
- BUN &7 — Treasury bills 11,046,530 N/A 11,046,530 N/A
- 0 Uk (A — Less: impairment allowances (2,820) N/A (2,820) N/A
- B PEB - Stage 1 (2,820) N/A (2,820) N/A
i — Stage 2 - N/A - N/A
- B — Stage 3 - N/A - N/A
11,043,710 N/A 11,043,710 N/A
70,136,576 N/A 70,112,246 N/A
AT RS # 4 i DLBR AR B A Financial assets at amortised cost
i Y 4 T S A R analysed by category of issuer as
follows:

LR Government 12,881,306 N/A 12,881,306 N/A
Al Corporate entities 11,942,830 N/A 11,918,500 N/A
SRAT B At 4 il B Banks and other financial institutions 45,312,440 N/A 45,312,440 N/A
70,136,576 N/A 70,112,246 N/A
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16. DIHEEtR ARG B ESRE EffEE 25 16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST AND
B H#RE @ HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS (continued)
b)) FEEIWHKE (b)  Held to maturity investments
M AT
The Group The Bank
2022 2021 2022 2021
TFWM THM T TWM THM T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
PLBE 6% AR Wi 5 B AGF5 4 £ 5] Held-to-maturity investments, at
WH#% : amortised cost:
i Quoted:
- fif - Debt securities N/A 22,742,992 N/A 22,718,465
- fE K — Certificates of deposit N/A 20,350,664 N/A 20,350,664
— i+ A e — Less: impairment allowances N/A (88,383) N/A (88,362)
- B — Stage 1 N/A (19,876) N/A (19,855)
- B — Stage 2 N/A = N/A =
2 - Stage 3 N/A (68,507) N/A (68,507)
N/A 43,005,273 N/A 42,980,767
- BURF 27 ~ Treasury bills N/A 8,939,523 N/A 8,939,523
— o+ A E A — Less: impairment allowances N/A (1,063) N/A (1,063)
- PR B - Stage 1 N/A (1,063) N/A (1,063)
- BB - Stage 2 N/A = N/A =
i - Stage 3 N/A = N/A =
N/A 8,938,460 N/A 8,938,460
N/A 51,943,733 N/A 51,919,227
R BEAT LR B 4 1R 23 Held-to-maturity investments analysed
H & 4k - by category of issuer as follows:
LR Government N/A 9,064,197 N/A 9,064,197
/N Corporate entities N/A 6,938,045 N/A 6,913,539
SRAT P HoAth 4 i 1 Banks and other financial institutions N/A 35,941,491 N/A 35,941,491
N/A 51,943,733 N/A 51,919,227
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17. DA e fE ) EOL S By st A A AR & 17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
W2 4 < Rl A0 T 36 A B OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(a) PAA REAEFHE B A A4 (a) Financial assets at FVOCI
B W Y 4 Tl A
£ The Group
2022 2021
T#M T T IT
MOP’000 MOP’000
PLos fefE Al Rl & H L8 B sk A Financial assets at FVOCI
H Al 57 6 W o 4 LR AR
b Quoted:
- i - Debt securities 31,783,329 N/A
I b Unquoted:
- 4 — Equities securities 21,291 N/A
31,804,620 N/A
135 25 ol (B A Impairment allowance for debt securities
- P B - stage 1 (20,757) N/A
AT R B M DL A A MEFET  Financial assets at FVOCI analysed by category of issuer as
B HH B 5 A K b 47 A ek follows:
FH <3 Bl S A
U Government 518,615 N/A
A Corporate entities 17,986,189 N/A
SRAT S HoAth <5 Bl A Banks and other financial institutions 13,299,816 N/A
31,804,620 N/A
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Bt A AbEE A 17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

(@) DA s H A W) 5l A = b 53 (a)  Financial assets at FVOCI (continued)
W 2% 1 4 Tl ()

17 The Bank
2022 2021
TWMT T T
MOP’000 MOP’000
DL e B AR A HO B2 B 5 A Financial assets at FVOCI
At &% W A Y 4 O
b Quoted:
- % — Debt securities 31,692,993 N/A
I b Unquoted:
- 4 — Equities securities 21,291 N/A
31,714,284 N/A
{35 55 V(L HE A Impairment allowance for debt securities
- P B — stage 1 (20,645) N/A
AT R B M DL A A MEFET  Financial assets at FVOCI analysed by category of issuer as
B H 2 E R A A 456 Wi follows:
PR <6 i A M
U Government 518,615 N/A
A Corporate entities 17,909,674 N/A
SRAT B FCAth 4 B g Banks and other financial institutions 13,285,995 N/A
31,714,284 N/A
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

(b)  Available-for-sale investments

e 3 The Group
2022 2021
T WM T IT
MOP’000 MOP’000
w5 Available-for-sale
ol Quoted:
- A REEFERNES - Debt securities, at fair value N/A 36,809,142
I b Unquoted:
- WA I RE AR - Equity securities, at cost N/A 10,176
N/A 36,819,318
125 25 Yl (L A Impairment allowance for debt securities
- BB - stage 1 N/A (14,989)
FEBEAT E RSB 0T ik BBt Available-for-sale investments analysed by category of issuer as
jog=1 = follows:
B Government N/A 63,354
A Corporate entities N/A 20,246,469
SRAT P HoAth 4 i 14 Banks and other financial institutions N/A 16,509,495
N/A 36,819,318
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17. DA e f Gt & B S 8t A b iR & 17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
W 2 Y < Tl A R) Bt B R (o) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)
(b) ] At B S (@) (b)  Available-for-sale investments (continued)
HiT The Bank
2022 2021
T WM T IT
MOP’000 MOP’000
wl gk R Available-for-sale
ol Quoted:
- DI B (E R R 1 — Debt securities, at fair value N/A 36,697,547
I b Unquoted:
- A E R R AR A - Equity securities,, at cost N/A 10,176
N/A 36,707,723
125 75 Yl (L A Impairment allowance for debt securities
- BB - stage 1 N/A (14,903)

T PEAT B 4 B Tt 5 B3% Available-for-sale investments analysed by category of issuer as

jag=1 = follows:

U Government N/A 63,354
A Corporate entities N/A 20,150,986
SRAT B H Ath 4 AR Banks and other financial institutions N/A 16,493,383
N/A 36,707,723

18. TAVRELR 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

S The Bank

2022 2021
TWM e TMIT
MOP’000 MOP’000
DA RAS FEE 0 FE E TRy Unlisted shares, at cost 79,980 79,980
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
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FARIMFEFEWT Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:
20224 12H 31 H K20215£ 1231 H
ek aE MRS R A AT O A B A i JEEAF; 2 L £l FERH
Place of incorporation Nominal value of issued Percentage of equity attributable Principal
Name and operation ordinary share capital 31 December 2022 and 2021 activities
HE il 4%

Direct Indirect
BRI A R & 27T ERCL7/E
Seng Heng Development Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100.00% - Property holding
A (RP) B ey A FRA 7 i 50,000,000% '] 7 BEEA
ICBC (Macau) Capital Limited Macau MOP50,000,000 99.60% 0.40% Investment
management
TR GRM) BARESERBEHARAR WM 30,000,000% [ & BRI
ICBC (Macau) Pension Fund Management Macau MOP30,000,000 99.93% 0.07% Pension fund

Company Limited

management
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19. Y3 - R Kk 19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
£ The Group
3193
b R FlEdes  HOEE B At
Furniture Motor
Land and and vehicles and
buildings fixtures equipment Total
T#MT T#MT T#M T T#M T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
BAR Cost:
20224F1 7 1H At 1 January 2022 214,029 238,804 334,091 786,924
NE Additions - 46,251 24,658 70,909
Jig Disposals - (17,285) (21,048) (38,333)
20224F12H31H At 31 December 2022 214,029 267,770 337,701 819,500
Bt - Accumulated depreciation:
20224F1H1H At 1 January 2022 93,942 157,888 267,576 519,406
ARAEFHR Depreciation provided during the year 3,987 24,173 29,465 57,625
AAF R E Disposals = (17,166) (20,878) (38,044)
20224F1231H At 31 December 2022 97,929 164,895 276,163 538,987
G THI ¥ L Net carrying amount:
20224F12H31H At 31 December 2022 116,100 102,875 61,538 280,513
A7 The Bank
B K
b e Il 5 % L B 5 A At
Furniture Motor
Land and and vehicles and
buildings fixtures equipment Total
T#M e T T#M e T#M e
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
BAR Cost:
20224F11H At 1 January 2022 214,029 238,105 331,681 783,815
WA Additions - 46,251 24,658 70,909
i Disposals - (17,266) (21,028) (38,294)
20224F12H31H At 31 December 2022 214,029 267,090 335,311 816,430
2t - Accumulated depreciation:
20224F1 A 1H At 1 January 2022 93,942 157,255 265,206 516,403
A4 G Depreciation provided during the year 3,987 24,159 29,437 57,583
AN R Disposals - (17,147) (20,858) (38,005)
20224F12H31H At 31 December 2022 97,929 164,267 273,785 535,981
I i ¥ A Net carrying amount:
20224F12H31H At 31 December 2022 116,100 102,823 61,526 280,449
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19. 3 - B Kk () 19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
£ The Group
BAR K&
b e M W E R E SR B A sEt
Furniture Motor
Land and and vehicles and
buildings fixtures equipment Total
THM 7T M 7T TMRM T THRM T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
BAR Cost:
20214F1 7 1H At 1 January 2021 214,029 244,280 307,647 765,956
WE Additions = 13,551 33,320 46,871
Ji% Disposals = (19,027) (6,876) (25,903)
20214F12H31H At 31 December 2021 214,029 238,804 334,091 786,924
2t - Accumulated depreciation:
20214F1 A 1H At 1 January 2021 89,955 157,247 243,566 490,768
A FHR Depreciation provided during the year 3,987 19,437 30,773 54,197
ARAE R E Disposals = (18,796) (6,763) (25,559)
2021412 31 H At 31 December 2021 93,942 157,888 267,576 519,406
R TR V5 ¢ Net carrying amount:
2021412 H31H At 31 December 2021 120,087 80,916 66,515 267,518
17 The Bank
BAR K
b F A e RE HU B R A HEt
Furniture Motor
Land and and vehicles and
buildings fixtures equipment Total
TMWM T TMWMT TMM o TMT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
BAR Cost:
2021417 1H At 1 January 2021 214,029 243,577 305,237 762,843
wHE Additions - 13,536 33,320 46,856
B Disposals - (19,008) (6,876) (25,884)
20214E12 311 At 31 December 2021 214,029 238,105 331,681 783,815
B2t - Accumulated depreciation:
20214E1A1H At 1 January 2021 89,955 156,618 241,372 487,945
ALEFHR Depreciation provided during the year 3,987 19,420 30,597 54,004
AAF R E Disposals = (18,783) (6,763) (25,546)
20214F12H31H At 31 December 2021 93,942 157,255 265,206 516,403
i T ¥ Net carrying amount:
20214F12H31H At 31 December 2021 120,087 80,850 66,475 267,412
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19. W3 - BB Kkt (a0 19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
A B ] Ty AR AT HEF I B A B AT AR A geographical analysis of the Group’s and the Bank’s buildings is as
follows:
45 1 WA
The Group and the Bank
2022 2021
F#M e TMMo
MOP’000 MOP’000
LA Macau 116,100 120,087
20. HRE S b E 20. INVESTMENT PROPERTY
B
The Group
TH#M e
MOP’000
JRAR Cost:
20214F1H1H » 202141231 H At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and
DA 220224712 H31H 31 December 2022 67,943
Bt - Accumulated depreciation:
20214F1H1H At 1 January 2021 16,970
A G Depreciation charge for the year 717
20214F12J131H At 31 December 2021 17,687
A4 G Depreciation charge for the year 717
20224F1231H At 31 December 2022 18,404
W TH ¥ A Net carrying amount:
20224F12H31H At 31 December 2022 49,539
20214F12A31H At 31 December 2021 50,256

A & T A R s > #k20224R 12 H 31
H o 38 Hh a2 fo A8 (5 g S 28 1 30 50 1 56
=g > HN Ao 18 E 565,618,680 M T (20214F12 A
31H : 82,023,35018 "] J6) o H/A 7o A8 (B 57 A A% R 2l
B4 U DA g o B A% 1) A BLRMEAT I BTG -
54 % B8 T R 2 1 35 L 4 B TR (8 DA R 5% W) 6 10
PHE 2R o 7 B SR AR5 ) 6B A b 3L AT
oo N RABE I E R M E 2 e Ko AR &
7 L TR R IR I 4 A o

The Group’s investment property is situated in Hong Kong. The fair
value hierarchy of the investment property is categorised as level 3 and
the fair value of the investment property on 31 December 2022 was
MOP65,618,680 (31 December 2021: MOP82,023,350). The fair value of
the investment property is determined by discounting a projected cash
flow series associated with the property using risk-adjusted discount rates.
The value has taken into account of expected market rental and occupancy
rate of the respective property. The discount rates used have been adjusted
for the quality and location of the building. The fair value is derived from
the highest and best use of the investment property which is consistent
with the current use.
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21. [ 21. DEPOSITS FROM BANKS
e JUE R
The Group and the Bank
2022 2021
T#Me THWMT
MOP’000 MOP’000
BT I AR AN SRAT A K Money market acceptances and bank balances 95,913,287 71,509,818

&5 B Hc B B AR Wi o 32 ) i LR YE R 0 B 1)
TG R -

The balances are measured at amortised cost. Transactions are conducted
on terms that are usual and customary to standard business activities.

22. HPAR 22. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
et AT
The Group The Bank
2022 2021 2022 2021
T#M T T 5T T#MT T 5T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
T A7 3R B AR AR AF K Demand deposits and current accounts 15,989,449 10,031,638 16,152,885 10,101,995
EETEN Savings deposits 36,317,053 36,295,414 36,319,063 36,299,334
& A K FNAT K Time and call deposits 195,989,813 213,169,069 196,016,535 213,356,887
248,296,315 259,496,121 248,488,483 259,758,216
B R B ROAS T A o 32 5 4R BRBR VE TR SRS B Y The balances are measured at amortised cost. Transactions are conducted
B A O on terms that are usual and customary to standard business activities.
23. BIEHIH 23. DEFERRED TAX

AR 2 T e B 2 % AR

VIR 3908 S T B T BELAE S BT A5 B AL TG R A
O B 5 R DL B

IESE TR R (AT AEEB I T

134

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset.

The movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the year are as
follows:
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23. ﬁé }E ﬁélﬂ (#%) 23. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
IR A ROE R R B E &) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (continued)
£ The Group
YR AR
At g
Bt A A
SMEEN  EAREEN Hews g
YR LY g T W it ¥
Impairment
allowance on  Revaluation of Accelerated
financial ~financial assets Cash flow tax
assets at FVOCI hedge  depreciation Total
T THM T8 T 7 T 7
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
20224611 1H At 1 January 2022 (136,037) (5,859) (87) (15,349) (157,332)
AEEEHIAZT T A Deferred tax charged to the profit or loss during the year (6,759) - - (68) (6,827)
AEEAR B AEL  Deferred tax credited to the equity during the year - 161,724 585 - 162,309
20224F12 /131 H At 31 December 2022 (142,796) 155,865 498 (15,417) (1,850)
i) The Bank
YA R
b H
Bt A A
SMEEN  EAREE Bewi g 4
QIR Y g £ i ¥
Impairment
allowance on  Revaluation of Accelerated
financial ~ financial assets Cash flow tax
assets at FVOCI hedge  depreciation Total
T THM T8 T 7 T 7
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
20224F1A1H At 1 January 2022 (136,055) (6,029) (87) (12,914) (155,085)
AEREHIAZI T ABS  Deferred tax charged to the profit or loss during the year (6,768) - - (67) (6,835)
AEEEBIAZI T AL Deferred tax credited to the equity during the year = 160,640 585 - 161,225
20224121311 At 31 December 2022 (142,823) 154,611 498 (12,981) (695)
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23. EIEFLIE (m0)

AR SiE P 15 B0 2 % BT ()

23. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities (continued)

£ The Group
SHEEN TS BEns TR B
L E A B H EH i it
Impairment ~ Revaluation of Accelerated
allowance on  available-for-sale Cash flow tax
financial assets investments hedge depreciation Total
THMT THMT THMT THRM T THRM T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
2021417 1H At 1 January 2021 (111,666) (51,293) 121 (14,934) 177,772)
AFIRIERIAS B FHAEE  Deferred tax charged to the profit or loss during the year (24,371) - - (415) (24,786)
AFIRIEBIAZ B FH AL Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the equity during the year = 45,434 (208) - 45,226
20214121311 At 31 December 2021 (136,037) (5,859) (87) (15,349) (157,332)
#UT The Bank
SMEEN  AHHES Bans BB
BE A B £l it st
Impairment  Revaluation of Accelerated
allowance on  available-for-sale Cash flow tax
financial assets investments hedge depreciation Total
TRMT TRMT TRMT THRMT TRMT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
20214611 1H At 1 January 2021 (111,672) (51,708) 121 (12,603) (175,862)
AFIRIEBIASE B TH A B Deferred tax charged to the profit or loss during the year (24,383) - - (311) (24,694)
AEREHIALD T AR Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the equity during the year - 45,679 (208) = 45471
20214F 1231 H At 31 December 2021 (136,055) (6,029) (87) (12914) (155,085)
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24. SHARE CAPITAL AND DIVIDENDS

(a) BEAS (a)  Share capital
2022 2021
T8 o T WM T
MOP’000 MOP’000
W Authorised:
— T # - 51,00008 5T 1,000,000 shares of MOP1,000 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
CETECHR Issued and fully paid:
1H1H 12431 H588,920/% 588,920 (2021: 588,920) shares of MOP1,000 each at
(20214F : 588,920/%) » 1 January and 31 December
5 11,0001 '] T 588,920 588,920
b)) KB (b) Dividends
2022 2021
TW#M T THM 7T
MOP’000 MOP’000
ASAE BE AT B BUF EECL A% 2 Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year,
91PN approved and paid during the year 333,526 352,161
25. WRERAME 25. LEGAL RESERVE
TR 2 SRAT B ARBRZETE B - A4T RHAEBM 2 Under the Macau banking and insurance legislation, the Bank and its
T F JE S5 D AR S TR A AR AR B8] 20% 2 K T 5 subsidiaries incorporated in Macau (the “Macau subsidiaries”) are required
NG M 4 B R S 2 SR AT ) to transfer to a legal reserve an amount equal to a minimum of 20% of its
HAEBRMTFA A& BB 8T R ESUEBRA Z50%%5 annual profit after tax until the amount of the reserve is equal to 50% of
1k o AR T A 2 SR A JE R AR AE A R AR BLAR LR their respective issued and fully paid-up share capital. Thereafter, transfers
R D10%KHE - B B RZERE S SEAE R AT K must continue at a minimum annual rate of 10% until the reserve is equal
RAEMWRMZ TAFE& B C 81T XAUR BRA 1L - to the Bank’s and the Macau subsidiaries’ respective issued and fully paid-
AHe Y A 5 B A 0 U 2 R SRR R A DL A AT AR up share capital. This reserve is only distributable in accordance with
SRR > SR B AF K B b AR B AR R certain limited circumstances prescribed by statute and will be transferred

B AR A o

from the annual profit after tax upon the approval by the shareholders in
the annual general meeting after the end of reporting period.
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26. Rt B AR B 26. COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES
AR B BLAAT R R A B LR 2 B RORGE T The maximum commitments of the Group and the Bank under the

following instruments:

4 [ S ERAT
The Group and the Bank
2022 2021
T T T
MOP’000 MOP’000
AR FOKH Undrawn loan commitments 60,214,945 71,914,621
PRI Guarantees 14,119,383 12,008,958
By P BHSLAG AR T AME S Commitments under letters of credit on behalf of customers 779,398 469,348
75,113,726 84,392,927
27. MEMBELH 27. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(@) AHEEAEZ AL (a)  Aslessor
AN B AR L 22 P R A B 1 Tt (T The Group leases its investment property (note 20) under operating
#520) o WP 25345 o AR B HORAL S X lease arrangements, with a lease negotiated for a term of three
AN DR 58 < M0 AR 5 T 355 1 DL A B AT A o years. The terms of the lease require the tenant to pay security

deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
prevailing market conditions.

#20224F12 H31H - A4 BT 51 3 B Y R At 31 December 2022, the Group had total future minimum lease
A AR B A8 A AL B e AR A B G R A receivables under a non-cancellable operating lease with its tenant

falling due as follows:

#1

The Group
2022 2021
Tt THWM T
MOP’000 MOP’000
HERLA Within one year 2,131 2,131
1-54F (7)) In between one to five years 2,131 4,262
4,262 6,393
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27. MEMELH @ 27. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
(b) AL AN (b)  As lessee
A A [ DA A B 2 B R A s R - 1 The Group leases buildings under operating lease arrangement with
P A1 R 104F R 55 o AL RAATHE T leases negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 10 years. The Group
1 A 8 1) S SRS 1 A8 L B e S AN R A and the Bank had total future commitments of lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases with its landlords falling due
as follows:
4 1 SR AT
The Group and the Bank
2022 2021
T#MT T 7T
MOP’000 MOP’000
HERLA Within one year 183,454 149,606
1-54F (&) In between one to five years 649,743 430,290
S4ERL L After five years 835,150 659,240
1,668,347 1,239,136
28. itk g E X H AR 28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

7 42 [R5 A A AT A B B DA S 5 a3 i A S B
IR 6 2 R A BB 4% H Y o

I5 5 A2 T 7 AE — TR A ] Sc i — R E R 2

Bl -

EM AR R AL EER EE e
il TH 2 5 #3695

RN A A O AT AR AR A R E
HRAESH - ARESFIFHRATAE THEES
Bl A AR H R I TR R SE A B Y R > (H
R FE RE A S I R BRI I R AR B L
SR ECRE AT AR E R - B RAE R Bk
I 1 PR o v 355 B

The Group uses the derivative financial instruments for trading or for
hedging future fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Swaps are contracts in which two parties exchange cash flows on a
specified notional amount for a predetermined period.

Forwards are contractual obligations to buy or sell a financial instrument
on a future date at a specified price.

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments
recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional amounts. The
notional amount is the basis upon which changes in the value of derivatives
are measured. The notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions
outstanding at the period end, however they do not necessarily indicate
the amounts of future cash flows involvedor the current fair values of the
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit
or market risks.
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28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(continued)

£ B AT
The Group and the Bank
2022412 31H
31 December 2022

HEEW ¥ HEEW £ 1%
Notional Notional

amount Assets amount Liabilities
TH#M T WMo TWM o TWM o
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

A BE A5 £ Foreign exchange contracts
G Forward contracts 211,189 50 1,693,665 1,149
£ W3 1 Currency swaps 37,904,655 1,099,554 32,530,476 830,131
HARE Options 23,259 74 23,259 74
38,139,103 1,099,678 34,247,400 831,354

FEREH Interest rate contracts
M 2 4 8 Interest rate swaps 89,792 6,430 89,792 6,226
38,228,895 1,106,108 34,337,192 837,580
£ [ BLGR AT
The Group and the Bank
20214F12J131H
31 December 2021
LB G LB ffH
Notional Notional

amount Assets amount Liabilities
TFWM T FWM T TFWM T TFWM T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

A & A5 £ Foreign exchange contracts
E A X Forward contracts 112,615 2,046 707,593 2,260
g ] Currency swaps 16,116,008 348,758 27,125,614 557,123
I Options 28 3 28 3
16,228,651 350,807 27,833,235 559,386

FIRAEH Interest rate contracts

7 22 4o 1] Interest rate swaps 105,469 1,228 105,470 894
16,334,120 352,035 27,938,705 560,280

— B b AT TR W W RS 5 M B R R R
R EEARGW R E R o (HR2 T HRE W
HRA I ) AR B BOBOR ) B B A

HHE A5 W AT AL 7 T R 6 SR AT T R R S T
Sy BRI 5| A 1T AR B

A A T B0 A A TR A 2 i 00 A B B A —
gF > S F Bk B
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At inception, derivatives often involve only a mutual exchange of promises
with little or no transfer of consideration. However, these instruments
frequently involve a high degree of leverage and are very volatile.

Over-the-counter derivatives may expose the Group to the risks associated
with the absence of an exchange market on which to close out an open
position.

The Group’s exposure under derivative contracts is closely monitored as
part of the overall management of its market risk.
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29. BT 29. DEBTS ISSUED
4 ] SR AT

The Group and the Bank
2022 2021
T8 o T WM T
MOP’000 MOP’000
EFSE L Variable coupon rate notes 8,229,750 8,230,795
E S R Fixed coupon rate notes 6,291,148 3,981,619
14,520,898 12,212,414

JIr A BEAT R 340 A ORI DA B B A w2 o

All debt securities issued are unsecured and measured at amortised cost.

30. WATHERE 30. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED
£ B T

The Group and the Bank
2022 2021
THM TH®MIT
MOP’000 MOP’000
IE B RF 75 3 ELBARR /N 45 72318 A 3 months or less but not repayable on demand 55,130,943 33,801,677
3 H LA E14E LA 1 year or less but over 3 months 8,280,015 24,075,820
63,410,958 57,877,497

A 17 45080 00 ol LA 0 R <

31. IOl 31.

ARG A T B R R R e

A A1 P AR 482 FL B3 T SR AT 7T 52 A ] e o 2
ARHEAT 22 5y o AR 0] I Bl 0 A > Mt S0 T R 1)
ST RATER 3% 55 W IR 09 53k T A RE o (H i 2 &
7 [ 5> A% SR B AT TE T k30 D o R R R S
Jr o BRI FEA MBS R P o RAC L R R
F o TSR A HEAR 20 48 3 T SRATMEAT I R AR R0 [0
Y] @HBUT - AAELHEREFTHBENE
P - 3BT 8RAT A REAE I8 (R4 P SR s

All certificates of deposit issued are unsecured and measured at amortised
cost.

REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

The Group has a programme to sell securities under repurchase
agreements (repos).

The Group conducts these transactions under the terms that are based on
the Master Repurchase Agreement entered between the Group and the
counterparty bank. As stipulated in the repurchase agreements, there was
no transfer of the legal ownership of these securities to the counterparty
bank during the covered period. However, the Group was not allowed
to sell or pledge these securities during the covered period unless both
parties mutually agree with such arrangement. Accordingly, these securities
were not derecognised from the financial statements but regarded as
“collateral” for the secured lending from the counterparty bank. Normally,
the counterparty bank could only claim from the collateral when there is
an event of default on the secured lending.
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31. [0 fh 31. REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS
T ER By bl AR AR T B AT A 2 20224F 12 H 31 H A 4F The following table analyses the carrying amount of the above mentioned
B #% 1 B ERAGE A 1 S () A R M AR AT A 2 financial assets sold by the Group and the Bank under agreements to
PR FF AR B <2 8 10 SR T (0 A repurchase as at 31 December 2022 that did not qualify for derecognition
and their associated financial liabilities in interbank takings:
4 B AT The Group and the Bank
2022 2021
EMEER  HBARKR SREER  HEARR
T {5 {E T {5 {E T {8 (B T {3 (L
Carrying Carrying
Carrying  amount of the Carrying  amount of the
amount of the associated  amount of the associated
financial assets liabilities  financial assets liabilities
T#M e T#M e THM T T T
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
DA B EEH R H S8 85 A Financial assets at FVOCI
HO A £ A i 01 <6 T 8,945,653 8,367,718 = =
A B Available-for-sale investments - - 8,268,872 7,868,491
DABEER A ST R 4 MUE & Financial assets at amortised cost 10,522,058 9,425,305 - -
R 22 H & Held-to-maturity investments = = 4,887,483 4,742,292
19,467,711 17,793,023 13,156,355 12,610,783
32. HEH AL EAR 32. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

TRIUR T AL b FEIEB AL AT
BAFERER IR e 2 - AEERTELN A
FIRTEALENBSRERADE LB EE T
JEE A 19 B 4 U AR A B A AR A AL e

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s and the BanK’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash

changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which

cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the statements of

cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

£ W B AT The Group and the Bank
BTk BT R J A Mgt
Certificates of
deposit issued Debts issued Dividend Total
TWM e TWM o TWM o TWM oo
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
20224F1H1H At 1 January 2022 57,877,497 12,212,414 = 70,089,911
0 ) E A B A Cash flows from financing activities 5,760,286 2,349,426 (333,526) 7,776,186
JBEA B IR Dividend declared = = 333,526 333,526
[ 58, 25 %A Exchange difference (226,825) (40,942) = (267,767)
20224E12H31H At 31 December 2022 63,410,958 14,520,898 = 77,931,856
33, HEAHE 33. RECLASSIFICATION

AT MR O AR | IS AR AR 25
HEK o
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Certain reclassifications have been made to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 conforming the

classifications used in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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Bt % 31 2 1 & (18 35AMCMO006/B/2022-DSB/AMCM3% X #4)

Financial Information Disclosure (In Accordance with AMCMO006/B/2022-DSB/AMCM)

o I v S8R4T (MR B A BR 2 W

1. HMEES

BRI P < il % 2 T o BE DS 75k (1) N SR 7505 (3)

PR A EEUEE -
a.  AHFMBRILE

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial System Act of Macau (FSAM).

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

In terms of information required under Article 75(1) and 75(3) of the

a. Consolidated statement of financial position

£ [ ) i Group Level
- Sty ST A
+oAStF—R FSA=t—H
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
T WMy T IT
% Assets MOP’000 MOP’000
B4 RARATAE 3K Cash and balances with banks 25,318,960 31,351,050
A7 WCEE W SRy RO Deposits with monetary authority 9,355,240 5,373,369
Pk [A] 2 Placements with other banks 102,014,992 75,467,442
fir A A & Derivative financial assets 1,106,108 352,035
LR S BGK Loans and advances 213,122,669 230,672,782
PIA B ER R B S H A M Financial assets at fair value through
i i 1Y 4 P other comprehensive income 31,804,620 =
AT B SRR Available-for-sale investments = 36,819,318
DA B (E R L @I ARG Financial assets at fair value through
g E profit or loss 325,394 682,622
DS 6 A 1 ) 4 Financial assets at amortised cost 70,136,576 -
A EF M ERE Held-to-maturity investments - 51,943,733
JRE WS T S At Receivables and other assets 7,183,079 5,375,981
JRE i T A5 Income tax receivables 52,410 40,871
LE RN & ] Property, plant and equipment 280,513 267,518
G Investment property 49,539 50,256
AR e Total assets 460,750,100 438,396,977
£ Liabilities
] SEAF L Deposits from banks 95,913,287 71,509,818
B A Deposits from customers 248,296,315 259,496,121
higack ot S= K-} Derivative financial liabilities 837,580 560,280
DL s B (B S ) et AR 4R 10 Financial liabilities at fair value through
4 Al AL profit or loss 325,250 682,396
BT RUB R R Debt issued 14,520,898 12,212,414
BATAT EGE Certificates of deposit issued 63,410,958 57,877,497
JESUT A5 B Income tax payable 354,190 329,272
% 4E T 45 B A AR Deferred tax liabilities 1,850 157,332
Hopth A f Other liabilities 6,418,242 5,679,190
48 £ F Total liabilities 430,078,570 408,504,320
Fi A % b d Equity
e AR Issued share capital 588,920 588,920
feti Reserves 30,082,610 29,303,737
Horb o — BB Includes: General regulatory reserve 336,178 1,146,737
R E B Specific regulatory reserve 821,920 =
R Xt Total equity 30,671,530 29,892,657
FUR KA R AR A Total equity and liabilities 460,750,100 438,396,977
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1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

b. WA AR L3R b. Statement of financial position
SR 47 I Bank Level
ot St ey
+ZA=4+—H F+TZH=1+—H
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
FWM T Mo
V2953 Assets MOP’000 MOP’000
4 T SRAT A7 3K Cash and balances with banks 25,171,618 31,321,630
A B W8 R 3 Deposits with monetary authority 9,355,240 5,373,369
SV SEES Placements with other banks 102,014,992 75,467,442
fir A 4 Rl e Derivative financial assets 1,106,108 352,035
S 0E T Loans and advances 213,122,669 230,672,782
DL s B B S #) it A A AR A Financial assets at fair value through
Wi i 1Y 4 T E other comprehensive income 31,714,284 =
A B ERE Available-for-sale investments - 36,707,723
DA e fE(E s H S # ARG Financial assets at fair value through
4 Rl profit or loss 325,394 682,622
VAR B AS 1 A9 4 Rl Financial assets at amortised cost 70,112,246 -
R 23 H & Held-to-maturity investments - 51,919,227
JHRE AR T S At Receivables and other assets 7,221,019 5,413,221
R T 45 Income tax receivables 52,411 40,871
A T RE £ Interests in subsidiaries 79,980 79,980
LESN Y& Property, plant and equipment 280,449 267,412
HE Total assets 460,556,410 438,298,314
fafii Liabilities
[ SE A7 K Deposits from banks 95,913,287 71,509,818
E-IRFES e Deposits from customers 248,488,483 259,758,216
fir A= 4 il & K Derivative financial liabilities 837,580 560,280
PLs o B (i H O i A 4R 10 Financial liabilities at fair value through
G =R profit or loss 325,250 682,396
AT R 5 Debt issued 14,520,898 12,212,414
AT Certificates of deposit issued 63,410,958 57,877,497
JRE ST AL Income tax payable 346,743 321,934
R SE T 5B A R Deferred tax liabilities 695 155,085
HoAth & f Other liabilities 6,357,111 5,606,572
484 F Total liabilities 430,201,005 408,684,212
UECEAR £ Equity
JeA Issued share capital 588,920 588,920
fiti b Reserves 29,766,485 29,025,182
Hops — i A Includes: General regulatory reserve 336,178 1,146,737
R E B Specific regulatory reserve 821,920 =
i A % REAR A T Total equity 30,355,405 29,614,102
U B B R R AR T Total equity and liabilities 460,556,410 438,298,314
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1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

comprehensive income

A4 10 )i i Group Level
BREFT-A=Z—HI4EE
For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021

T®|M T T T

MOP’000 MOP’000

B WA Interest income 10,481,992 7,639,606
FIE S Interest expense (6,517,588) (3,371,696)
A EFWRA Net interest income 3,964,404 4,267,910
TR M E A Fee and commission income 1,006,491 1,171,386
FE A4S Fee and commission expense (317,144) (254,830)
FHEEEMEFRA Net fee and commission income 689,347 916,556
HoAbE A Other operating income 229,447 190,372
Z2EKA Operating income 4,883,198 5,374,838
e 40 Operating expenses (1,199,293) (1,228,202)
& A DA TR 2k i A% 2 R Operating profit before impairment losses 3,683,905 4,146,636

¥ (B AR T Net charge for impairment losses on financial

instruments (1,156,749) (1,613,825)

HA B4R Other income 88,472 38,035
B i A Profit before tax 2,615,628 2,570,846
RETA Income tax expense (321,731) (301,099)
pory S| Profit for the year 2,293,897 2,269,747
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INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

#) c. Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income (continued)

Group Level (continued)

BET A=+ — B IL4E
For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021
Tt T T
MOP’000 MOP’000
Hopb g7 & (BR) Wk (BB 5 5) Other comprehensive (loss)/income (net of tax)
7B A & o8 B 50 HAb g & Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will not be
(HRFR) S lkss reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
5 7E A B E RN H S 85 AFH 454G Change in investment revaluation reserve of equity
e i 1 HE A 8 3 A (Aot A 52 ) investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (1,883) =
1% 8015 B 2R A 0 Hib g & (B2 Other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be
et reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
HeEneEMTHEN LA AEESS Change in fair value of hedging instruments under
cash flow hedges (4,289) 1,524
DA o R H IS8 5 A AR4E A Itii  Change in investment revaluation reserve of debt
0 5 05 45 A (B 52 ) securities measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income
- A RAEE R B - Change in fair value (1,133,145) -
- R ERE B ERG - Release to profit or loss upon disposal (61,125) =

AR 0

T3t e AR S 2 B O A (B S )

- Change in impairment allowances charged to profit
or loss 5,768 =
Change in investment revaluation reserve of available-
for-sale debt investment

- ARAEER S B - Change in fair value = (155,413)
- R ERE B ERG - Release to profit or loss upon disposal = (177,769)
— FTAHE A5 14 U8 5 ) - Change in impairment allowances charged to profit

or loss = 7,186
e b8, 26 31 Exchange differences 2,902 3,914
EEHMAEEEE BB TEHE Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (1,191,772) (320,558)
AW AE  BRREEHE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,102,125 1,949,189
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INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

d. H s K H AR AR d.  Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
SR 47 I Bank Level
HBEFT_HA=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021

WM T Mo

MOP’000 MOP’000

B A Interest income 10,476,618 7,634,367
FE Interest expense (6,520,558) (3,373,669)

FEF A Net interest income 3,956,060 4,260,698

FEE LS RA Fee and commission income 940,858 1,102,709
FHEE RS T H Fee and commission expense (317,298) (255,229)

FHEEBLRAEFBRA Net fee and commission income 623,560 847,480

HAb A Other operating income 229,944 189,726

BERA Operating income 4,809,564 5,297,904
wEEM Operating expenses (1,177,218) (1,202,009)

B A DA TR S Hi A A Operating profit before impairment losses 3,632,346 4,095,895

R WA AR R A Net charge for impairment losses on financial

instruments (1,156,641) (1,613,762)

EERIESE Other income 88,473 35,993

e w1 Profit before tax 2,564,178 2,518,126
RETA Income tax expense (315,678) (294,618)

ey b Profit for the year 2,248,500 2,223,508
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1. MHAES @ 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

d. R S HA AR A i AR 2R () d.  Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

(continued)

AT I I (#10) Bank Level (continued)
BET-H=Z1T—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December
2022 2021
Tt T T
MOP’000 MOP’000
Hopb g7 & (BR) Wk (BB 5 5) Other comprehensive (loss)/income (net of tax)
7B A & o8 B 50 HAb g & Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will not be
(HRFR) S lkss reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
5 7E A B E RN H S 85 AFH 454G Change in investment revaluation reserve of equity
e i 1 HE A 8 3 A (Aot A 52 ) investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (1,883) =
1% 8015 B 2R A 0 Hib g & (B2 Other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be
et reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
HeEneEMTHEN LA AEESS Change in fair value of hedging instruments under
cash flow hedges (4,289) 1,524
DA o R H IS8 5 A AR4E A Itii  Change in investment revaluation reserve of debt
0 5 05 45 A (B 52 ) securities measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income
- A RAEE R B - Change in fair value (1,125,292) -
- R ERE B ERG - Release to profit or loss upon disposal (61,125) =
— W AHE AR A4 U A 5 ) - Change in impairment allowances charged to profit
or loss 5,742 =
A B R R B A (B A ) Change in investment revaluation reserve of available-
for-sale debt investment
- S AEE R S E) - Change in fair value - (157,143)
- R ERE B ERG - Release to profit or loss upon disposal = (177,836)
— FTAHE A5 14 U8 5 ) - Change in impairment allowances charged to profit
or loss = 7,124
e 50,7 %A Exchange differences 2,902 3,914
EEHMAEEEE BB TEHE Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (1,183,945) (322,417)
AR B o WA L BRBLIR R Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,064,555 1,901,091
B EFR - (TR TEH 7T
Vice Chairman, Chief Exective Officer & Executive Director Deputy Chief Executive Officer
A HRR
Niu Jian Jun Huang Xian Jun
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INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(e)

B L e 7 A

20224F > TAT 35 151 A 149 Sl B 35 D JRL e B
AR P R AR P R AR > SR E K
B T S A I R R e SR A 9L P AR [ B
IR T Bt > 4 ) A5 I 5K 3% S O R A [ s
RETEd  WRAMEEE I RALBBEMZ T
(AUVEIIN - ESIRiEs i R & - 1F )
RE J7 ~ A5 A8 4R R HE ) A 4 T Ja B A B K
W MR A B R SR I Tk A gk
BRI 5 BRSBTS R0 L TG
ARTEP A IRBLRRRAE S — P
T T TR R R

B E20227K > A7 ALK A 4,608(5 I M T 5 K
AR R5.10% 5 A B 4,301 R M o > R
A R5.28% 5 B Bl H 2E RS TR U A 7R
F98 > 82 B 4F N FR24.79% 5 & TE AT 542,48385
BRI M G > & F AR FE4.32% 5 B 3K H
2,153 W M ot » #8 b 4F R RE7.31% 5 0 E
AR 30605 T TT o AR R B 1 R e
HIY > AR 4720224F J H BB 3 A 2308 W
PTG - -2 HE 4[] 7 3 01 35 40 4 7 [m] R
73 Al 3 £1)7.58%H10.52% o #% £20224F K > A
17 538 1% 1 B 165 i 28 % e MU ™) B 5 i 4
RV ) o A AR R VR P R S R IR R
A A R 1 A B S AR AT ML A o

(e)

A summary of the management report

In the face of the complex external environment, risks and
challenges, ICBC (Macau) in 2022 persisted in pursuing progress
while ensuring stability. It earnestly implemented the international
development strategy of the ICBC Group and the policies of
the Macao SAR Government to energetically serve the overall
development of the country and the development of the regional
economy. The Bank made strides in localized operation and
diversified planning, continuously improved market competitiveness
and capacity for reform and innovation, sustainable development,
and enterprise-wide risk management, and accelerated the
coordinated and sound development of assets, liabilities, and
intermediary business. New breakthroughs were made in key
business areas, which included the continuously raised share in the
core market, the further enhanced risk resistance capability and
robust operation and development.

As at the end of 2022, the Bank had total assets of MOP460.8
billion, up 5.10% from the previous year; and total liabilities of
MOP430.1 billion and up 5.28% from the previous year. It generated
a net income from the intermediary business of MOP0.7 billion and
down 23.4% from the previous year. Its balance of deposits stood
at MOP248.3 billion and down 4.32% from the previous year. The
balance of loans accounted for MOP215.3 billion, down 7.31% from
the previous year. The core capital exceeded MOP30.6 billion. In
accordance with the Macao Financial Reporting Standards (MFRSs),
the Bank registered a net profit of MOP2.3 billion, with the return
on weighted average equity and the return on average total assets
reporting 7.58% and 0.52% respectively. At the end of 2022, the
Bank’s audited financial statements were prepared according to
MERSs. In 2022, ICBC (Macau) continued to maintain its position
as a fully-licensed, locally-registered mainstream bank with the
widest range of services and the largest size of business in Macao.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(e)

A summary of the management report (continued)

While accelerating business development, the Bank actively
leveraged the advantages of a mainstream bank and fulfilled
social responsibilities. It was the first in the industry to establish
the Green Finance (ESG and Sustainable Finance) Committee,
signed a strategic partnership agreement on green finance with
central enterprises in Macao, launched the first green private
equity investment fund, and practiced the green and low-carbon
concept. The Bank took the lead to complete the iconic projects
such as syndicated loans for government replacement housing
and restructuring of consortium of local integrated enterprises,
assisted the government in boosting the economy, facilitated the
transformation of small and medium-sized enterprises, and served
the economic and social development of Macao. Serving as the
Chairman of the Securities and Funds Industry Association of
Macao, ICBC (Macau) made a number of attempts to drive the
development of the bond industry, and assisted in diversifying
the economic structure of Macao. Relying on the Group’s
business platform, the Bank deepened the building of think tank,
exclusively advanced the development of China-Portugal cross-
border e-commerce industry, and provided ICBC’s plan for the
construction of the platform. It was the first to launch innovative
products such as “Greater Bay Area Property Connect’, and had
the most diversified cross-border business lines in Macao that
cover the Greater Bay Area and nine cities on Chinese mainland,
thus accelerating the integration of Guangdong and Macao. The
Bank attached great importance to employee welfare and improved
welfare programs for employees. It encouraged employees to
participate in the deliberation and administration of state affairs,
and hosted the FinTech Innovation Competition for university
students in Macao to cultivate diversified talents for the prosperity
of Macao.

With good operating results and performance, the Bank won wide
acclaim and recognition from both the industry and mainstream
international financial media. The business strength, governance
level and market position of the Bank were steadily improved, and
its competitive edge and risk control were constantly enhanced.
In 2022, the Bank won the “Best Bank in Macao” award by British
magazines The Banker and World Finance, and the American
magazine Global Finance for the thirteenth time. It has, therefore,
established a good image.
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L MEREE @ 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(e) & BH 5 35 2 (40) (e) A summary of the management report (continued)
PRGN » R PREE RS ML 5 > B In the post-pandemic era, the complex global political and economic
H A W B2 AL > AR P BB Uk o environment and the cyclical changes in the world economy will
AR R P R R A LSRRI R pose severe external challenges and have a lingering impact on the
T I G B IS 2 R [ B B BT B - & world and Macao. The Bank will be dedicated to implementing
7 A 4% 8 1 TR S A A R LA o Sl R A the national strategies and the Macao SAR Governments policies,
2 VL UK L R 1) B R A and putting full effort to economic recovery in the post-pandemic
RPN BORMH - Bt g BT R > IR# era. Aligning to the series policies and plans for Guangdong-Hong
WP s > 5 VLT A8 98 2 T 4 TR R R Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, particularly Guangdong-Macao In-
AEL IR 88 e K JRIAE B 2 55 0 5 [y - AR EE Depth Cooperation Zone in Hengqin, the Bank will give play to its
BRAITEASEY  HRRA - RBHLE - & advantages while serving the financial needs of local communities
LANRES:EE-E S5yt (P bl i =] - to further contribute to Macao’s economic diversification and

integrate into China’s development. Meanwhile, the Bank will
continuously fulfill its social responsibilities, care for the people’s
livelihood, serve the public, and dedicate itself to Macao’s long-term
prosperity and stable development.

TTE A Chief Executive Officer
L Niu Jian Jun
CEC A= HIRARM Macao, 31 March 2023
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

()

The report from the supervisory board

In accordance with the provision of Article twenty-fifth, paragraph
(e) and for the purpose of the said provision, the Board of Directors
of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
has submitted to our firm the audited financial statements and the
report from Board of Directors regarding the 2022 financial year,
for issuing the related opinion.

After reviewing the documents submitted to our firm for opinion’s
purpose, it is our opinion that those documents evidence clearly the
Banks assets value and its financial and economic status.

The report of the Board of Directors clearly evidences the Bank’s
business activities performed and carried out by the Bank in the
financial year under appraisal.

In view of the external auditor’s report, we concur with the opinion
expressed in such report, whereas the documents supporting the
said financial statements evidence the truly and accurate financial
status exhibited in the balance sheet dated 31 December 2022, as
well as the financial results of the financial year ended 2022.

In view of the above said, we have decided to approve the said
financial statements and the Report of the Board of Directors.

Single Supervisor
CSC & Associates, Auditors
(Represented by Mr. Chui Sai Cheong)

Macao, 31 March 2023
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(g)
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(g)

Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholders of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Macau) Limited
(Incorporated in Macau with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited (the “Bank”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), which
comprise the consolidated and the Bank’s statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, the consolidated and the Bank’s
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity and the statements of cash flow
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
the Financial Reporting Standards of Macau Special Administrative
Region, the People’s Republic of China (“Macau SAR”) approved by
Order of the Secretary for Economy and Finance No. 44/2020, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing approved by the Professional Committee
of Accountants under the Notice No. 2/2021/CPC. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(g)

Independent auditor’s report (continued)
Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view, in all material respects, of the financial positions of the
Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2022, and of the Group’s
and the Bank’s financial results and their cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standards of
Macau SAR approved by Order of the Secretary for Economy and
Finance No. 44/2020.

Kuan Ho Weng

Certified Public Accountant

Partner

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu — Sociedade de Auditores

Macau
31 March 2023
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100%
100%

100%

11%

6%

B ATE

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(h)

@

()

A list of the institutions in which they have holdings in
excess of 5% in the share capital, or over 5% of their own
funds, with an indication of the respective percentage

ICBC (Macau) Capital Limited 100%

ICBC (Macau) Pension Fund Management 100%
Company Limited

Seng Heng Development Company Limited 100%

(Registered and established in Hong Kong)

Authosis, Inc. 11%
(Registered and established in Cayman Island)

Luen Fung Hang Insurance Company Limited 6%

List of the shareholders with qualifying holdings

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Mr. Huen Wing Ming, Patrick

Name of the members of the company boards

Mr. Jiang Yi Sheng
Chairman, Managing & Executive Director
Mr. Niu Jian Jun
Vice-Chairman, Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director
(appointed on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Xu Ke En
(resigned on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Huen Wing Ming, Patrick
Vice-Chairman & Executive Director
Mr. Zheng Jian Feng
Director
Mr. Hong Gui Lu
Director
Mr. Zhang Wei Feng
Director
Mr. Tong Chi Kin
Director
Ms. Ho Teng Iat
Director

Single Supervisor

CSC & Associados — Sociedade de Auditores
(Represented by Mr. Chui Sai Cheong)

Company Secretary

Ms. Chen Cui Ping
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INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors are established
under the Shareholders’ Meeting of the Bank, and special committees
are established under the Board of Directors. Special committees are
established at the senior management level, including the Asset & Liability
Management Committee, the Compliance Anti-Money Laundering &
Combating Financing of Terrorism Committee, and the Credit and
Investment Approval Committee, etc. In 2022, the Bank carried out
operating and management activities in strict accordance with the
Guidelines on Internal Control of Credit Institutions issued by the
Monetary Authority of Macao.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for the operation and management
of all businesses and interests at the Bank. In 2022, it remained steady
and was able to make appropriate and effective decisions and implement
them. All members of the Board of Directors had the expertise and skills
required for the business development of the Bank. All directors were
regularly updated on economic developments, internal operations of the
Bank in terms of risk management, compliance, corporate governance, etc.,
and pertinent laws and local regulatory requirements.

Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors has clearly defined functions and powers, and
is explicitly designated to oversee the businesses of the Bank and perform
other functions assigned by the pertinent laws or the Bank’s Articles
of Association. These functions mainly include closely following up on
management activities of the Bank, ensuring that the Bank complies with
the pertinent laws and the Articles of Association, reviewing all accounting
documents and books, confirming whether the valuation of corporate
property is appropriate, and issuing opinions on the annual report
delivered by the Board of Directors.

Delegation of the Powers of the Board of Directors
Management Committee

The Management Committee is set up under the authorization of the
Board of Directors, and convenes meetings on a regular basis. It is
responsible for the overall operations of the Bank and its subsidiaries as
well as for making decisions on major matters within its term of reference.

The Board of Directors of the Bank establishes four special committees,
which are the Nomination and Compensation Committee, the Audit
Committee, the Risk Management Committee, and the Strategic
Development Committee. These committees are responsible for monitoring
the day-to-day operations of the Bank. Each committee has clear terms of
reference, in order to ensure that it can properly exercise its functions and
make recommendations and report decisions to the Board of Directors as
appropriate.
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INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
Committees at Senior Management Level

The senior management of the Bank establishes four special committees,
which are the Asset & Liability Management Committee, the Compliance
Anti-Money Laundering & Combating Financing of Terrorism Committee,
the Credit and Investment Approval Committee, and the Risk Management
Committee. Each committee has explicit work rules to ensure that it
properly performs functions and better assists the senior management in
making decisions.

Asset & Liability Management Committee

The Asset & Liability Management Committee is responsible for studying,
discussing, and deciding on major matters related to asset and liability
management. It is responsible for deliberating on the matters related to
asset and liability management, liquidity management, capital management,
interest rate risk in the banking book (IRRBB), and exchange rate risk,
among others, and making proposed work arrangements. The committee is
composed of the senior management members of the Bank and the heads
of the asset & liability management departments, etc., to ensure its effective
operation.

Compliance Anti-Money Laundering & Combating Financing of
Terrorism Committee

The Compliance Anti-Money Laundering & Combating Financing of
Terrorism Committee is responsible for promoting the Bank to establish
an internal control and compliance management mechanism that can
meet local regulatory requirements and the policy requirements of the
Group and conform to the reality, so as to formulate and communicate
compliance policies and oversee the compliance management matters of
the Bank; and deliberating on, establishing, and maintaining risk control
policies and provisions on anti-money laundering (AML) and combating
the financing of terrorism (CTF), so as to ensure the AML work systems,
guidelines, and regulatory measures are appropriate and effective. The
committee is composed of senior management members and the heads
in charge of relevant departments to ensure the committee’s effective
operation.

Credit and Investment Approval Committee

The Credit and Investment Approval Committee is responsible for
deliberating on all types of financing, investment, and other related
businesses that are subject to the collective credit risk review procedures.
The committee is composed of senior management members and the
heads in charge of relevant departments to ensure the committee’s effective
operation.
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2. AW @) 2. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
Jl B 4 B B Risk Management Committee
EREMESeRME-EABEE - HAENE The Risk Management Committee is responsible for providing a set of well-
M R > MR B AT AR KO B TR 1 S [ structured and forward-looking systems to measure and monitor different
FE IR o WSz B B RS /) A AT A TE R B Y types of risks of the Bank at the operational and management levels.
B~ RPN R R o R\ R 2 B A 3 A BUR B The committee establishes special risk teams in charge of monitoring,
HEATEE 2B - %R B MR R b assessment and management of various risks. The committee is responsible
B M4 70 A AT SE (1 A R 18 B A > (R R REOR A AT for managing all types of risks in a holistic and comprehensive manner.
JELB 7B B YRR T A G LI b P A B R Y A B K o The committee shall ensure that all risks can be maintained within the risk
indicators set by the Bank and all risk management procedures adopted by
the Bank can comply with the requirements of the Monetary Authority of
Macao.
3. AfBlEmER 3. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
45 190 )i i Group Level
wWET A=+ HILEE
For the year ended 31 December
2022 2021
T T T
MOP’000 MOP’000
28025 0 ) 2 A 0 B A R Cash flow from operating activities
GOIERE] Profit before tax 2,615,628 2,570,846
Gk Adjustment for:
e Depreciation 58,342 54,914
FE A Interest income (10,481,992) (7,639,606)
B S Interest expense 6,517,588 3,371,696
DL el BT H I B 51 A M%7 & 4i  Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
4 <5 A R A through other comprehensive income (6,285) =
AL AR A 1 B A Dividend income from available-for-sale investments - (3,276)
B EYE R KRRk Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 286 343
B E DL B E R A B G A M%7 A Net gains from disposal of financial asset at fair
Wi 5 1Y 4B Tl 7 I A iR value through other comprehensive income (61,125) =
i T AR B A 5 R R U Net gains from disposal of available-for-sale debt
investments - (177,769)
A il T EL (R R 2R R Net impairment losses on financial instruments 1,156,749 1,613,825
HEE 5t 25 B Foreign exchange difference 1,539,591 (823,149)
1,338,782 (1,032,176)
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INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

3. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

(continued)

Group Level (continued)

BRET A=+ —HILAEE
For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021
TWME T#WM T
MOP’000 MOP’000
0 Jek 13 R g =1 0 % 4 T S Increase in placements with other banks with original
maturity longer than three months (37,501,591) (28,731,021)
) 2 3 R A A0 = A8 3 0% SRR £ 7 46 Increase in treasury bills with original maturity longer
than three months (7,342,819) (3,599,635)
B A () Decrease/(increase) in loans and advances 16,962,227 (974,719)
JRE WA T e At 1 4G o Increase in receivables and other assets (831,907) (3,494,857)
DA R AE(E RE H A5 AR 5 1 &Rl Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value
B ML () through profit or loss 357,228 (214,293)
] ZE A7 R Y 18 n Increase in deposits from banks 24,403,469 32,616,940
KA (B s (Decrease)/increase in deposits from customers (11,199,806) 1,262,694
HAte A 0 B HEm (Decrease)/increase in other liabilities (387,811) 2,602,579
LA B (B wHE B E) 5H AR 45 1Y 5 Rl (Decrease)/increase in financial liabilities at fair value
AW () 8 through profit or loss (357,146) 214,201
T HE 4 R o AT A R E A A A Change in fair value of derivative financial assets and
% liabilities (481,648) 41,231
SRS Interest received 8,432,954 7,572,433
AT ALE Interest paid (4,907,968) (3,444,086)
W (RN, EENEER Cash (used in)/generated from operations (11,516,036) 2,819,291
ST TSR Profits tax paid (301,525) (375,125)
BB (AR, EENFHER Net cash (used in)/generated from operating
activities (11,817,561) 2,444,166
B By A A w0 B R Cash flow from investing activities
LA B (B B B ik A %R 5 Y45 Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
114 < il 7 E A 1) R B A through other comprehensive income 6,285 =
AT B R R AR B R A Dividend received from available-for-sale investments - 3,276
W LA A EE R BB 5 A Ah%E S Purchases of financial assets at fair value through other
T A Y < comprehensive income (10,725,447) =
fi B ] i B A Purchases of available-for-sale investments - (7,301,875)
PAA B R BB 5 A HME S U aR  Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at fair
F1 < ol 28 g [ A A value through other comprehensive income 13,279,841 =
AT A4 AR i A Proceeds from redemption of available-for-sale
investments - 18,023,096
W DA B B A T Y 4 Purchases of financial assets at amortised cost (68,555,997) =
WERA 23 H /G Purchases of held-to-maturity investments - (47,503,865)
DA 5 1 A 5 ) 4l W [m] ) A Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at
amortised cost 51,869,376 =
e 2 H BOE R A Proceeds from redemption of held-to-maturity
investments - 37,454,424
i B B B R RS Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 3 -
WEE YIS R SR Purchases of property, plant and equipment (70,909) (46,871)

159



o T SRAT UL R R A SRR
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED Annual Report 2022

h R T ERAT (M) -y B PR /A T INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

3. AMBEREE® 3. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

(continued)

45 8] ) T () Group Level (continued)

BRET A=+ —HILAEE
For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021
TWME T#WM T
MOP’000 MOP’000
PEIGE (B, EAENFEH AR Net cash (used in)/generated from investing
activities (14,196,848) 628,185
gt I AR Cash flows from financing activities
BATAE AR AR Proceeds from issuance of certificates of deposit 141,165,021 112,234,882
B I A R Redemption of certificates of deposit issued (135,404,735) (118,037,378)
BT TS A6 J5 U A Proceeds from issuance of debts 2,349,426 4,016,050
I ] £ 75 o Redemption of debts issued - (4,016,250)
e BB Dividends paid (333,526) (352,161)
ERWBEAN (N FRER Net cash generated from/(used in) financing
activities 7,776,186 (6,154,857)
W4 R4S B e SR Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (18,238,223) (3,082,506)
WHBERHEES%EY Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 69,704,054 72,786,560
WARBRERBRES%EED Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 51,465,831 69,704,054
T 4 Te B4 55 {6 0 8 L4 A Analysis of balance of cash and cash equivalents
& RRITIEK Cash and balances with banks 25,318,960 31,351,050
A7 WS W SRy 3RO Deposits with monetary authority 9,355,240 5,373,369
e dEIES Placements with other banks 102,014,992 75,467,442
S HE L VR AR SR A & & B FFH E  Treasury bills classified as financial assets at amortised
F 1 B 8E 0 BUR 55 cost/held-to-maturity investment 11,043,710 8,938,460
& DF BB IR DL 2R 1 42 B Amounts shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position 147,732,902 121,130,321
Ji 36 40 R e =8 H 114 <8 B Amounts with an original maturity of beyond three
months (96,269,466) (51,427,201)
B4 % B 4 S5 (0 1 U A Impairment allowance provided for components of
cash and cash equivalents 2,395 934
G OB R R BLE R EEE Y Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
statement of cash flows 51,465,831 69,704,054
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INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

3. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

(continued)

Bl R Statement of cash flow
ST I m Bank Level
BRET-A=1+—HIL4gEE
For the year ended 31 December
2022 2021
T®|M T T T
MOP’000 MOP’000
28025 10 ) 2 A 0 B A R Cash flow from operating activities
T i A1) Profit before tax 2,564,178 2,518,126
A Adjustment for:
e Depreciation 57,583 54,004
IISYN Interest income (10,476,618) (7,634,367)
B S Interest expense 6,520,558 3,373,669
DI fefE(Esr = H A # st A %5 50kt Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
114 <6 Pl 7 A 19 R LA through other comprehensive income (6,285) =
AL AR A 1 B A Dividend income from available-for-sale investments - (3,276)
BB R KRRk Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 285 339
B E DL A E R B G A M AR A Net gains from disposal of financial assets at fair
Wi 5 1 4B Tl 7 I A value through other comprehensive income (61,125) =
i T AR B A 5 R I U Net gains from disposal of available-for-sale debt
investments - (177,836)
4 TR B R Net impairment losses on financial instruments 1,156,641 1,613,762
T 50, 72 % Foreign exchange difference 1,555,093 (823,044)
1,310,310 (1,078,623)
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3. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

(continued)
Statement of cash flow (continued)

Bank Level (continued)

BET A=+ B IR
For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021
TWME THM T
MOP’000 MOP’000
0 Jek 1T R A =R S 4 4 ) S Increase in placements with other banks with original
maturity longer than three months (37,501,591) (28,731,021)
W) 06 A R A = 81 39 14 BB 55 2% 46 Increase in treasury bills with original maturity longer
than three months (7,342,819) (3,599,635)
BRI A () Decrease/(increase) in loans and advances 16,962,227 (974,719)
AR WA T B HE At 2 14 1 Increase in receivables and other assets (833,945) (3,491,247)
DA B (E wEE H S # 5 AR L 1 &Rl Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value
BB, (B ) through profit or loss 357,228 (214,293)
EE:3¢ E"J i’* 7][] Increase in deposits from banks 24,403,469 32,616,940
KPR (b)) /18 (Decrease)/increase in deposits from customers (11,269,733) 1,397,758
HoAth & 1 () 18 (Decrease)/increase in other liabilities (375,474) 2,587,815
DA SO fEAE ;Ti’ & H H AR B A 55 10 4 (Decrease)/increase in financial liabilities at fair value
AW () through profit or loss (357,146) 214,201
T HE 4 R o AT A B R E AR A A Change in fair value of derivative financial assets and
) liabilities (481,648) 41,231
B R E Interest received 8,428,536 7,566,175
AT FLE Interest paid (4,911,786) (3,445,256)
RBWEE (M) B B4R Cash (used in)/generated from operations (11,612,372) 2,889,326
AT BT B Profits tax paid (296,994) (370,404)
SRBNE B (FE ) e A i B 4 R Net cash (used in)/generated from operating
activities (11,909,366) 2,518,922
B By A A B Cash flow from investing activities
LA B (B H S ) 5k A% 5 U4t Dividend received from financial assets at fair value
F1 < il 7 E A P B through other comprehensive income 6,285 =
CIREREER- e 4 S ISV ON Dividend received from available-for-sale investments - 3,276
HE'E A B ER R BB 5 A Mb4E S Purchases of financial assets at fair value through
T A Y < other comprehensive income (10,723,427) =
W B ] i R Purchases of available-for-sale investments - (7,237,203)
PAA B E R B 5 A L MA S U aR  Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at fair
F1 < il 728 i [ A A5 value through other comprehensive income 13,263,713 =
T A3 AR i A Proceeds from redemption of available-for-sale
investments - 17,987,090
15 B DA O AR T 1 A T Purchases of financial assets at amortised cost (68,551,957) =
BERNA 3 H /G Purchases of held-to-maturity investments - (47,503,865)
DA 5 1 A T ) <l T W [m] ) A Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at
amortised cost 51,853,247 -
e F R A BOE i E R A Proceeds from redemption of held-to-maturity
investments - 37,433,645
i B B R AR A Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 3 -
WEE Y2 R B Purchases of property, plant and equipment (70,909) (46,856)
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INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

3. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

(continued)

Statement of cash flow (continued)

SRAT I T (4 Bank Level (continued)
BREFZH=Z4—HILERE
For the year ended 31 December
2022 2021
T#M e THM
MOP’000 MOP’000
PR IG B (B, BB AR Net cash (used in)/generated from investing
activities (14,223,045) 636,087
EEWEEAWNB AR Cash flows from financing activities
BATAR AR AR Proceeds from issuance of certificates of deposit 141,165,021 112,234,881
HEE I A Redemption of certificates of deposit issued (135,404,735) (118,037,379)
BAT A5 A8 S I A Proceeds from issuance of debts 2,349,426 4,016,050
I ] £ 5 ol Redemption of debts issued - (4,016,250)
J& B Aot Dividends paid (333,526) (352,161)
BRWHEAN (AN FRER Net cash generated from/(used in) financing
activities 7,776,186 (6,154,859)
W4 R4S By E R Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (18,356,225) (2,999,850)
Wy RRE&Z%ED Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 69,674,634 72,674,484
WARBRERBESEED Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 51,318,409 69,674,634
B 4 T B4 55 16 0 0 L4 A Analysis of balance of cash and cash equivalents
Bl 4 B BRAT A7 3K Cash and balances with banks 25,171,618 31,321,630
A7 WCEE W SRy 3O Deposits with monetary authority 9,355,240 5,373,369
¥ dE S Placements with other banks 102,014,992 75,467,442
GIBUR IEER AR G R M SRS &7 % Treasury bills classified as financial assets at amortised
F 4] B # & 1 BUR 5 25 cost/held-to-maturity investment 11,043,710 8,938,460
PABSHR DL % P Y 4 %8 Amounts shown in the statement of financial position 147,585,560 121,100,901
JE 3 44 R e =81 114 2 B Amounts with an original maturity of beyond three
months (96,269,466) (51,427,201)
B4 K B 45 S5 A W) 1 R M A Impairment allowance provided for components of
cash and cash equivalents 2,315 934
BameERPmEeRREEHEY Cash and cash equivalents in the statement
of cash flow 51,318,409 69,674,634
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4. RiHE T RZE 5 DSBS AD R KR 4. OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES OTHER THAN
DERIVATIVES TRANSACTIONS
T8t
MOP’000
R IRAE IR Values received for safe keeping 99,752,506
R iR Bills for collection 929,598
IR Collateral 430,675,807
PR 8 T & (R A K Guarantee on account of customers 14,119,383
5 & Letters of credit outstanding 630,699
Z i Bills & acceptance available for discount 148,699
Al A A AR Other memorandum items 9,946,884
AL B KRG Undrawn credit facilities 60,214,945
Bl Total 616,418,521
5. WIATARS 5. DERIVATIVES TRANSACTIONS
T#M T
MOP’000
15 JEU B
HEREB 2 AR JHE 4 B8
Credit risk
weighted
Nominal value Fair value amount
R4 T A Exchange rate contracts 63,946,173 265,302 554,258
FIZRAAE TR Interest rate contracts 6,668,541 4,326 296,201
Hfid TH Other contracts 1,951,373 (1,099) =
6. HETBUR 6. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
% BRI 4533-68 Refer to page 33-68
7. BWITRS 7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
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7.0 EFBR T B4 HBOR

AT 14 R B 7 22 T MG A A R AR B
FURR > F AR BT 9 A B B
B IRGBAC Sy o AR B SROEAT S B R A
SRR o — B BRI BB 52 5 2 1R AR AT v R FL
/R B A A B AR AT TR A A A

FeiEfT AL -

7.1  The policy for lending to related parties.

Connected transactions of the Bank should be in line with the
principles of honesty, credibility and equity. We manage connected
transactions in accordance with the relevant regulations of local
supervisor and Parent Company and conduct information disclosure
and external reporting as required. Connected transactions should
be approved by top management level or higher level credit
authority as credit committee regarding the internal facility granting
procedure.
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7. BT 22 5 ) 7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
7.2 BT AEAR ARG B HOGR HAB ME E 5 A B 7.2 In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
# b - A 52 18 BRI gk 7 R AN AE 19 38 5 81 R A consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following
I transactions and balances with related parties during the years:
T8
MOP’000
BwERA Operating income 1,470,124
CESa Operating expenses 1,405,094
Ly AGEES Placements with other banks 86,272,653
[\ ZEA7 Deposits from banks 84,413,898
R S BGK Loans and advances 7,771,480
HFEAFK Deposits from customers 627,911
Hopth Other assets 128,229
HoA £ Other liabilities 8,335,888
& MBATE K Cash and balances with banks 10,893,210
8. #A 8. CAPITAL
8.1 EMEdiuk 8.1 Qualitative disclosure:
A B BT A B A TTH 5 2R R Ak ORIk 14 Summary information on the terms and conditions of the main
A 2R > U R AE AR HARER & & features of all capital instruments, especially in the case of
ATEBMEIT innovative, complex or hybrid capital instruments;
1 CETIECHEEL 1 Paid-up share capital:
Tt
MOP’000
BE Authorised
— B HJ > 51,0008 5T 1,000,000 shares of MOP1,000 each 1,000,000
ORI : Issued and fully paid:
588,920/ > 45 11,000 '] 7T 588,920 shares of MOP1,000 each 588,920
2 BT 2 Share Premium
JBe TR S AT Y A 4 o L AT B AR Y Shareholders paid the capital amount over the nominal value
2 FRAMEME - of the Issued Capital.
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HEBEAR L2092 5 TE JE A 2 HE A
& HZE M2 SRS RAAT
LHEAEWRMZ FAFSACET LD
B e AR 2509 4 1k o ML AR B 2 B
A 7R PR A TE AN 42 4R BLAR B A e D
10%7K e > B 2 a2 HE A <5 2 S WAE 4
AT RHEIERM 2 TAFR S AT #®
AT B B0 R 7R iy 1 o b HE 4 B AE 1%
IR E 2 FLERIR UL T A AT R
S 6 M R AF K b HEEDR B B
AR BLA o

4 BEBRIRF(BFKE)

R 4 4 18 T A A 1Y vt A AL - A
W BB S 20 IR A% 19 R o FEA Z A AL
B R AR T Z AR R AL o

5 WEHAHEER

(@) ARIRURM &R PR B E
O BAT I A 1 B BRI K
AMER I K AN R EATA
DA Be — B HEAf 4 > WA E
HEA -

R WY B Al B R YRR
— e A RAR IR SR
A7 R RS T £ A SR 0 2
FEO R — AR T 4 B0 o P
TEFE I [ 15 B ] AR B RE 0 T 0945
FAE I B B — Je B B — i &t
R & AR B A E - H RS
T Ja i o R A AR Y 1.25% 4
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CAPITAL (continued)

8.1

Qualitative disclosure: (continued)

3

Legal Reserve

Under the Macao banking and insurance legislation, the
Bank and its subsidiaries incorporated in Macao (the “Macao
subsidiaries”) are required to transfer to a legal reserve an
amount equal to a minimum of 20% of its annual profit
after tax until the amount of the reserve is equal to 50%
of their respective issued and fully paid up share capital.
Thereafter, transfers must continue at a minimum annual
rate of 10% until the reserve is equal to the Bank’s and the
Macao subsidiaries” respective issued and fully paid up share
capital. This reserve is only distributable in accordance with
certain limited circumstances prescribed by statute and will
be transferred from the annual profit after tax upon the
approval by the shareholders in the annual general meeting
after the end of reporting period.

Profit brought forward (retained earning)

The profits of the preceding years, after deduction of
dividend payouts. Profits are audited by external auditors
which are recognized by AMCM.

Supplementary Capital

(a)  According to the regulations of AMCM, perpetual
and non-perpetual subordinated capital instruments
issued that fulfill the regulatory requirements, as well
as the general provisions, are served as supplementary
capital.

General provisions are, in accordance with the
requirements of AMCM, the general allowances
calculated in the light of the announcement of
AMCM regarding regulatory reserve requirements
and the total amount of the stage 1 & 2 accounting
allowances of expected credit losses corresponding to
the “credit” defined in the announcement, whichever
are higher, but no more than 1.25% of the total
amount of credit risk weighted assets.
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8. ﬁzlx(fﬁ) 8. CAPITAL (continued)
8.1 EVEHE : (m) 8.1  Qualitative disclosure: (continued)
5 WA H A EAR () 5 Supplementary Capital (continued)
(b) EAREH; (b)  Capital management;
AEHEAEMZ LEEKE The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
55 T WEQR A AT BESF AN AR T 5T 2 management are to ensure that the Group complies
AT o [ IR R AR R Y with capital requirements of regulatory authorities
15 AT &0 2 BRI AR 78 L 26 and support its business development. While
PLSZRFARAT B R - R TIR actively managing its capital conditions, the Group
FRAHE - is committed to improving the efficiency of capital

utilization and shareholders’ value.

A S AR 05 T 3 K I B AL The Group makes adjustments to its capital management
T e A e 3 A A B BOR policy in the light of changes in economic conditions
E H i o A 4R T ELAff A2 2 Y in the market and risk characteristics. With a sound
A PR - 8 AR K capital management mechanism, the Group regularly
JREL R o E A AL A measures, monitors and manages changes in capital
W RER RN EEE and risk weighted assets to ensure compliance
SR TR IR B b ¥ A ol 4 o 42 4F with regulatory requirements while improving the
i 78 A BB o BT AE R 2K return on capital. The Group formulates a capital
— B IRE A A B AR KT B management plan on an annual basis, evaluates the
A AN 5 NI I A A R [R] B reasonable capital level and structure for the future,
AT EA - MR AR and replenishes capital through different channels in a
RS &9 well-timed manner to ensure its long-term sustainable
development.

TEAFRERN > AEBE S TR During the year, the Group has complied with all of
M <5 8 3 R 3 SN AT 2 BT R the imposed capital requirements by the AMCM.
HARRUE -
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8. CAPITAL (continued)

82 EEHE: 8.2  Quantitative disclosure:
TWM 7T,/ Ak
MOP’000, %
DB EHEER Paid-up capital 588,920
BT Share premium 5,885,733
2 e A R AR T 2 HEA Legal, statutory and other reserves created by appropriations
Jo FoAth e 2R 43 T2 281 B8 BT 4L A 2 e < of retained profits 605,897
RLEREEAT (AP UL AR) Profits brought forward (retained earning) 23,233,574
HiFE B A EA (ZHEA) Supplementary capital (i.e. Tier 2 capital ) 14,513,335
BB 2 BB AE T8 7 2 AR MR Financial holdings or capital instruments in subsidiaries (50,000)
HAEA Own fund 44,777,459
AR T AR (LERE - $RAT R 1) Capital adequacy ratio (ICBC (Macau) - Bank level) 15.03%
AT R (LR - 4 B e ) Capital adequacy ratio (ICBC (Macau) - Group level) 15.14%
EARTEEF (P TRRTT - £ /B IH)  Capital adequacy ratio (ICBC - Group level) 19.26%
BT R (LR E) Capital adequacy ratio (ICBC Capital) 103.10%

9. 15 H kg
9.1 Mk
(a) 150 5 1 A 26 % A 1

17 P B i TR 3k N\ B SC o 3
T B A0 T A AR O 1 JBU B o 8 AR 2R
AL B R R SRR Y
R BRI E > g EAEfE
R B o A 4 1 T B 0 £ T LR >
TR AR G I 19 23~ A7 YR O AN
B AT o AN AR B IR A H A 7 T T
5 R EBR o RS TR EAR
15 BB > TE AT AT IR 40 0 2R BRI R
BRTE 25 O BT IR DL R Al A <
P o LA AL B RS R R
TR B AT AR ERAR AR P AL
R TEIARAR ) s ) k) & i o
K] L A% 2 0 7 40 B R A4 1) B
3 P TR 4 o 42 T A o BB SR A
(9N

(b) A B AR T

7 AR o] 74 4 T A5 T R B B D0
il R AR 2 75 B 8 0 DA B B R
B A5 T (E > A 2% 2 H B 0 A
= AR B P B R E AR ARk -
ST = B B 2 25 2 LIk
S B A
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Qualitative disclosure

Definition and scope

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower or
counterparty’s failure to perform its obligations. Operational
failures which result in unauthorised or inappropriate
guarantees, financial commitments or investments by the
Group may also give rise to credit risk. The Group’s credit
risk is mainly attributable to its loans, due from banks and
other financial institutions and financial investments. The
Group is also exposed to credit risk in other areas. The credit
risk arising from derivative financial instruments is limited
to derivative financial assets recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In addition, the Group
provides guarantees for customers and may therefore be
required to make payments on their behalf. These payments
would be recovered from customers in accordance with the
terms of the agreement. Therefore, the Group assumes a
credit risk similar to that arising from loans and applies the
same risk control procedures and policies to reduce risks.

Credit risk assessment method

9. CREDIT RISK
9.1
(a)
(b)

The Group classifies financial instruments into three stages
and makes provisions for expected credit loss accordingly,
depending on whether credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly and whether the assets
have become credit-impaired since initial recognition. Refer
to note Impairment of financial assets for the definition of
the three stages.
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9. CREDIT RISK (continued)

9.1 Qualitative disclosure (continued)

®)

Credit risk assessment method (continued)

In addition, the Group adopts loan grading criteria which
divide credit assets into five categories with reference to the
AMCM’s guidelines, as below:

Loan classification

. Pass: loans where borrowers are current in meeting
commitments and full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt;

. Special Mention: loans where borrowers are
experiencing difficulties which may threaten the
institution’s position;

. Substandard: loans where borrowers are displaying
a definable weakness that is likely to jeopardise
repayment;

. Doubtful: loans where collection in full is improbable

and the institution expects to sustain a loss of
principal and/or interest after taking account of the
net realisable value of security;

. Loss: loans which are considered uncollectible after

exhausting all collection efforts such as realisation of
collateral, institution of legal proceedings, etc.
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CREDIT RISK (continued)

Qualitative disclosure (continued)

(c)

(d)

Significant increase in credit risk

The assessment of significant increase in credit risk and
whether the assets have become credit-impaired since
initial recognition is performed at least on a monthly basis
for financial instruments held by the Group. The Group
takes into consideration all reasonable and supportable
information (including forward-looking information) that
reflects significant change in credit risk for the purposes of
classifying financial instruments. The main considerations
are regulatory and operating environment, internal and
external credit risk rating, debt-servicing capacity, operating
capabilities, contractual terms, and repayment records. The
Group compares the risk of default of a single financial
instrument or a portfolio of financial instruments with
similar credit risk characteristics as at the end of the
reporting period and its risk of default at the date of initial
recognition to determine changes in the risk of default over
the expected lifetime of a financial instrument or a portfolio
of financial instruments. In determining whether credit risk
of a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group considers factors indicating
whether the probability of default has risen sharply, whether
the financial instrument has been past due for more than 30
days, whether the market price has been falling continuously
and other indicators.

Parameters, assumptions and estimation techniques

ECL for a financial instrument is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL depending on
whether a significant increase in credit risk on that financial
instrument has occurred since initial recognition. The loss
allowance for loans and advances to customers, other than
those corporate loans and advance to customers which
are credit-impaired, is measured using the risk parameters
method. The key parameters include Probability of Default
(“PD”), Loss Given Default (“LGD”), and Exposure at
Default (“EAD”), considering the time value of money.

PD is the possibility that a customer will default on its
obligation within a certain period of time in light of forward-
looking information. The Groups PD is adjusted based on
the results of the Internal Ratings-Based Approach and
taking the forward-looking information into account and
deducting the prudential adjustment to reflect the debtor’s
point-in-time PD under the current macro-economic
environment.
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9. CREDIT RISK (continued)

9.1 Qualitative disclosure (continued)

(d)

Parameters, assumptions and estimation techniques (continued)

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default.
The Group estimates LGD parameters based on the history
of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties,
taking into account forward-looking economic assumptions
where relevant. The LGD models consider the structure,
collateral, seniority of the claim, counterparty industry and
recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to the financial
asset.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of
a default. The Group derives the EAD from the current
exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the
current amount allowed under the contract and arising
from amortisation. The EAD of a financial asset is its
gross carrying amount at the time of default. For lending
commitments, the EADs are potential future amounts that
may be drawn under the contract, which are estimated based
on historical observations and forward-looking forecasts. For
financial guarantees, the EAD represents the amount of the
guaranteed exposure when the financial guarantee becomes
payable. For some financial assets, EAD is determined by
modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at various
points in time using scenario and statistical techniques.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation, such as
how the PDs and LGDs of different maturity profiles change
are monitored and reviewed on a quarterly basis by the
Group.

There have been no significant changes in estimation
techniques or significant assumptions adopted in ECL
calculation during the year.

The impairment loss on corporate loans and advance to
customers is measured/calculated based on discounted cash
flow method. The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s gross carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The impairment
is recognised through an allowance account in the profit or
loss.
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CREDIT RISK (continued)

Qualitative disclosure (continued)

(d)

Parameters, assumptions and estimation techniques (continued)

In determining allowances on an individual basis, the
following factors are considered:

1. The sustainability of the borrower’s business plan;

2. The borrower’s ability to improve performance when
a financial difficulty arises;

3. The estimated recoverable cash flows from projects
and liquidation;

4. The availability of other financial support and the
realisable value of collateral; and

5. The timing of the expected cash flows.

The Group incorporates management overlay to address
model ineffectiveness prospectively when necessary.

Forward-looking information contained in ECL

The Group incorporates forward-looking information
into both the assessment of whether the credit risk of
an instrument has increased significantly since its initial
recognition and the measurement of ECL.

The Group formulates three economic scenarios: a base case,
which is the median scenario assigned a 60% probability of
occurring, and two less likely scenarios, one upside and one
downside, assigned a 15% and 25% probability of occurring
respectively.

The Group has identified and documented key drivers of
credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial
instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has
estimated relationships between macro-economic variables
and credit risk and credit losses. Hong Kong unemployment
rate, Macau investment component in Macau GDP, Macau
unemployment rate, and China GDP differences are
considered as the key drivers of credit risk. The impact of
these economic variables on the PD and LGD has been
determined by performing statistical regression analysis to
understand the correlations among the historical changes
of the economic variables, PD and LGD. Forecasts of these
economic variables are carried out at least semi-annually
by the Group that provide the best estimate view of the
economy over the next year.
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9. CREDIT RISK (continued)

9.1 Qualitative disclosure (continued)

(e)

()

Forward-looking information contained in ECL (continued)

When calculating the weighted average ECL provision, the
Group determines the optimistic, neutral and pessimistic
scenarios and their weightings through a combination of
macro-statistical analysis and expert judgment.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has taken into account
different macro-economic scenarios, and made forward-
looking forecasts of macro-economic indicators. Of which,
the year-on-year Hong Kong and Macau unemployment
rates used to estimate ECL are 4.11% and 3.55%, respectively,
in the neutral scenario for 2023.

However, for credit card facilities that include both a loan
and an undrawn commitment component, the Group
measures ECL over a period longer than the maximum
contractual period if the Group’s contractual ability to
demand repayment and cancel the undrawn commitment
does not limit the Group’s exposure to credit losses to the
contractual notice period. These facilities do not have a
fixed term or repayment structure and are managed on a
collective basis. The Group can cancel them with immediate
effect but this contractual right is not enforced in the normal
day-to-day management, but only when the Group becomes
aware of an increase in credit risk at the facility level. This
longer period is estimated taking into account the credit risk
management actions that the Group expects to take, and that
serve to mitigate ECL. These include a reduction in limits,
cancellation of the facility and/or turning the outstanding
balance into a loan with fixed repayment terms.

Discussion of the credit institution’s credit risk management
policy

The Bank has a credit risk management process to measure,
monitor and control credit risk. The lending authority of the
Bank consists of the credit committee, general manager, chief
executive officer and directors who have extensive banking
experience. The hierarchy of credit authority which approves
credit is in compliance with the Bank’s credit policy;
exposures are monitored against credit limits and other
control limits (such as large exposures and concentration
limits); segregation of duties in key credit functions is in
place to ensure separate credit control and monitoring.
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08

CREDIT RISK (continued)

92 EERWE 9.2  Quantitative disclosure
921 FAFHIE i 9.2.1 Geographic distribution of exposures
2 4t [ 1) 4 3 A 8 B A A 109 11 The following table sets out information of the credit
B R R ORGSR R A exposures broken down in significant geographical segment
fAETH - by loans and commitment, debt securities and financial
derivatives. A significant geographical segment means an
area to which not less than 10% of the relevant type of credit
exposures.
a. KRR ARSI a. Loans and commitment
T#M T
MOP’000
B ~
AR 4 Tl B Fefte 2wl aat
Government
or Public Financial Other
M [ Region Sector Institution Company Total
H B L Macau 280,290 5,230,132 171,132,696 176,643,118
Gl China - 2,124,022 13,256,026 15,380,048
o B 7 Hong Kong = 8,400,415 55,372,400 63,772,815
oA Other 5,136,861 573,258 12,003,309 17,713,428
b. T A 5 b. Debt securities
T#®M T
MOP’000
B -
KB £ il 1A H A2 w aat
Government
or Public Financial Other
b [ Region Sector Institution Company Total
A B L P Macau 11,200,000 9,941,174 329,569 21,470,743
B China 835,315 27,198,699 34,335,218 62,369,232
o [ A Hong Kong 1,521,695 7,943,026 2,283,062 11,747,783
HAth Other - 5,410,882 1,223,665 6,634,547
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9. 15 AEUKE (a0 9.  CREDIT RISK (continued)
92 ZEEWEm) 9.2  Quantitative disclosure (continued)
9.2.1 A5 HIE A (A1) 9.2.1 Geographic distribution of exposures (continued)
c ERATE T A c Financial derivatives

T#®M T

MOP’000

BOR ~ 2 BN < il Fofle 2wl Hat

Government
or Public Financial Other

Hi [ Region Sector Institution Company Total
o B P Macau - 536,134 (6,226) 529,908
&P China = (27,509) = (27,509)
o [ A Hong Kong = (40,490) (521,033) (561,523)
At Other - 327,653 - 327,653

d FT AR B NT Al It 7307 d. Geographic distribution of exposures analysis of loan

and advances
T#RMT
MOP’000
TEWIfE AR
Expected Credit Loss
e T 5 781 O kA £ 3% g Bt — P B — BB =
Impaired

3l I Region Gross Amount Amount Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
R Macau 140,554,867 590,199 429,063 796,018 239,448
i China 14,941,093 546,802 61,193 249,525 303,292
oo A Hong Kong 40,567,314 3,138,989 178,071 21,200 1,584,130
At Other 17,231,190 - 50,755 122,033 -

175



o T SRAT UL R R A
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

ZR IR
Annual Report 2022

rp B R SR AT (WP A A R A T
9. & B ) 9.

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED
CREDIT RISK (continued)
9.2 EEEE @) 9.2

Quantitative disclosure (continued)

922 FFITESM

9.2.2 Industry distribution of exposures

TE I 2R
Expected Credit Loss
VR RAR O Bk s Bt — P Bt — B =
Gross Impaired
(FE S Industry Amount Amount Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
MR Agriculture and fisheries - - - - -
PR T3 Mining industries 7,022,679 = 27,102 = =
W T Manufacturing industries 4,113,694 37,888 23,738 = 29,468
B SRR Bk Electricity, gas and water 1,660,008 - 10,733 - -
BELRALTR Construction and public works 21,435,910 3,653,577 102,696 103,502 1,856,625
it LREEE S Wholesale and retail trade 5,926,327 88,874 37,005 170,555 52,583
T~ R TS & Restaurants, hotels and similar
=l kRS 15,166,791 432 85,895 266 355
il - & fit T 3 T Transport, warehousing and communications 2,309,176 446 9,271 - 94
IE £ s 4 B A Non-monetary financial institutions 13,417,564 - 16,052 57,020 -
H# Gaming - - - - -
&R Exhibition and conference 1,588 = 8 = =
HE Education 17,054 = 100 = =
R Information technology 5,305,079 84,721 19,099 2 84,721
HAh AT Other industries 64,846,968 22,764 360,055 827,253 5,653
HEPNGE %4 Personal loans 72,071,626 387,288 27,328 30,178 97,371
&t Total 213,294,464 4,275,990 719,082 1,188,776 2,126,870
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e Eﬁq )ﬁl Igﬁ (#%) 9. CREDIT RISK (continued)
92 ZEEWEm) 9.2  Quantitative disclosure (continued)
923 HAERAGEIHEZH H A 9.2.3  Maturity analysis on assets and liabilities
T8
MOP’000
B £ 5 UEA A 1E3WA WA E1k 1534 3N E IR it
From
Upto From 3 months to From Indefinite
On demand 1 month 1 to 3 months lyear 1to3years Over 3 years period Total
B Assets
FF AR Loans and advances to
customers 4,399,685 23,338,306 12,972,333 24,805,649 42,595,420 105,183,071 - 213,294,464
T7 ~ PR 500 Cash and balances with and
loans and advances to banks 13,925,449 24,903,662 42,206,957 44,705,763 803,080 2,328,932 - 128,873,843
T i Certificates of deposit held - 12813174 4420120 8836452 - - - 26,069,746
WMBEREMER  Securities issued by Macao SAR
Government and/or AMCM - 600,000 1,000,000 9,600,000 - - - 11,200,000
HoAh 75 Other securities - 42,216 3,636,663 12,669,338 36,684,560 11,851,353 68,429 64,952,559
fifit Liabilities
[ 277 HOMAR A3KIE Deposits and balances of banks
and financial institutions 13,868,804 29,960,462 44,633,767 6,212,175 3,721,160 8,229,750 - 106,626,118
ANFEHERRAE K Deposits from public sector
entities 2,848 14,014,063 11,090,203 10,135,824 - - - 35,242,938
B R S A Deposits from holding and
ik associated companies = = = = = = = -
KFER Deposits from non-bank
customers 52,469,099 70,644,936 49,615,662 39,281,740 1,234,107 - - 213,245,544
BATIEHGE Certificates of deposits issued - 11453480 43,805,761 8,359,827 S S - 63,619,068
FATHF Other securities issued - - - - 3993567 2,297,581 - 6291148
BFRE - DA b e A MR AR A - Note: The above amount is the gross amount.
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92 ZEEWEm) 9.2  Quantitative disclosure (continued)
9.2.4 WH] B EHRE 2T 9.2.4 Ageing analysis of accounting past due exposures
a. BRI a. Loans and advances to customers
F#M,/
Hrke
MOP’000, %
TS A
% P 8K 2% -
YR KGRI R fEgZE R BB =
Percentage of Real Expected
total loan guarantee credit loss -
20 35 IR Overdue periods Past due loans and advances value Stage 3
3%6fH H 3 to 6 months 407,648 0.19 128,897 200,146
offfl 7 214 6 months to 1 year 3,310,421 1.55 61,498 1,663,915
H4ER B Over 1 year 422,074 0.20 537,907 231,866
4,140,143 1.94 728,302 2,095,927
B RE - AR BEASAT ¥ A A 400 1 [R] 3 B R I Note: During the year, the Bank did not have any overdue loans
B o and advances to bank.
b. 17 752 b. Debt securities
T8
MOP’000
6 391 65 7
20 35 B Overdue periods Past due amount
3% 6fH H 3 to 6 months -
offl A £ 14F 6 months to 1 year -
14E0L Over 1 year 68,429
68,429
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9. CREDIT RISK (continued)

92 ZEEWEm) 9.2  Quantitative disclosure (continued)
9.2.5 BT RS HA 9.2.5 Credit quality analysis under regulatory asset classification
a. IGES-3 0% 5 a. Loan and advances to banks
T#®M T
MOP’000
TS R R
Expected credit loss

=]
IR R LR i Bt — B — BBt =

Real

Gross guarantee
amount value Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
1E# Pass 803,080 - 140 - -
B Special mention - - - - -
KR Substandard = = - - -
A &E Doubtful - - - - -

Bk Loss - - - -
803,080 - 140 - -
b. P oSl-¢ 0E 54 b. Loan and advances to customers
TWM T
MOP’000
WIS R
Expected credit loss

"
MR BRAT I (A B — P& B — R B =

Real

Gross guarantee
amount value Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
1 Pass 198,797,204 346,006,936 719,018 - -

B Special mention 10,221,178 9,799,870 64 1,188,776

KR Substandard 103,810 283,153 - - 5,151
] 5E Doubtful 3,690,302 86,681 - - 1,862,698
(PN Loss 481,880 624,877 - = 259,021
213,294,464 356,801,517 719,082 1,188,776 2,126,870
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e E}?ﬁ )ﬂ Igﬁ (#%) 9. CREDIT RISK (continued)
92 ZEEWEm) 9.2  Quantitative disclosure (continued)
925 HELTHAS A (5) 9.2.5 Credit quality analysis under regulatory asset classification
(continued)
c e e c. Debt securities
TF#M e
MOP’000
T R
Expected credit loss
=]
W BRI A R g Bt — B — BB =
Real
Gross guarantee
amount value Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
EH Pass 102,153,876 - 42,376 - -
B Special mention - - - - _
&R Substandard - - - - _
g3 Doubtful = - - - _
EPS Loss 68,429 - = = 68,429
102,222,305 - 42,376 - 68,429
10. T B A 10. MARKET RISK

180

10.1

S P i ke

3T g R B A9 DL BOR R

AAT B T 8 JE B B A - A1 B BEE R
FR R A 8B - DL KA ST 5 B9 8L B e 2k
4D JERL B R [ S o A AT A T 35 L B A R IR R
Wi AR LA A PR AR - B I a2 B
T DA S B B R S A 20224F AR 47 4 48 5
T35 B T AT R T T A A
SRR R 5T 3 T 45 SR B A B BUR 5 2
7 35 g i B R A A R R o

10.1 Qualitative disclosure

A description of its risk management objectives and policies on
market risk;

The objective of market risk management is to obtain the best
balance of risk and return of our BanKk’s positions arising from
movements in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and changes
in credit market condition. Our market risk policies and processes
include risk limits and exposures management, stress-testing,
counterparty evaluations and country risks assessment. In 2022,
we continued to strengthen market risk management by improving
policies and procedures, risk reporting and limit management.
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MARKET RISK (continued)

10.1 Qualitative disclosure (continued)

&

Amount

T#M T

T 55 JRl B Y 5 A 25K Market risk capital charge for MOP’000

155 5 o BRLARE 5 AH [ A A A B B o o R Specific risk of debt securities and debt derivatives 20,333
R 55 ~ LA 25 AR BH 0% 1 A= R SR S Ja B 1) General market risk of debt securities, debt derivatives and

— i T 35 JE B interest rate exposures 118,623

JBOHE i Equity exposures =

411 Ja i Foreign exchange exposures 178,681

74 it LB Commodities exposures -

11, SRATHR P YA 2 Jal Fg
11.1 2 Mefak
(a)  FIFEBEHHEE

SRAT R I 5l By R 4 A 5ok e -
IR 465 1 26 A5 ) 53 ) L BICARAT MR 5 468 07
i B 0 i i 2 R R O R B o A
FTERATIRF SRR DISE T ~ 6T
LFT W e N W o > O E A R
ST ST IR A5 A 2t ) S A AT R i B R
BER -

(b) SRR SRR LT
i

B B ARON SRR T AR A R
PR REE LA B A B BRI A 0 B4
ST B IAAE B > BRAF S AT 1A AT
AW 250 > FFEATMEE
JEE £ A SR A A ) B AR AT R P R R
R E A I S

(c) U b oy i Y B K 5

ARAT A B B R R T
PR {2 25 B8 B A0 > FEAR A AT
ARAT B AN BB 4T o AT S
A Ak A7 1) 25 585 B 5 28 A GRAT IR P M O
TR R Z BN HR BB T o BRI
REFEN20010H LB > BAT EANE K
LI (R S 2 o

11.

INTEREST RATE RISK IN THE BANKING BOOK

11.1 Qualitative disclosure

(a)

(b)

(©)

The nature of interest rate risk;

The interest rate risk of the banking book refers to the risk
of loss of the economic value and overall income of the
banking book due to adverse changes in interest rate levels
and term structure. Our banking book mainly consists
of investments denominated in USD * HKD and RMB,
therefore our interest rate risk arises from fluctuating USD
and RMB interest rates, which may reduce the values of our
investments.

Key assumption assumptions regarding loan prepayments and
behaviour of non-maturity deposits;

When the Bank receives the borrower requirement in
advance of early partial or fully repayment of the loan and
customer early withdrawal of deposit in partial or full, the
Bank requires to assess with prudence on the effect of the
account’s interest rate risk incurred due to the changes of
duration of the related asset liability besides complying the
Bank internal compliance approval process.

Frequency of interest rate risk measurement;

Each month we monitor the duration of our bond investment
to ensure that it is within our policy and risk appetite. Each
quarter we assess the impact on the capital and economic
value of the Bank account resulted from interest rate change
by 200 basis points.
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11, SRATHR P R 3B o) 11. INTEREST RATE RISK IN THE BANKING BOOK
(continued)
112 EEWE 11.2 Quantitative disclosure
R 45 7 B A ) T M A A B Measure the impact on the Bank’s economic value when the interest
BR > 052 ) 265 e 10 R e R AN > T rate moves up and down in parallel of 200 basis points by breaking
F P47 BT B #2001 5 B 5 3 A 47 48 % down to currencies, maturity, and interest rate affecting the asset
58 L 114 7y 2 o liability structure in accordance to local regulatory measurement
standard.
200111 22 5F 0k B 1 7 I 4T Analysis of interest rate exposures at a shock of 200 basis points
FwMe,/
Hrk
MOP’000, %
N eV P WM T Hat
CNY USD HKD MOP Total
2001 KL B FIZ P E B Changes of the Banks economic
AAT R PE (A 52 ) value at a shock of 200 basis
points 607,140 1,964,539 237,107 (25,581) 2,783,205
HAES Own funds * 44,777,459
KPEEREEEA Impact on economic value as % of
¥4 il own funds* 6.22%
¢ B BT B U A AL BT AR P 2 A5 A <) (* These items are relevant for credit institutions incorporated in Macao
only.)
12, A B 12. OPERATIONAL RISK

182

TSR PR R i P R S > AT T AR
AU ) A0 B A PR PR e AR R AT L P
8 R > A o o0 A R AR R R A JEL R K
W PERIAE R Z 4 o B HLARAT ROBRR R
> REER S A R A4S o

2 M R AR B — B A R B
I TAR o 20224F > A AT 058 A S 0 JEL B BR B
o Al B L B B P PR e ) AR U
BRin R AR - K B R B0 o

20224F AT 45 AF JE B A 42 4 i A 2 R A LB AT
RAFIAER AL ST

ICBC (Macau) establishes a complete set of operational risk management
system and implements the “Consolidated Management, Divisional Control
and Segregated Authorization” control model to ensure the identification,
assessment, analysis and control of operational risks are effective and
maintain the level of operational risks within an acceptable range to
maximize bank value and protect the interests of customers and the public.

As always, both the board of directors and the senior management team
have placed significant emphasis on the operational risk management.
In 2022, the Bank enhanced the judgment on the internal and external
risk environment and the key risk identification and investigation, while
promoting risk governance in major areas and increasing supervision and
accountability.

In 2022, the BanK’s operational risk management is considered properly
operated with effective risk management measures.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK
13.1 Pl 13.1 Qualitative disclosure

7 A5 T Y A G5 IR L RN B 4 T A2 B BLAT A T

TR ) S JA B o A A T i B R BT PR
o A5 W TR O 1 M BRI T B

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial positions
and cash flows. The Group has set limits on positions by currency.
Positions are independently monitored against the approved limits
on a daily basis.

13.2 ERWE 13.2 Quantitative disclosure

Net open position
excluding option
contracts long or

Net position in
option contracts

a. # JE S HE 1Y 1 B~ 1 a. The total net long and total net short positions in foreign

currencies:

(WM 76 % 4H)

(in MOP’000

equivalent)

A B35 S0 95 Sy e

HHRF R JihE £ 2y BRI R

o 08 o e 1 R o R S TR

Net open position
including
option contracts

g Currency short long or short long or short
N Chinese renminbi (168,031) - (168,031)
T Hong Kong dollars 32,398,538 - 32,398,538
ESH US dollars 6,729,619 - 6,729,619
HiAth Others 28,045 - 28,045
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK (continued)
13.2 Quantitative disclosure (continued)
b. The information in a particular foreign currency whose net
position (in absolute terms) constitutes not less than 10% of

the total net position in all foreign currencies:

# 7 (J5 % ) /HKD (Original CCY) 76’000

o9 fifi
Assets Liabilities
[HIE: 1] Spot 33,029,927 =
HA il
Purchases Sales
= Forward - (1,575,035)
P AR A E IR T R A Net options position, calculated on the basis of the delta-weighted
PR B BARE S A0 Y position of the relevant option contracts
F RS A - -
TR (R Net long (or net short) position = 31,454,891
% 70 (J5 % ) /USD(Original CCY) T 75’000
a9 fifi
Assets Liabilities
R 4 Spot 3,260,425 (223)
HA i
Purchases Sales
i Forward - (2,422,226)
P TR 3 405 R kR Net options position, calculated on the basis of the delta-weighted
AR B RE & 2 1 position of the relevant option contracts
7= A8 e = =
FRAE (FEL) Net long (or net short) position. = 837,976
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R FEOra B~ AR~ A A A
A2 ) 7 05 B o A ) VR JRURR O MRS
TEIE W AR R h g RAE R IRE T » #A
R TR < S B S 1 S AT o

HRABAAT AL B~ SET7 5 B 0 L B {2 )
RE AR AT UL B R R B R 52 B2 i DA UG 2 ik i
1] 5 VAL B P L B B R - BORFNARF o
R Z R 3R T E B 7% > fEEAEIE R I
T BRI AR LT $RAT AT DA 32 B R KE A%
P B4 5Bl A e g K F

i 3 e i L SR s D AL B L e B
AR A X S 2 B A e A P
TR B ER - AR R R LR 2

1) RERREVEE ECR

2)  WEEEEA R - s AR

3)  UE R A B

4) HEHEAMMES

5) URETEEBR PR

6)  TEIEW RJEEAEULT BB & R A

7) BB R B 0 T R R A
JRE F) B U A 5
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14. LIQUIDITY RISK

14.1

Qualitative disclosure

Liquidity risk management refers to the whole process of
identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling the liquidity
risk. The Bank shall fully identify, effectively measure, continuously
monitor and appropriately control the liquidity risk in its business
processes in a prudent manner, and ensure that there is sufficient
funds to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under
normal or stress circumstances.

The Bank measures its liquidity risk tolerance based on its business
strategies, business characteristics and risk appetite, and thereby
develops liquidity risk management strategies, policies, and
procedures. Risk tolerance is designed to measure, by quantitative
methods, the unmitigated liquidity risk that the Bank can tolerate
under normal or stress circumstances.

The liquidity risk management strategy specifies the overall mode
of liquidity risk management and the specific policy for the matters

of liquidity risk management, including but not limited to:

1) Overall liquidity risk management policy;

2) Liquidity risk identification, measurement and reporting
mechanism;

3) Liquidity risk management procedures;

4) Combination of assets and liabilities;

5) Liquidity risk limits;
6) Analysis of cash use under normal and stress circumstances;

7) Potential factors leading to increased liquidity risk and
corresponding monitoring processes;

8) Stress testing and scenario analysis;

9) Contingency plan.
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14. L0 1 B 14. LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)
142 EEHE 14.2 Quantitative disclosure
T[T > % MOP’000, %
a. g HA Y- 24 T ) P B A IR 6,027,843
Minimum weekly amount of cash in hand
b. AT T 8 P B R 8,159,416
Average weekly amount of cash in hand
c. B o B E 125,475,547
Specified liquid assets
d. BT E 0 ¥ 7 BAH B & ) b2 45%
Ratio of specified liquid asset to total basic liabilities
e. — T3 B A 85%
One-month liquidity ratio in the last week of each month
f AR A S ) LR 34%
Three-month liquidity ratio in the last week of each month
15, FCAb R 15. OTHER INFORMATION
AATAE B H AT P S Tk Rl o Lt The Bank has been involved in litigation proceedings in the ordinary
AR AR K AR 43 2 R AR AT 2y ) AN RRE SR AR AR 1Y o course of business. Most of these proceedings were initiated by the Bank
AAT S LR PR i N & B AT - B for recovering non-performing loans. The Bank expected that there would
R WL Bl A8 A ZE A el AT ) K o not be any significant impact resulted from the proceedings on the Bank’s
business, financial position or operating result.
16. WM 16. NOTES
a. AP EEE S H— - ZHAHD % a. Item 1 Item 3 and Item 6 are audited among all the items
it o disclosed.
b. FRIEA R Al GER > DL E SR s =R T A b. Unless with specification, all the above data is taken as at
+=ZHA=+—H- 31 December 2022.
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Bt % 31 2 1 & (18 35AMCMO006/B/2022-DSB/AMCM3% X #4)

Financial Information Disclosure (In Accordance with AMCMO006/B/2022-DSB/AMCM)

T (RPY) 385 BeAn A FR 2 7]

1. HMEES

HRABCUR Y < Tl A 2R 05 AR ) ) 38 750D 558
75WR(3) T SR I AU E -

(a) MEMRIE

ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

of the Financial System Act of Macau (FSAM).

(a) Statement of financial position

All those items of information required under Article 75(1) and/or 75(3)

Y- <y B4R
+ZA=4+—H F+TZH=1+—H
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
W T WM T
MOP MOP
Ik Ui By B Non-current assets
L/ESN Y& Property, plant and equipment 12,853 16,207
al it G Available-for-sale investments - 111,604,416
DL s (i H O E A Financial assets at fair value through
HoAh 47 A Uk 26 10 4 & other comprehensive income 90,345,417 -
A ER M HBRE Held-to-maturity investments - 24,505,879
DA 6 A w1 1Y) 4 Rl Financial assets at amortised cost 24,329,554 =
R ST B TH Deferred tax assets 1,268,584 181,011
115,956,407 136,307,513
B Current assets
AT Bank balances 55,031,020 31,014,547
JRE ST 5 T B L A ¥ Receivables and other assets 1,577,582 1,542,314
JREWIR] & 2 Rl FOH Amount due from a fellow subsidiary 3,977,689 4,254,549
60,586,291 36,811,410
i B AE Current liabilities
JREAS L B4 JIk B W 3ROH Amount due to immediate holding company 781,198 800,978
JREAST T e HL At £ Payables and other liabilities 4,614,868 4,401,981
JRE 4 i T Tax payable 2,095,678 2,544,732
7,491,744 7,747,691
YR B A Net current assets 53,094,547 29,063,719
R 7 DO B B R Total assets less current liabilities 169,050,954 165,371,232
EE Net assets 169,050,954 165,371,232
EEA £ Equity
A Issued capital 50,000,000 50,000,000
feti i Reserves 119,050,954 115,371,232
i A % RE AR A T Total equity 169,050,954 165,371,232
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1L MERER @ 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(b) KL GUREER (b) Statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income
BET_H=Z+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December
2022 2021
WM |7
MOP MOP
EE ML A Investment management fee income 16,525,161 16,987,488
FE M A Interest income 4,491,881 4,211,445
IR PN Advisory fee income 266,117 2,772,253
WA Operating income 21,283,159 23,971,186
HAth & A Other operating (loss)/income (290,954) 598,186
a¥EEH Operating expenses (7,967,712) (7,794,730)
& 7 VA 18 % Wi 3 A Operating profit before impairment losses 13,024,493 16,774,642
7 ok (1R K U AR Charge for impairment loss on financial instruments (27,980) (72,506)
B wi A Profit before tax 12,996,513 16,702,136
EEYA Income tax expense (1,489,400) (1,933,500)
b AN Profit for the year 11,507,113 14,768,636
A g & (HH2K) Wtk (BB 1% 3 40) Other comprehensive (loss)/income (net of tax)
BB ES B ERE MW HA Other comprehensive (loss)/income may be
Gih (R s reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
DL e AE (B B A Change in investment revaluation reserve
HoA AR A Wi g 1 3 25 250 Al (A 22 ) of debt securities measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (7,853,024) =
T A H A B 5 HE 4 5 ) Change in impairment allowances
charged to profit or loss 25,633 =
Ak A S A I A (1 fal £ 5 ) Change in investment revaluation reserve of
available-for-sale financial instruments = 1,797,174
A A B Tl (B VEE £ 5 Change in impairment allowances charged to
profit or loss = 62,062
AR FE HAb AR A (R R) W% - BRBE AR AR Other comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year, net of tax (7,827,391) 1,859,236
AE B A A W25 B o BRBLAR I Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 3,679,722 16,627,872
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ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(c)

A summary of the management report

In 2022, with a complex and uncertainty external economic
environment, ICBC (Macau) Capital Limited sustained a steady
development and achieved after-tax profits of MOP11.51 million,
decrease by 22.09% compared to last year. The total assets increased
by 2% to MOP177 million at the year ended 2022.

According to the strategic development Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China (Macau) Limited and the planning of Macao in
economic diversity, our company will take advantages of the global
networks, branding, capital and technology resources of ICBC
Group, with a strong proactive approach to the activities of cross-
border linkages business, government investment of fiscal reserves
and residents of wealth added, to become a professional investment
institution with uplifting of asset efficiency and risk prevention and
control, providing a robust return for customers and supporting the
diversification, prosperity and stability of Macao economy.

Chairman of the Board of Directors
Niu Jian Jun

Macao, 11 April 2023
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ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

The report from the supervisory board

In accordance with the provision of Article twenty-third, paragraph
(e) and for the purpose of the said provision, the Board of Directors
of ICBC (Macau) Capital Limited has submitted to our firm the
audited financial statements and the report from Board of Directors
regarding the 2022 financial year, for issuing the related opinion.

In our opinion, the documents submitted to our firm give a fair
view of the Company’s financial status.

The report of the Board of Directors clearly evidences the
Company’s business activities performed and carried out by the
Company in the financial year under appraisal.

In view of the external auditor’s report, we concur with the opinion
expressed in such report, whereas the documents supporting the
said financial statements evidence the truly and accurate financial
status exhibited in the balance sheet dated 31 December 2022, as
well as the financial results of the financial year ended 2022.

In view of the above said, we have decided to approve the said
financial statements and the Report of the Board of Directors.

Single Supervisor
CSC & Associates, Certified Public Accountants
(Represented by Mr. Chui Sai Cheong)

Macao, 11 April 2023
Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholders of ICBC (Macau) Capital Limited
(Incorporated in Macau with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of ICBC (Macau) Capital
Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Company’s statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the Company’s
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standards of Macau Special Administrative
Region, the People’s Republic of China (“Macau SAR”) approved by
Order of the Secretary for Economy and Finance No. 44/2020, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(e)

Independent auditor’s report (continued)
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing approved by the Professional Committee of Accountants
under the Notice No. 2/2021/CPC. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
managements, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view,
in all material respects, of the financial position of the Company
as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial results and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standards of Macau SAR approved by Order of the Secretary for
Economy and Finance No. 44/2020.

Kuan Ho Weng

Certified Public Accountant

Partner

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu - Sociedade de Auditores

Macau
11 April 2023
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List of institutions in which they have holdings over 5% of

share capital, etc.

None

List of the shareholders with qualifying holdings

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited

Name of the members of the company boards

Board of Directors
Mr. Niu Jian Jun, Chairman,
(appointed on 11 March 2022)
Mr. Xu Ke En, Chairman
(resigned on 25 February 2022)
Mr. Huen Wing Ming, Patrick, Director
Mr. Deng Wan Hong, Director
Mr. Huang Xian Jun, Director
Mr Zheng Bin, Director
(appointed on 24 October 2022)

Board of the General Meeting

Mr. Jiang Yi Sheng, Chairman

Mr. Huen Chung Yuen, Ian, Vice-Chairman
Mrs. Chen Cui Ping, Secretary

Single Supervisor
CSC & Associados, Sociedade de Auditores
(Represented by Mr. Chui Sai Cheong)

Company Secretary
Mrs. Chen Cui Ping

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors are established under the Shareholders’ Meeting
of the Company. The Board of Directors of the Company establishes

three special committees, which are the Nomination and Compensation

Committee, the Audit Committee, and the Risk Management Committee.
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ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED
3. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HWET A=+ —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021
WM WM T
MOP MOP
B8 T B A A W B4 R Cash flow from operating activities
7t i A1) Profit before tax 12,996,513 16,702,136
A Adjustment for:
FE WA Interest income (4,491,881) (4,211,445)
reg Depreciation 3,355 3,355
Fe 2 200 5 £ 8 B ih 5 5 8 Amortisation of discount and premium
of held-to-maturity investments = 51,457
DA 1 A T <6 T Y T vk 9 8 Amortisation of discount and premium
of financial assets at amortised cost 173,088 =
AT A Y 45 B v £ 1 S Amortisation of discount and premium
of available-for-sale investments - 311,297
DA o fs (B st i H L 3wt A Amortisation of discount and premium of
A A A <6 O 194 T Vi B financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 233,719 =
S A B R TR R R Net losses from disposal
of available-for-sale investments = 66,736
G MR EREES Charge for impairment loss on
financial instruments 27,980 72,506
8,942,774 12,996,042
JARE M 5 T B S A 2 B Increase in receivables and other assets (30,435) (146,963)
JRE W 5] B8 728 R ERIE D ($ ) Decrease/(increase) in amount due from a fellow
subsidiary 276,860 (474,032)
JRE A 35 TE B LAt B A5 1 Increase in payables and other liabilities 212,887 175,676
JRE AT B 42 42 e B ) R TR D Decrease in amount due to immediate
holding company (19,780) (1,769)
REmBEANBEERE Cash generated from operations 9,382,306 12,548,954
B &P Interest received 4,487,048 4,716,146
R RPIREY Income taxes paid (1,941,812) (1,221,844)
AR B e A 1Y B 4 U VR Net cash flows generated from operating activities 11,927,542 16,043,256
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3. BlE&EmERw 3. CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
BRET A=+ —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December
2022 2021
WMo WM T
MOP MOP
¥ 3 B A AR i B & R Cash flow from investing activities
T 25 30 H B i ] 45 Proceeds from redemption of held-to-maturity
investments = 20,597,464
CIFE Sy ER IS Proceeds from redemption
of available-for-sale investments = 36,005,250
RPN ERER 1) N R 1 Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at
S WA i 1Y <0 7 o ) A fair value through other comprehensive income 16,129,741 =
IR R R A Purchase of available-for-sale investments - (65,126,988)
Ji L DA PO AR o LG Byt A A Purchase of financial assets at fair value through
SEA W AR Y 4 R other comprehensive income (4,041,700) -
B im B A AR, () B AR Net cash flows generated from/(used in)
investing activities 12,088,041 (8,524,274)
HEMBESEEMRERA Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 24,015,583 7,518,982
1903 4 B B4 S Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 31,015,489 23,496,507
WARBHERRSZ%MEY Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 55,031,072 31,015,489
I & B B 4 % Y 8R4 AT Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
SRATAE K Cash and balances with banks 55,031,020 31,014,547
BEAMBETIMEH Amounts shown in the balance sheet 55,031,020 31,014,547
T 4 e B 46 S5 A 0 1 i M A Impairment allowance provided for components of
cash and cash equivalents 52 942
B E R Bl a KB &S EY Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement 55,031,072 31,015,489
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ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES OTHER THAN
DERIVATIVES TRANSACTIONS

There was no off-balance sheet exposure during the year.

DERIVATIVES TRANSACTIONS

There was no derivatives transaction during the year.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

6.1

6.2

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements as set out in Macau Financial System Act (Decree-Law
No. 32/93/M) and the Macau Financial Reporting Standards (the
"MFRSs") issued under Administrative Regulation No. 44/2020 of
the Macau SAR.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis, except for the available-for-sale investments (“AFS”)
debt investments and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) which have been measured at
fair value.

Note 6.2 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

These financial statements are presented in Macau Patacas ("MOP")
and all values are rounded to the nearest dollar except when
otherwise indicated.

Application of amendments to Macau Financial Reporting
Standards

The Financial Reporting Standards of Macau SAR was approved
by Order of the Secretary for Economy and Finance No. 44/2020
(the "New MFRS") have come into effect on 28 March 2020 and
has replaced the Financial Reporting Standards of Macau SAR as
stated in Annex II of Administrative Regulation No. 25/2005 (the
"MERS").

The MFRS had adopted a selection of standards from the 2004
edition of the International Financial Reporting Standards (the
"TFRS") including framework for Preparation and Presentation of
financial statements as well as 16 standards. The New MFRS, on the
other hand, have adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting and all of the standards and interpretations from the
2015 edition of the IFRS.
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ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.2

Application of amendments to Macau Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

The New MFRSs are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022.

The following New MFRSs (Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting and all of the standards and interpretations from the
2015 edition of the IFRS) are the standards that are effective on or
after 1 January 2022:

IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statement
TIAS 2 - Inventories

IAS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows

IAS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in

Accounting Estimates and Errors

IAS 10 - Events after the Reporting Period

IAS 12 - Income Taxes

IAS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment

IAS 17 - Leases

IAS 19 - Employee Benefits

IAS 20 - Accounting for Government Grants
and Disclosure of Government
Assistance

IAS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates

IAS 23 - Borrowing Costs

IAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

IAS 26 - Accounting and Reporting by

Retirement Benefit Plans

IAS 27 — Separate Financial Statements

TAS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

IAS 29 - Financial Reporting in

Hyperinflationary Economies

IAS 32 - Financial Instruments:
Presentation

IAS 33 - Earnings per Share

IAS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting

IAS 36 - Impairment of Assets

1AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities

and Contingent Assets

IAS 38 — Intangible Assets
IAS 39 - Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement

IAS 40 - Investment Property
IAS 41 — Agriculture
IFRS 1 — First-time adoption of International

Financial Reporting Standards
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.2 R FIHT A I SRAB HT AL Y B 25 i e 6.2  Application of amendments to Macau Financial Reporting
ﬂ”>>(f§) Standards (continued)
I % P 75 e 1% 4 1)) — DAy J BT IFRS 2 — Share-based Payment
529 i SZAF
I 5% B 5 o 4 LD - LI IFRS 3 ~ Business Combinations
358
I % B 755 i 15 1 R ) - fRER & IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts
R4t
I % P 75 e 1% 4 1)) - FAHER IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale
5% Ui B and Discontinued Operations
& RS
Il % B 75 45 U HI ) — B IR Y IFRS 6 — Exploration for and Evaluation of
65t B AN T A Mineral Resources
I 5% T 5 o Y D) -ERMIA : IERS 7 - Financial Instruments:
795 P Disclosures
<18 % B 75 e A v ) - RN IFRS 8 - Operating Segments
8%
I % 55 i 25 1 R ) SRR IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
9%t
1B % B 75 e o 4 1)) - KR E BT R IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements
51098
<18 % ot 75 e A ¥ ) - BB IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements
1198
I % 55 i 25 1 ) - A IFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other
1298 HE £ 11 % 7 Entities
I 5% T s o Y D) - ARMEERE IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement
51358
<18 % ot 75 e s v ) - B HIAR T IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts
1498
I % 55 i 25 1 1)) - BEFARIEA IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
#1598 Customers
IR 3 o 5 £ e - AR [FRIC* Interpretation 1 - Changes in Existing
N TEYER LR AL Decommissioning, Restoration
A 11 5 ) and Similar Liabilities
1B % B 755 i o5 f - BB TEAAE IFRIC Interpretation 2 - Members’ Shares in Co-operative
A4 )ER 2% Bk Entities and Similar Instruments
JB > A FHAL
TH
1B I3 P 75 e o f - Tl E — JE IFRIC Interpretation 4 - Determining whether an
NEDL L =T Arrangement Contains a Lease
L
I 5% B 5 i o 0 e - B EIEF IFRIC Interpretation 5 - Rights to Interests arising from
UNEDL L BRI Decommissioning, Restoration
HEEEAN and Environmental Rehabilitation
i Funds
<18 % ot 75 e A e - S LB R A IFRIC Interpretation 6 — Liabilities arising from Participating
NCDE T G d i) in a Specific Market-Waste
g T Electrical and Electronic
A AR Equipment
I 5% T 5 e A e e — R FCE B o st IFRIC Interpretation 7 - Applying the Restatement Approach
NEL W HE R 552955 - under TAS 29 Financial Reporting
R R in Hyperinflationary Economies
Jig2 I 58 3 v
f14 B 15 i 1% )
IV IR URES
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6. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.2

Application of amendments to Macau Financial Reporting

Standards (continued)
IFRIC Interpretation 10
IFRIC Interpretation 12

IFRIC Interpretation 14

IFRIC Interpretation 16
IFRIC Interpretation 17

IFRIC Interpretation 19

IFRIC Interpretation 20

IFRIC Interpretation 21
SIC** Interpretation 7

SIC Interpretation 10

SIC Interpretation 15

SIC Interpretation 25

SIC Interpretation 27

SIC Interpretation 29

SIC Interpretation 32

— Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment
- Service Concession Arrangements

- IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding
Requirements and their
Interaction

- Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation

- Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners

- Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments

— Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

— Levies
— Introduction of the Euro

- Government Assistance - No
Specific Relation to Operating
Activities

- Operating Leases — Incentives

— Income Taxes-Changes in the Tax
Status of an Entity or its
Shareholders

— Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease

- Service Concession Arrangements:
Disclosures

— Intangible Assets-Web Site Costs

* International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”)

ok

Standard Interpretations Committee (“SIC”)

The Company’s management considered the application of IFRS 9
and IFRS 15 would have material changes as described below.
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ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.2

Application of amendments to Macau Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

IFRS 9

The Company has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in IFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification and
measurement requirements (including impairment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model) retrospectively to instruments that
have not been derecognised as at 1 January 2022 (date of initial
application) and has not applied the requirements to instruments
that have already been derecognised as at 1 January 2022. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2021 and
the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2022 are recognised in the
opening retained profits and other components of equity, without
restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under MFRSs.

Accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 6.3.

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement and
the impact on opening balance of financial assets and financial
liabilities and other items due to initial application of IFRS 9 to
Assets, Liabilities and Equity.

The following table shows the original classification and the new
classification categories under IFRS 9 for the Company’s financial
assets and financial liabilities and other items subject to ECL as at
1 January 2022 in accordance with the Company’s updated
accounting policies on the classification under IFRS 9.

IFRS 9JH T ¥ /> 38

New classification under IFRS 9

4 il

Financial assets

AT

Bank balances

DR R gy
Available-for-sale investments
FAEZEIHARE
Held-to-maturity investments
HoAt &

Other assets

JRE U [7] 22 2 )

Amount due from a fellow subsidiary

£ R

Financial liabilities

HoAth & 5
Other liabilities

AR JRE AL 3K T
Loans and receivables
DR R g
Available-for-sale
SRkt B
Held-to-maturity
AN JRE A K T
Loans and receivables
BHORN B i 3K T

Loans and receivables

AR R A

Amortised cost

DU B B A 1 i

Amortised cost

DA B (B s HO AR Bt A=A A5 Gl e
FVOCI

DI BUA T &

Amortised cost

DU B B A 1 i

Amortised cost

DIBESR A T =

Amortised cost

VAR ER A 7

Amortised cost
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ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

6. EEFBR @0 6. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
6.2 R FIHT A I SRAB HT AL Y B 25 i e 6.2  Application of amendments to Macau Financial Reporting
DTS ) Standards (continued)
1 5% 1 255 0 5 2 Y V5B 9% (47) IFRS 9 (continued)
RN T20224F 1 H 1 H AL W) I 4 il The following table shows the reconciliation of the original
2 IR T L 9 0 PRI 5 B 5 s 3 I measurement (including impairment) to the new measurement
EOFE T EF n 1Y R T E (E - (including impairment) determined in accordance IFRS 9 for each
class of the Company’s financial assets as at 1 January 2022
T#M T
MOP’000
IFRS 936 T 1§
D5 R i 69 £ g ik & 5 Y il 69 £
Original New carrying
carrying amount under
amount Reclassification Remeasurement IFRS 9
S R
Financial assets
AT
Bank balances 31,014,547 - - 31,014,547
AL AR TR
Available-for-sale investments 111,604,416 (111,604,416) - =
LA B S A
Ho At 57 A i i Y 4 R
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income - 111,604,416 - 111,604,416
FAEZEFMHARE
Held-to-maturity investments 24,505,879 (24,505,879) - -
DL 6 A 5T 2 11 <6 il O
Financial assets at amortised cost - 24,505,879 - 24,505,879
JRE ST T B At 5
Receivables and other assets 1,542,314 - 1,542,314
JRE U [7] 2 2 ) 3K
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary 4,254,549 - 4,254,549
UEEA £
Equity
5 il (L £t
Investment revaluation reserve (3,022,097) - (3,022,097)

200

At B 1 B

T 20 J 2% AT AR o B R O 4 I BT
A LA 2s o M B R A ELHC S B Rt A At AR
e

B A R B E A A LA B R
EEEER ) NS R T Rt <
B A 25 2 Fe A 8 £5111,594,41638 P 7T > (K] 7
A % 4 B E R SRR B DO S A
e WM H &S REE S0 - I B I
W& 4 R B4 B B S AN A 4 N LR A
ARG SR R LRI AE o

Available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments

From AFS debt investments to FVOCI

Debt securities with a fair value of MOP111,594,416 were
reclassified from available-for-sale investments to financial assets
at FVOCI, as these investments are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling of these assets and the contractual cash flows of
these investments are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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£ o Hr S AT DA SAR 1 Dok AR 51w B9 JE
I T g R A R 1T 4 BE /510,000 MG o
AR U S B BT I HTE
FEAS & A 0] T LAY A B o 202241 H 1
H > Ak R TR A B LA Ao Ml
B 8 Bt A HL At 45 4 i 25 1O HE 2%
BT H > 2 fofE (8 £510,00088 [958 > A K
N SUEE S B A M 4R A ik g o

FFHEFH HRE

BERT A U5 R 2 B0 H OB R i B B
5 45 1 ) ) S 0% IE R 2 4% T 40 O DA kR
ARG - AATF B A EEZRIW A L
KRARBEERE  BARBESRHEME T
A4 B DR AR 4 B SR 00 R -
20224F 1 H 1 H > TR T A (E RN S8 8 5T 19 R 1
BB 2 30 e 25 B -

20224101 H > T A 4 ol T 1) I T 1 (L
2R 32 30 8 U I B B 5 i R ) B9
SRR -

o T SRAT (R IR A B W
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ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

6. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.2

Application of amendments to Macau Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments (continued)

From AFS equity investments to FVOCI

The Company elected to present in other comprehensive income
(“OCI”) for the fair value changes of all its equity investments
previously classified as available-for-sale, of which MOP10,000
related to unquoted equity investments previously measured at cost
less impairment. These investments are not held for trading and not
expected to be sold in the foreseeable future. At the date of initial
application of IFRS 9, MOP10,000 were reclassified from available-
for-sale investments to equity instruments at FVOCI. There is
no fair value gain relating to those unquoted equity investments
previously carried at cost less impairment were adjusted to equity
instruments at FVOCI and investment revaluation reserve as at
1 January 2022.

Held-to-maturity investments

Investments previously classified as held-to-maturity investments
are reclassified and measured at amortised cost upon application
of IFRS 9. The Company intends to hold the assets to maturity to
collect contractual cash flows and these cash flows consist solely
of payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. There was no difference between the previous carrying
amount and the revised carrying amount at 1 January 2022.

The carrying amounts for all financial liabilities at 1 January 2022
have not been impacted by the initial application of IFRS 9.
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ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.2

Application of amendments to Macau Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

IFRS 15

The Company has applied IFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. IFRS 15 superseded IAS 18 Revenue and the related
interpretations. The Company has applied IFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect (if any) of initially applying this Standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January 2022.
Any difference at the date of initial application is recognised in
the opening retained profits (or other components of equity, as
appropriate) and comparative information has not been restated.

Furthermore, in accordance with the transition provisions
in IFRS 15, the Company has elected to apply the Standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed at 1 January
2022. Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under IAS 18
Revenue and the related interpretations.

Information about the Company’s performance obligations and
the accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 15 are
disclosed in 6.3(1) respectively.

IFRS 15 has no significant impact on the Company’s existing
accounting policies on revenue recognition for the above revenue
source. The application of IFRS 15 has had no material impact on
the Company’s retained profits as at 1 January 2022.

Except as described above, the application of the New MFRSs in
the current period has had no material impact on the Company’s
financial positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these financial statements.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.3  Summary of significant accounting policies

(a)  Related parties

1

)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Company if that person:

@

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Company;

has significant influence over the Company; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Company or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Company if any of the

following conditions applies:

@

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Company or an entity related to the Company;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (1);

A person identified in (1)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity);
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ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a)

(b)

Related parties (continued)

(2)  An entity is related to the Company if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to the
Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

- Office equipment 4 to 10 years

- Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

®)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any

significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon

disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected

from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or

retirement recognised in the statement of profit and loss in

the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between

the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.

Investments and other financial assets

(i)

Classification of financial assets (upon application of
IFRS 9)

Financial assets are measured initially at fair value.
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Company commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are measured at amortised cost.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(i)

Classification of financial assets (upon application of
IFRS 9) (continued)

After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk
on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit impaired. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in interest income in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling and the contractual
terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding are measured at
FVOCL
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(i)

Classification of financial assets (upon application of
IFRS 9) (continued)

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
securities classified as at FVOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method,
and foreign exchange gains and losses, are recognised
in profit or loss. All other changes in the carrying
amount of these debt securities are recognised in OCI
and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. Impairment allowance are
recognised in profit or loss with corresponding
adjustment to OCI without reducing the carrying
amounts of these debt securities. The impairment
amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are
the same as the amounts that would have been
recognised in profit or loss if these debt securities had
been measured at amortised cost. When these debt
securities are derecognised, the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

At the date of initial recognition, the Company may
make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to designate investments in equity
instruments as at FVOCI.

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCI are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in OCI and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained
profits.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Company’s
right to receive the dividends is established in
accordance with IFRS 9, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “other
operating loss/income” line item in profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Initial recognition and measurement (before application
of IFRS 9)

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale
investments, as appropriate. The Company determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition. Financial assets are measured initially
at fair value, which normally will be equal to the
transaction price plus, in case of a financial asset not
held at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
immediately.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Company commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Classification of financial assets (before application of
IFRS 9)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
operating income in the statement of profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(iii)

Classification of financial assets (before application of
IFRS 9) (continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity when the Company has
the positive intention and ability to hold the financial
assets to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in operating income and in
the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available-for-sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated
at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in
this category are those which are intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time and which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response
to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment
is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
other income, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss in
other expenses. Interest and dividends earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale investments are reported
as interest income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
as other income in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 6.2(m).
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ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(iii)  Classification of financial assets (before application of
IFRS 9) (continued)

Available-for-sale investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

- the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required
to repay.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.
6.3
T it
Description

BELE AR (L Y <

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

Impairment of financial assets

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
IFRS 9)

Measurement of ECL

There was no change to the impairment loss of stage
1 and stage 2 financial assets upon application of
IFRS 9. However starting from 1 January 2022, the
impairment loss of stage 3 financial assets was also
measured in accordance with IFRS 9 with below
changes:

T AR 18 5% 7 4 25 v B G2

Impairment Loss recognised in profit or loss

MRIEAS 2> 7] g at e At A S

Financial assets that are considered Amount calculated based on the Company's

as credit-impaired

accounting policies

Upon application of IFRS 9 since 1 January 2022,
the Company complies with AMCM requirement
to maintain regulatory reserve in excess of the
Company’s impairment allowance for loans and
advances to customers.

When the minimum provision under the relevant
AMCM rules is higher than the impairment allowance
made under the Company’s accounting policy which
is in accordance with IFRS 9, the Company transfers
the additionally required amount from retained
profits to other reserves.

211



o T SRAT UL R R A
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

T8R (VP ) & B An A PR A H
B 5 BUR ()

6.

212

6.3

HOR G BORBEZE (a0

(e)

o L 0 ()

(i)

<2 Il O (E (R I A
R HEYDFFEOTEZ Hi)

A LA T ELR I
9115 7 3% (FECL) e 30 ¥ 2
WAL -

- HATHEEG

- P IR TR kv
1 S 8 5%

- REMCHOE R A B E

- R R T AR RKIE
b4

- FiA BB A8 -

AT AR A A T T U AR
ke S Tl

HH 5 I 1R 7t 4

iR GEERITE i NPt O A Y
1) JE By 2 1E R <l TR
FAABJE (9 i e~ 24 (8 = TR A%
LIE TN D RN

ER R R x BAMR x &
FUR=PR

A AT SR LT =R BRI 07
5 R R A 1210 T 508 R A7
ST ] TR A5 AR SR A (i A -

W B
Stage

il ke

Description

1 < T ELAR R TG 19 00 0 ke A o B

Credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased

6.

ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

ZR IR
Annual Report 2022

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.3

significantly since initial recognition

2 A T ELAF T LB w0 s ke R AR B
Credit risk on the financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition

3 FTEAE MARR M M TH

Financial instrument that is considered as credit-impaired

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
IFRS 9)

The Company recognises impairment allowances for
ECL on the following financial instruments:

- Bank balances;

- Debt securities classified as available-for-sale
investments;

- Receivables and other assets;

- Amount due from a fellow subsidiary; and

- Held-to-maturity investments.

Equity instruments classified as available-for-sale
investments are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECL

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses under different economic scenarios. They are
measured as:

Exposure at Default x Probability of Default x Loss
Given Default

The Company measures impairment allowances for
12-month or lifetime ECL using a 3-stage approach as
follows:

WA K

Impairment Loss

1218 A 9 FEIE AR
12-month ECL

R AR U TS H R R
Lifetime ECL

B EUHE G ARk
Lifetime ECL



SRR

Annual Report 2022

T (RPY) 385 BeAn A FR 2 7]

6. HRMBUR &)

6.3

HOR G BORBEZE (a0

(e)

o L 0 ()

(i)

2l B o () (R R
A HI DB 9HE 2 Fif) (48)

B 18R AT 42 (#)

12 87 B W5 E R R TE R
W H AR 12 8 A e Al T E AT RE
B B A B R A A
BUAE M — 5o - B
fr U BN A R ZR 248 4
TR T A7 A TR BT A T
AE 5 A8 8 A0 3501 4 300 TR
(ENEEi ST

A4y m il a SR 1240 A TE
{5 RS AF 2 (e - BRI
B T H [ ) 46 e RS AR A5 L
gkt BB 3 I > A 2 R
T R AR A AT Y
W5 Rk -

1E B A5 AR SRR b (il 4
BLH T (55 1 9 B4R B ) H AN
PR ) 256 ) T S B W IR (] (B o

KA ([scDC)

15 FFAh P06 Bl AR A% & TR
HO A T J g 1 S 0 ey
A ) BT A Y T
L& %) 3 Wi B 0 e 58 R A
O A I B AT L o AR 4 ]
TE A5 1 AL AT Al T AR P 2%
TR L SIS T
BeAIS BB o

= I 8 B A B BT A% 5 1L 2
B &

= 30K ([DPDJ)

Sl UL A 5 B A B A e (5

= B E ) Sk B 2 B =

Bt HAp@aifliFings :

= TEANE RS B R

= HIHIOK o

6.

o ] SRAT (B e A R A )

INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MACAU) LIMITED

ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
IFRS 9) (continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result
from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date. Life-time ECL are the ECL that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
financial instrument.

The Company recognises a loss allowance equal to
12-month ECL unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL.

A discount factor considering the adjusted maturity
and effective interest rate is used to account for the
time value of money in the ECL model.

Significant credit deterioration criteria (“SCDC”)

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company compares the risk of
default occurring on the financial instrument assessed
at the reporting date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. The Company considers the
following criteria in its credit deterioration assessment
processes, which differentiate an account between
stage 1 and stage 2.

- Notch difference analysis of internal or
external rating change; and

- Days past due (“DPD”) of 30 days.
Financial instruments with default criteria (stage 3
criteria) will be classified as stage 3 that includes the

followings:

- Default ratings observed in external ratings; and

- DPD of 90 days.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
IFRS 9) (continued)

Significant credit deterioration criteria (“SCDC”)

(continued)

The Company considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECL are re-measured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount
is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss. The Company recognises an impairment
loss or reversal for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the Company’s
balance sheet

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the balance
sheet as a deduction from the gross carrying amount.
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ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(g

Financial liabilities

(i)

(ii)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities, as appropriate. The Company determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of other financial liabilities, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include payables
and other liabilities, amount due to immediate
holding company.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and include
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in operating expenses in the statement of
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged, cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another

from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the

terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such

an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of

the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and

the difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

(i)

(i)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in
active markets is determined with reference to quoted market
prices or dealer price quotations without any deduction for
transaction costs. For financial instruments where there is no
active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument which is substantially the
same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and other valuation
models.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
at the end of the reporting period. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in operating expenses in the statement of
profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of that are recognised
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Company operates.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

- when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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6. EHHEOR () 6. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
6.3 HARERMBORME () 6.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Frfdme a) (k) Income tax (continued)
JIT A AT SIS 11U A R [ P 26 B~ A 4 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
TR ) P B A B LA N R By B TR temporary differences, the carried forward of unused tax
% BV [EE 15 8 SRR A 1R SR BE A% credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
TR B BIIH S 2 > IR T - recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit

will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carried forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

- 3 2E 05 A OF Bk 32 5 Bl A - when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
RGBS temporary differences arises from the initial
BHBRZ 3T PRI TR E - recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
AT S AR 2 TR I is not a business combination and, at the time of the
HAREBIHERE 5 & transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

= HR A T AR KB EAF Z - in respect of deductible temporary differences
WG RN R associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
W 2 AT T IR 2 L (R and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
IR M 2 BT R AE W] B ok 4 recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
[ o DA R B IR M 2 L A R temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
JERRB W gE 2 FF LT - A AR future and taxable profit will be available against
RIEBLIHE 7 o which the temporary differences can be utilised.
R S ol T R T < AL 5 R The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
RETEEZ > T AN HE the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
N R RE A A 40 E SRR U A DA RS 4 that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
Tl 2 70 0 08 A ol T E A Ak o SR ERR be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
3 A T E A A o R E AT be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
Al o NI W BB AR AT A2 40 JE SRR U 4 DA at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
K 5 4 1 s P 43 0 A B T 7 2 L the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
T T LARERR o profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

0 S Tl T e B R AR R R A R Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
B B i R OB il 2 B R (OB rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
) > Fi 55 3R A T 18 AR R R is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
BB AT LAGHR tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by

the end of the reporting period.

AN A AE 5 A b o i AT RE R R A Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
WA T B A B T B R o T a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
B 58 S 5 T JO 7% () — B [ against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
— Bl JR 5 FUJ 0 S o T e LR S the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

BiIH A A EAREE o
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6. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

) Revenue recognition

G) A HIERR (SRR B R (i)
HIERDFE159E 2 1)

AN TR R AR R E
B HEERBA

L WAEFeM

2. oI B H b R A S5

3. WEERGEKK

4. MERGEMDPEES L
i) 4 26 75

5. RS STRUE 2 T IR (R
B AT AT RR

A\ R 58 B #2875 I (st tt)
Tl RR M R > BIR  E JE A TUAE
A B ) T o T T4 o
T R P o

J %) FEHs 2 5 — JE B fifk 19 AR 5
B — R I T RUAR R ) B A5

B 2 - P
A — B ] S O FLUA B
B 5 01 P4 38 140 e A
— B P

- B FAEAR A F R A 1R
I B A Sl 9 AR 2 A A
R JE 4 T PR A A A1) 4

- A F ) B 4 A i B e
BT % F 708 E g8 ik
B R IRF A A 1

5

= AN F ) JE &SI R A
— AT AR 2 R R
KB EE - BAR
AEABES BIET 5%
JI Y JE A i T A A5 A
AHIHER] -

R 75K WG R H Y
Fifl 7 G 5 4 T R 1Y IR B e

AR ICA

Revenue recognition (upon application of IFRS 15)

The Company adopts five step process for recognising
revenue from contracts with customers

1. Identify the contract with the customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

5. Recognise revenue when, or as, the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

The Company recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a service that
is distinct or a series of distinct services that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Company’s performance as the Company
performs;

- the Company’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Company performs; or

- the Company’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Company
and the Company has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

6.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

™

(m)

(n)

Revenue recognition(continued)

(i) Revenue recognition (upon application of IFRS 15)

(continued)

Investment management fee income is recognised
over time with reference to the net asset value of
the investment fund under management, since the
customers simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefit provided by the Company. Interest
income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest rate method by applying the rate
that discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial assets. Advisory
fee income is recognised according to contract term,
either on a time-proportion basis if the basis of
calculation is clearly defined in the customer contracts
or upon the satisfaction of performance obligation
and when the amount to be received by the Company
is certain (without a significant risk of reversal).

(i) Revenue recognition (before application of IFRS 15)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and when the revenue can be measured reliably.
Investment management fee income is recognised
when the services are provided. Interest income is
recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest rate method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial assets.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency of the Company using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Exchange
differences arising from the settlement of such transactions
and from the retranslation at the year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Employee benefits

The Company operates a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the participating employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the scheme.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

7.1

The policy for lending to related parties

@

(i)

(iii)

The Company earned investment management fee income
from the immediate holding company. The investment
management fee income was charged based on a pre-
determined percentage of the asset value of the fund
portfolio managed and the nominal amount or price
difference of wealth management products.

The Company earned pension fund investment management
fee income from a fellow subsidiary. The pension fund
investment management fee income was charged based on a
pre-determined percentage of the asset value of the pension
fund portfolio managed and also the fund management
performance of the Company compared to the pre-
determined target and benchmark return.

The Company earned bond margin investment advisory
fee income and bond market advisory service fee income
from the immediate holding company. The bond margin
investment advisory fee income was charged based on a pre-
determined proportion of the price difference in each bond
transaction carried out by the immediate holding company.
The bond market advisory fee income is fixed in each
month.

The Company earned interest income from the immediate
holding company. The interest income was generated from
the deposits placed with the immediate holding company
and the interest rate offered was similar to those offered to
other customers of the immediate holding company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

7.1

7.2

The policy for lending to related parties (continued)

(v) At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
bank balances with the immediate holding company which
included savings account deposits of MOP190,234 (2021:
MOP42,346) with effective interest rates ranging from 0% to
0.01% per annum (2021: 0% to 0.01% per annum), current
account deposits of MOP54,840,838 (2021: MOP4,193,143),
and no time deposits (2021: MOP26,780,000 with effective
interest rates ranging from 1.20% to 1.30% per annum).

(vi)  Apart from the bank balances with immediate holding
company, the Company had amounts due from/to immediate
holding company as at the end of the reporting period.
The amounts due from/to immediate holding company
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

(vii) The amount due from a fellow subsidiary are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Qualitative disclosure

In addition to the transactions disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, other material related party transactions entered into by

BT M ERA LT the Company with related parties and amounts outstanding with
related parties are as follows:
WMo
MOP
AT M T 2 B D 4% A PR A Investment management fee income received from immediate
(5Fi) holding company (note (i)) 138,087
WSCHRR] 22 728 AR R IR 4 40 4 Pension fund investment management fee income received from a
(FEii) fellow subsidiary (note (ii)) 16,355,216
WSCHR B 4 e B ) Y i 2 Advisory fee income received from immediate holding company
(i) (Note (iii)) 15,757
WA T 2 2 P B | R (i) Interest income received from immediate holding company (Note (iv)) 562,118
FE RO B 452 B2 | 19 3K0H (5Ev) Bank balances with immediate holding company (Note (v)) 55,031,072
JREASE B 2 4 e B 2 W) T (v Amount due to immediate holding company (Note (vi)) 781,198
JREU 7] 22 F 2 w30 (FEvid) Amount due from a fellow subsidiary (Note (vii)) 3,977,689
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8. B’
8.1 EIh:ut

CAPITAL

Qualitative disclosure

(a) HATH (a)  Capital instruments
JiE AR Share capital
2022 2021
WM e A BTH
MOP MOP
e ¢ Authorised:
100,000/1% > 4 JK1,000 & M0 100,000 shares of MOP1,000 each 100,000,000 100,000,000
CHITECHR : Issued and fully paid:
50,0008 > 4 H%1,0001 '] o 50,000 shares of MOP1,000 each 50,000,000 50,000,000

(b)  HE

AN ) o VR TT 4 A B R B I i
HERE o FPT SRl R > AN
3 J5c 7D P 2 A 2 AR BAR B F120% 2
I AL ERE > HEZEHRSZ
SEAS R ARNTE BB LEHUL
JBe A 225005 11 o L 4% 1% 2 B b
SRR FEAE A 2 E BLR 2R B 2 10%7K
W H B S 2 SEANSRA LN
A E BT U B AR By Ak o LA
S AR L BIRE 2 FE S R 7 UL T A
RIS UR o Sl 7 i 1 A g RO AR
K b AR W AR BB B

AN RVEARE A T AR R A
il BE R A A DL B AR R (e R A AR AT
JR 28 DS S 5 A0 0 B R ABE A e KAk
Jie o A2 W) DL A R SR N SR
fi py SR B A o

EN/NGIR RS S SriS R Y BN
B R o N B 220224F12H31H K
20214F12H31H » EARE M1 H 2 -
R KR YA 824k o AN R HE
SR 4 i TR BT AR 0 B AR
Fo L R S R o

(b)

Legal Reserve

The Company is a financial institution regulated by the
Autoridade Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”). Under the
terms of relevant Macau legislation governing financial
institutions, the Company is required to transfer to a legal
reserve an amount equal to a minimum of 20% of its annual
profit after tax until the amount of the reserve is equal to
50% of the Company’s issued and fully paid up share capital.
Thereafter, transfers must continue at a minimum annual
rate of 10% until the reserve is equal to the Company’s
issued and fully paid up share capital. This reserve is
only distributable in accordance with certain limited
circumstances prescribed by statute and will be transferred
from the annual profit after tax upon the approval by the
shareholders in the annual general meeting after the end of
reporting period.

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management
is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain a healthy capital adequacy ratio
in order to support its business and maximise shareholder
value. The Company monitors capital on the basis of total
equity as shown in the balance sheet.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
No changes were made in the objective, policies or processes
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021. The Company is subject to the statutory capital
adequacy ratio requirement imposed by the AMCM and the
legal reserve requirement.
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8. &)

CAPITAL (continued)

82 EERME 8.2  Quantitative disclosure

WM

MOP

EEEATIN DAL E A Share capital 50,000,000
o E fi Legal reserve 23,548,400
BLORIEEAT (B AFURAR) Profits brought forward (Retained Earning ) 104,492,806
AHEA Own Fund 178,041,206
EAT R (THRIKE) Capital Adequacy Ratio (ICBC Capital) 103.10%
AT R R (P B LR ER4T - @)  Capital Adequacy Ratio (ICBC - Group Level) 19.26%

9. 15 H kg
9.1 Mk

R ZE 5 F AR AR JE AT HAE2022F 12 H31H
R8RS > BIAR w5 — J O A8 4 il
P o K A PR LR i O B B B R R
B4 S E 1Y BR T A2 R o

F P AR 24 W) 9 O B 43 ¥ R A O
JBe 2y I AN B AR i S BT > B A A A
FAE— 5 9 4R P A LR

() 1 BT E 2 R

15 BB 2 4 1R 22 By 3 T e 35 JE 4 T
AR 19 Ja B o # R % B BUA Y
AR B A TR o
A AR GRS T R 5 3 F
BATH MBI MRS S5 o SRR R (E R
FHEEAA G AR BSEE TR
JEAT H T o

(b) A JH B AR T

/AR YAt MR S
il R AR 2 75 B 8 0 DA B B R
B A5 T (E > A 2% 2B B 0 A
= AR B B B > R E AR ARk -
ST = B B 2 25 2 Ik
6.3(e) <z il B 7 1) 9 (EH
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CREDIT RISK

9.1

Qualitative disclosure

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at 31 December
2022, in relation to each class of recognised financial assets, is the
carrying amount of those assets as indicated in the balance sheet.

The Company has certain concentration of credit risk as the
majority of the Company’s assets are placed with its immediate
holding company and several corporate issuers of debt securities.

(a)  Definition and scope

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from counterparty’s
failure to perform its obligations. Operational failures which
result in investments by the Company may also give rise
to credit risk. In the Company, investments are only in
liquidity securities issued by counterparty of sound credit
standing. Given that high credit standing, management does
not expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

(b) Credit risk assessment method

The Company classifies financial instruments into three
stages and makes provisions for expected credit loss
accordingly, depending on whether credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly and
whether the assets have become credit-impaired since initial
recognition. Refer to note 6.3(e) Impairment of financial
assets for the definition of the three stages.
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ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

CREDIT RISK (continued)

9.1

Qualitative disclosure (continued)

®)

(c)

Credit risk assessment method (continued)

In addition, the Company adopts asset level classification
which divides financial assets into five categories with
reference to the AMCM’s guidelines, as below:

Asset Level Classification

. Pass: Financial assets where borrowers are current in
meeting commitments and full repayment of interest
and principal is not in doubt;

. Special Mention: Financial assets where borrowers
are experiencing difficulties which may threaten the
institution’s position;

. Substandard: Financial assets where borrowers are
displaying a definable weakness that is likely to
jeopardise repayment;

. Doubtful: Financial assets where collection in full is
improbable and the institution expects to sustain a
loss of principal and/or interest after taking account
of the net realisable value of security;

. Loss: Financial assets which are considered
uncollectible after exhausting all collection efforts
such as realisation of collateral, institution of legal
proceedings, etc.

Significant increase in credit risk

The assessment of significant increase in credit risk and
whether the assets have become credit-impaired since initial
recognition is performed at least on a monthly basis for
financial instruments held by the Company. The Company
takes into consideration all reasonable and supportable
information (including forward-looking information) that
reflects significant change in credit risk for the purposes of
classifying financial instruments. The main considerations
are regulatory and operating environment, internal and
external credit risk rating, debt-servicing capacity, operating
capabilities, contractual terms, and repayment records.
The Company compares the risk of default of a single
financial instrument or a portfolio of financial instruments
with similar credit risk characteristics as at the end of the
reporting period and its risk of default at the date of initial
recognition to determine changes in the risk of default over
the expected lifetime of a financial instrument or a portfolio
of financial instruments. In determining whether credit risk
of a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Company considers factors indicating
whether the probability of default has risen sharply, whether
the financial instrument has been past due for more than 30
days, whether the market price has been falling continuously
and other indicators.
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CREDIT RISK (continued)

Dol

Qualitative disclosure (continued)

(d)

Parameters, assumptions and estimation techniques

ECL for a financial instrument is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL depending on
whether a significant increase in credit risk on that financial
instrument has occurred since initial recognition. The key
parameters include Probability of Default (“PD”), Loss
Given Default (“LGD”), and Exposure at Default (“EAD”),
considering the time value of money.

PD is the possibility that a customer will default on its
obligation within a certain period of time in light of
forward-looking information. The Company’s PD is adjusted
based on the results of the Groups Internal Ratings-Based
Approach and taking the forward-looking information into
account and deducting the prudential adjustment to reflect
the debtor’s point-in-time PD under the current macro-
economic environment.

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a
default. The Company estimates LGD parameters based
on the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted
counterparties, taking into account forward-looking
economic assumptions where relevant. The LGD models
consider the structure, collateral, seniority of the claim,
counterparty industry and recovery costs of any collateral
that is integral to the financial asset.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a
default. The Company derives the EAD from the current
exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the
current amount allowed under the contract and arising
from amortisation. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross
carrying amount at the time of default.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation, such as
how the PDs and LGDs of different maturity profiles change
are monitored and reviewed on a quarterly basis by the
Company.

There have been no significant changes in estimation
techniques or significant assumptions adopted in ECL
calculation during the year.

The impairment loss of investments under ECL stage 3 is
measured/calculated based on discounted cash flow method.
The amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate. The impairment is recognised
through an allowance account in the profit or loss.
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ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

CREDIT RISK (continued)

Doll

Qualitative disclosure (continued)

(d)

Parameters, assumptions and estimation techniques (continued)

In determining allowances on an individual basis, the
following factors are considered:

1. The sustainability of the borrower’s business plan;

2. The borrower’s ability to improve performance when
a financial difficulty arises;

3. The estimated recoverable cash flows from projects
and liquidation;

4. The availability of other financial support and the
realisable value of collateral; and

5. The timing of the expected cash flows.

The Company incorporates management overlay to address
model ineffectiveness prospectively when necessary.

Forward-looking information contained in ECL

The Company incorporates forward-looking information
into both the assessment of whether the credit risk of
an instrument has increased significantly since its initial
recognition and the measurement of ECL.

The Company formulates three economic scenarios: a
base case, which is the median scenario assigned a 60%
probability of occurring, and two less likely scenarios,
one upside and one downside, assigned a 15% and 25%
probability of occurring respectively.

The Company has identified and documented key drivers
of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial
instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has
estimated relationships between macro-economic variables
and credit risk and credit losses. Hong Kong CPI and China
GDP differences are considered as the key drivers of credit
risk. The impact of these economic variables on the PD
and LGD has been determined by performing statistical
regression analysis to understand the correlations among
the historical changes of the economic variables, PD and
LGD. Forecasts of these economic variables are carried out
at least semi- annually by the Company that provide the best
estimate view of the economy over the next year.

When calculating the weighted average ECL provision, the
Company determines the optimistic, neutral and pessimistic
scenarios and their weightings through a combination of
macro-statistical analysis and expert judgement.
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ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

9. 'fg}ﬂ EL Igﬁi (%) 9. CREDIT RISK (continued)
92 EERWE 9.2 Quantitative disclosure
B A 2 W K 4 T T A A O B R Except for deposits placed with the Company’s immediate holding
TSN s AN A HARAE R o company, there was no credit risk exposure to other parties during
the period.
9.2.1 FRBHFH 1w A 9.2.1 Geographic distribution of exposures
22l i 1) 7 8 38 15 B JEL B A8 BE 109% 1Y The following table sets out the credit exposures of debt
s w5 - securities broken down in significant geographical segment
which not less than 10%.
a 17 ae 5 a. Debt securities
WM T
MOP’000
B
AR 5 il A Hofe A7l fat
Government
or Public Financial Other
3l Region Sector Institution Company Total
BF China - 13,820 100,869 114,689
922 BFEMA G H AT 9.2.2  Maturity analysis on assets and liabilities
T#Mx
MOP’000
B £ 3 1HA M 1E3WA WA EL14E 1534 YL I fat
From
Up to From 3 months to From Indefinite
On demand 1 month 1 to 3 months lyear 1to3years Over 3 years period Total
B Assets
ARl e O Loans and advances to
customers - - - - - = = =
T7 ~ R S0 Cash and balances with and
loans and advances to banks 55,031 - - - - - - 55,031
Tr ki Certificates of deposit held - - - - - - - -
WM ESEREMEE  Securities issued by Macao SAR
Government and/or AMCM - - - - - - = =
Hol g Other securities - - - 13,820 63,426 37443 - 114,689
il Liabilities
A HOMYR AR Deposits and balances of banks
and financial institutions - - - - - - - -
NI Deposits from public
sector entities - - - - - - - -
A A RBE AT Deposits from holding and
Uiz associated companies - - - - = = - -
ZF A3 Deposits from non-bank
customers - - - = = = = =
BT Certificates of deposits issued - - - - - - - -
BT Other securities issued - - - - - - - -
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THR (WM #E R B RAE  ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

9. & B ) 9.

CREDIT RISK (continued)

92 EEWE @) 9.2  Quantitative disclosure (continued)
9.2.3 BELRASB M 9.2.3 Credit quality analysis under regulatory asset classification
T8
MOP’000
TN AR
Expected Credit Loss

W BR AR TR AT s Be — s Be — R B =

Real

Gross  Guarantee
Amount Value Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
1B Pass 114,689 - 24 = =
B Special Mention - - - - _
WAk Substandard = - - - -
Al & Doubtful - - - - -
HEk Loss = = = - -
114,689 - 24 - -

10. T 35 E B 10. MARKET RISK

10.1 g Mgl 4l

S T 3 SR B B R DA R BUSR B A A

74 T (¥ T 45 R 3 AR T A A1 T [ 6
RIS 82 ) LA B A5 BT 35 i AL T 7 AR
F JEL g A [k o A ) G i 45 L B B3
0 PR A 35 L o PR AR B RO - 2
35T DA 2 1 JEL B AT A o 202248 A 4 ) A A
Jon o i 45 L B B T AR > AT AR I i 4 SR
BT > RN 5T 5 1l 45 R LR
i e TIT 355 i 5 B PR A R -

102 EEHE

R e

10.1

10.2

Qualitative disclosure

A description of its risk management objectives and policies on
market risk

The objective of market risk management is to obtain the best
balance of risk and return of the Company’s positions arising from
movements in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and changes
in credit market condition. The market risk policies and processes
include risk limits and exposures management, stress-testing,
counterparty evaluations and country risks assessment. In 2022,
we continued to strengthen market risk management by improving
policies and procedures, risk reporting and limit management.

Quantitative disclosure

Not applicable.
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11, AR 11. OPERATIONAL RISK
BRE R B de B AT FE T - N B RAENAEZIE Operational risk is the risk of unexpected financial losses resulting from
R B Bl R Ah PR 1 T 5 BOR R B RE 2 BEES TR 2R inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems or from external
LB o SE S 4R A TR A7 A R B 1 B S events. Operational risk is inherent to every aspect of daily business
FEHR > 2 i i A58 R 8] g T > B i 2R AS [R] B AR operations within an organisation, which covers a wide spectrum of
A R TR i B o e ARG LR AL R N Y B REAR issues and root causes. Senior management provides adequate oversight
75 R A% TR B A R R R T DA GR AN AR~ AR to ensure operational risks (including technology risk) are identified,
B 4 A 2E 55 B A B (L6 BB RUB) o A | R assessed, mitigated, and reported with adequate control measures and
75 300 R ) A5 R I T L 5 B T R R B A - B procedures. Operational risk is also monitored through the implementation
S L B 6 AT > A5 A R B 4R O B U S R AR of various management tools, including key risk assessment, key risk
S BRSBTS PR R B o A I AR B AH BH 45 51 indicators, operational loss data collection and incident reporting etc.
FEH > E SRR A SO SR A SRR B o The Company will keep on pursuing proactively the effective operational
risk management practice in accordance with the relevant guidelines and
principles.
AN ) R AR B S A L B A B o The Board of Directors and Senior Management undertake the
JE 0 GEE R LA TR A8 o SN0 AR AL R4 SRR responsibilities to lead and implement operational risk management and
AR o i 3 15 A Rl I /5 P L O Y B > B put great emphasis on it. By allocating adequate resources, supervising the
B G R L it ) 9 BT BLAT R DL o A E L implementation on management strategy and measures, and appointing
1 B R A JL g A L AR A R TR 5 AR AR A independent departments of the parent company to establish and
7 ) o R A 45 LI A S I — BOME RN A R o implement operational risk management system, the consistency and
efficiency of operational risk management is ensured.
12, SRAT IR WA R 12. INTEREST RATE RISK
12.1 €4 4l 12.1 Qualitative disclosure
AN T R A B EE P 45 B8R0 & 2 e a5 A - Except for the bank balance and the fixed-coupon rate investments,
A A A RE A HoAb w1 S 4 S ul B 1 o the Company does not maintain other interest-bearing financial
W 1E20224F12H31H > 7R 2 A £9100% (2021 assets or financial liabilities around 100% (2021: 86%) of the bank
AF 1 86%) MR P &5 B £ [ 5 F 2 0E B A7 3K balances are fixed deposits based on fixed interest rates and they
1 A% iy 7 B <8 e i = P B B NN are not subject to significant interest rate risk. With the minimal
TR AZ 14 T 15 1) 238 38 ) J o A o amount of bank balances with floating interest rate, management
considers the Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates is minimal.
122 EEHE 12.2 Quantitative disclosure
2008 J5& 5 I B iy 1] 23 J B 43 Br Analysis of interest rate exposures at a shock of 200 basis points
TWMT
[iR/i% 4
MOP’000, %
*7T #ou WM it
USD HKD MOP Total
2001 LB FIZ B H T Changes of the Company’s economic
AN T 48 A (B 5 value at a shock of 200 basis points 3,708 0 0 3,708
HA &4 Own funds* 178,041
AOFEEE 2 EA  Impact on economic value as % of
4 Ho il own funds* 2.08%
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ICBC (MACAU) CAPITAL LIMITED

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

13.1

Qualitative disclosure

The Company takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its bank balances and
financial assets denominated in United States dollars (“USD”) as at
31 December 2022, which is equivalent to MOP167,433,255 (2021:
MOP138,102,809). Management considers the Company’s exposure
to the risk of changes in foreign currency rates as minimal as MOP
is linked to Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) and HKD is linked to
USD.

Quantitative disclosure

Net long of US Dollar Deposit which is equivalent to
MOP167,433,255 (2021: MOP138,102,809).

LIQUIDITY RISK

14.1

14.2

Qualitative disclosure

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty
in raising funds to meet its payment obligations when due. The
Company is not exposed to significant liquidity risk. The Company’s
strategy is to minimise its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring
the Company’s capital from time to time, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosure

Not applicable.

NOTES

Item 1, item 3 and item 6 are audited among all the items disclosed.
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In 2022, Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited (“ICBC
(Macau)” or “the Bank”) actively implemented the policies of the Macao Special

Administration Region (“Macao SAR”) Government. While strengthening

pandemic prevention and control and achieving smooth operation, the Bank

effectively fulfilled social responsibilities, supported the economic development

in the region, and served the Groups strategies and China’s overall development.

Due to its excellent market performance, the Bank won the “Best Bank in Macao”

award by the British magazine The Banker and World Finance, and the American

magazine Global Finance for the thirteenth time.

L Overcoming difficulties, forging ahead, and striving to enhance
comprehensive market competitiveness

()

(ii)

Bearing in mind the country’s most fundamental interests and fully
serving a new pattern of development. The Bank strengthened
political consciousness and the ability to represent the people
in carrying out professional financial work. It helped ensure the
country’s stability on six key fronts and maintain security in six
key areas, supported China International Import Expo in Shanghai,
helped Chinese enterprises “go global’, promoted the Belt and Road
Initiative, and served the new pattern of China’s opening up. To
practice the philosophy of green finance, the Bank set up the Green
Finance and ESG Development Committee, wrapped up the first
cross-border transfer of green financial assets in the Guangdong-
Macao In-depth Cooperation Zone in Hengqin, and signed strategic
cooperation agreements on green finance with central state-owned
enterprises to help Macao build itself into a low-carbon city.

Implementing the Group’s development strategy, and consolidating
and enhancing its market position. ICBC (Macau) implemented
the central policies, supported key manufacturing enterprises, small
and micro customers, and high and new technology enterprises,
and granted loans to key areas such as the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area, Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, and the
Yangtze River Delta to serve the development of the real economy.

II.  Adapting to changing circumstances and opportunities to serve
and support the Policy of One Country, Two Systems

@

Taking a higher political stance and supporting the government
in exercising law-based governance. Giving full play to its role of
a member of the Economic Development Council of the Macao
SAR Government and the President of the Board of Supervisors
of the Macao Chamber of Commerce, ICBC (Macau) conducted
in-depth research on the diversified economic structure, policy
innovation in the Greater Bay Area, and the Guangdong-Macao In-
depth Cooperation Zone, and played an important role in providing
suggestions and implementing the Policy of One Country, Two
Systems.
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Utilizing the platform of ICBC (Macau) Youth Association to
expand the forces of patriotism and love for Macao. ICBC (Macau)
established the ICBC (Macau) Youth Association that upholds
patriotism and love for Macao and the Bank, and dedication
to the Bank and professionalism. It launched public awareness
initiatives on national conditions through various forms such as
on-site training and visits, and cultivated and expanded the forces
of patriotism and love for Macao. With such efforts, the Bank
deepened the Macao youth’s understanding of the country, and
encouraged them to make due contributions to the moderately
diversified development of Macao’s economy and the construction
of the Greater Bay Area, and to become an important force of
ICBC (Macau) to serve Macao’s social development and the
implementation of the Policy of One Country, Two Systems.

Continuously enhancing the cohesion of corporate culture.
Employees were organized to attend various activities such as the
National Security Education Exhibition, in a move to continuously
strengthen education on employees™ patriotism and love for Macao.
With greater care for employees, ICBC (Macau) formulated a health
examination policy for all employees, and purchased sufficient anti-
epidemic drugs and materials to effectively protect the physical
and mental health of employees and their families. A “President
Reception Day” event was created to timely understand the minds
of employees and help them solve difficulties.

Having the courage to take responsibility, finding the right
position and taking the initiative to integrate into China’s overall
development

@

Supporting the building of the Greater Bay Area and Guangdong-
Macao In-depth Cooperation Zone in Henggin and facilitating the
market connectivity. ICBC (Macau) strengthened the sharing of
domestic and foreign customer resources and business resources,
innovated the functions of global account services, developed
personalized product mix plans for various cross-border financial
services and products such as account opening witness, investment,
and financing, and optimized business processes to improve
customer experience. Leveraging the geographical and cultural
advantages of Macao which is adjacent to Guangdong, the Bank
launched multiple innovative products and services, and was the
first in Macao to launch the Greater Bay Area Property Connect,
One-stop Cross-border Mortgage Registration Service Center,
Greater Bay Area Social Security Service Connect, and Greater Bay
Area Payroll Service Connect. The Bank exclusively launched the
Video Notarization in Macao and the Greater Bay Area Account
Connect, receiving good social response and customer feedback.
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Serving the country’s opening up and fostering global service
advantages. Seizing the opportunities brought by the treasury
reform of central state-owned enterprises (“SOEs”) and the Chinese
enterprises “going global”’, ICBC (Macau) deepened cooperation
with a large number of central SOEs, SOEs, and industry-leading
firms in global settlement, cross-border fund pooling, and other
aspects. It successfully launched the Swift Direct Link and 360T
Foreign Exchange Trading Platform for documents and letter of
guarantee. The cumulative amount of minor currency foreign
exchange transactions within the Bank exceeded RMBI10 billion.
To serve the international cooperation and global governance, the
fund pooling program initiated by the Group abroad was built into
the manual of ICBC’s global cash management cases for the China
International Import Expo (“CIIE”), showcasing product excellence
and service capabilities.

Organizing merchants to participate in the CIIE and supporting
the two-way opening up of the national economy. Leveraging the
CIIE to support the development of Macao enterprises and serve
the national economic development and trade liberalization, the
Bank brought customers to participate in the Expo for the third
consecutive year, bridging the economic and trade exchanges among
Macao, the Chinese mainland and the world. It assisted overseas
enterprises to deeply participate in the Chinese market, seize
opportunities for international procurement, investment promotion,
and opening cooperation, deepen mutually beneficial cooperation
between Macao and the Chinese mainland, and serve the two-way
opening up of the national economy.

Continuously improving financial research and enhancing the
soft power of ICBC. Leveraging financial research to integrate its
intellectual resources, assist with business decision-making and
improve market influence, ICBC (Macau) deepened the application
of research platform, and regularly released research information
and market dynamics through the WeChat official account ICBC
Macao Research, providing the working basis for macro research,
policy research and market research. Relying on the Sino-Luso
Research Centre, the Bank formed a partnership with universities
and research institutions in Macao, undertook multiple research
tasks assigned by the Macao SAR Government and the Liaison
Office of the Central People’s Government in the Macao Special
Administrative Region, and actively provided suggestions to the
government.
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IV.  Supporting ecological civilization through energy conservation
and environmental protection

®

(i)

Improving the green finance development system. ICBC (Macau)
improved the top-level design of green finance. It refined the
corporate governance structure, established the Green Finance
(ESG and Sustainable Finance) Committee, established the
organizational structure, functions and working rules of the
committee, strengthened the management of green finance, and
comprehensively advanced the development of green finance, ESG
and sustainable finance. The Bank actively conducted research
on green finance. Focusing on the theme of green development
and ESG, it adhered to the combination of research and business,
carried out research on domestic and foreign green finance policies,
industry standards, business cases, etc., promoted the green
transformation of institutions, actively offered suggestions to the
government, and achieved good results.

Vigorously boosting the development of green finance.

First, formulating green credit policies. The Bank added systematic
green credit classification identification, identified the priorities
of green industry development, and strengthened green finance
support such as differentiated pricing to channel credit resources to
green industries with low energy consumption, low emission, high
efficiency and good market prospects.

Second, innovating green financing service solutions. The Bank
continuously followed up on the major projects of the Macao SAR
Government such as green and low-carbon transformation and
introduction of environmentally friendly buses, to facilitate the
building of Macao into a low-carbon smart city and help citizens
live a better life.

Third, underwriting carbon neutrality-themed green bonds. As
the lead underwriter and joint book runner, the Bank actively
underwrote eight green bonds worth USD3.5 billion in total with
overseas sister institutions within the Group, mainstream peers, and
leading central state-owned enterprises.

Fourth, launching the first green private equity investment fund.
Fully leveraging the advantages of full licenses, the Bank was
the first institution in Macao to obtain the private equity fund
management permit, and completed the registration of the first
private equity investment fund. It was also the first private equity
investment fund with the theme of green investment in Macao.

Fifth, actively promoting preferential green car loans. The Bank
actively conducted cooperation with environmental-friendly electric
vehicle manufacturers including Tesla and Nio, vigorously promoted
preferential green car loans, encouraged customers to apply for
electric car loans through preferential interest rates, exemption from
signing, and gifts, and practiced the low-carbon and environmental
protection concepts.
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Deeply promoting low-carbon operation. The Bank actively
implemented the Head Office’s “Digital ICBC” strategy, accelerated
the digital transformation, called for green and low-carbon
development, promoted paperless customer bills, paperless office
processes, etc. through technical means, and strengthened energy
conservation management.

Staying true to the original aspiration and working with the SAR
Government to boost the economy

@

(i)

(i)

Supporting Macao’s urban renewal projects. ICBC (Macau) signed
a formal agreement on syndicated loan for the home swap housing
project of Land Lot P in Areia Preta, to support the urban renewal
of Macao. The Bank took the lead to grant a syndicated loan of
integrated enterprises, setting multiple records among local peers. It
energetically supported the livelihood and economic development
in Macao.

Investing resources to work with the government to boost the
economy. Through close communication with the Monetary
Authority of Macao and the Economic and Technological
Development Bureau, ICBC (Macau) smoothly completed the
projects such as the Electronic Consumption Plan, the Living
Subsidies, and the Shopping Carnival. The Bank took well-ordered
steps to implement the government project of “Small and Medium
Enterprise Fee Reduction”, and assisted in promoting it to over
10,000 merchants as required by the government. The feature
of UnionPay Transit QR code was rolled out, providing bus ride
services with a Transit QR code in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
area, and effectively facilitating the daily life of citizens.

Working with all sectors of society to overcome difficulties.
ICBC (Macau) deepened business cooperation in refinancing
with integrated enterprises during this special period, as a move
to support the economic recovery of Macao. Aligned with the
government’s bailout plan, the Bank launched a number of
innovative products and services such as “Easy Mortgage Loan”
and “Easy Mortgage” to provide comprehensive financial support
for SMEs and tide over the difficulties with them. Relying on the
Cross-border E-commerce Association of Macao, ICBC (Macau)
integrated Macao’s e-commerce resources. It also established a
special communication mechanism with government departments,
and pressed forward with the building and improvement of the local
cross-border e-commerce ecosystem. The Bank organized the third
general assembly of the Cross-border E-commerce Association of
Macao, and elected the second management team of the association.
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Promoting the economy of Macao towards diversified
development through bold innovation and practice

(1) Serving as the chairman of the Securities and Funds Industry
Association of Macao to promote the development of modern
finance in Macao. ICBC (Macau) took the initiative to boost the
industry development by building industry consensus, deepening
industry cooperation, promoting industry self-discipline and
improving market ecosystem via the Securities and Funds Industry
Association of Macao. Among the first batch of 51 founding
members, more than half of them came from non-bank financial
institutions such as securities, funds and asset management firms.
Intermediary agencies, such as law firms and accounting firms,
accounted for more than half of the total members. They effectively
pooled industry strength to advance the development of modern
finance in Macao.

(ii)  Relying on the Group’s inter connection advantages to drive the
development of the bond industry.

First, the Bank was the first to launch a private equity fund
management business, which was of milestone significance for
further enriching the business pattern of the local financial industry
and deepening the moderate diversification of Macao’s economy.

Second, the Bank successfully issued RMB2 billion worth of Panda
bond, with both the issuer and the bond rated AAA, the highest
rating in China. It was the first time for an overseas institution of
the Group to issue Panda bond, with over 30 institutions worldwide
participating in subscription.

Caring for people’s livelihood, serving society and actively
undertaking corporate social responsibility

(1) Comprehensively protecting the physical and mental health of
employees and customers. The Bank has been prioritizing the
physical and mental health of employees and customers, and 91%
of its employees have been vaccinated. It has taken effective steps to
prevent epidemic, including closing down epidemic related outlets,
implementing separate offices, and promoting vaccination for all
employees.

(if)  Giving back to society with a benevolent mind. ICBC (Macau)
provided scholarships of RMB600,000 to four universities in Macao
to support the development of culture and education, donated
RMB300,000 to the private charity organization Macao Tung Sin
Tong Charitable Society and the recipient of running for charity for
the benefit of the general public, donated RMB300,000 to the public
welfare foundation and organized the whole staff to participate in
the “Online March” activity, and supported public welfare activities
such as Caritas Macau Charity Bazar and “Caring for the Children”,
as a move to undertake social responsibility.
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Creating more jobs to support youth employment. The Bank held
special job fairs at universities in Macao to provide employment
information. It carried out online special recruitment to introduce
Macao’s employment market to Macao students studying in
Chinese mainland. It participated in the Autumn Employment
and Internship Online Recruitment for the Students from Macao,
and promoted its university recruitment plan to Macao students
studying in mainland universities, so as to attract outstanding young
talents to get employment in Macao. In the meantime, the Bank
attached great importance to employees’ welfare and salary stability,
and pursued common growth with its employees.

Deepening bank-university cooperation to cultivate diversified
financial talents. ICBC (Macau) exclusively sponsored the academic
competition of Macao Education and Youth Development Bureau
to cultivate local young talents. It held the second Macao University
Students Fintech Innovation Competition of 2022 “ICBC Cup”
National University Students Fintech Innovation Competition to
discover technological talents, in which the entry of Macao students
won the national second prize. The Bank held a series of activities
“Study Tour in ICBC”, and participated in the publicity activity
for Macao financial talent cultivation organized by the Monetary
Authority of Macao to enhance young people’s understanding of
finance.
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